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HSS Hire Group plc

Qur investment case

Qur focus

The HSS Hire Group is a leader in the equipment hire market
supporting major businesses, contractors, trades and
consumers across the UK and Ireland.

Ourfocusis on the less capital-intensive and nen-cyclical
‘fit-out’, ‘maintain’ and ‘operate’ market segments, although
our Specialist businesses and rehire operation also service
the construction sector. It is estimated that the market for
equipment rental will grow by an average of 3.1% a year over
the next two years. We are well positioned to benefit from
that growth and intend to continue our outperformance of
the marketplace.

We have a strong presence in the market, with a well-
established brand and evolving retail-like distribution model,
meaning that we are able to meet demand effectively, and
maximise the return on our assets through the effective
deployment of our capital equipment.

Qurfocus s on what matters
most to our customers

Safety
Value
Avallability
Support

Our market Our business

We operate in the UK tcol and equipment hire market, the We have nine main branded businesses, each presenting a
total turnover for which was estimated to be £5 7bnin 20157 distinet brand proposition to the market

UK equipment rental companies provide customers with a

wide vanety of tems ranging from larger equipment (‘plant Core

Specialist

hire’), to smaller equpment {'tools and equipment hire’) and
specialist equiprment

The pnmary customers for equipment rental companies

include construction contractors, utilities and facilities IMAGE REMOVED

management operators, government entities, retallers,

IMAGE REMCVED

infrastructure developers and homeowners

(® Our Marketplace 04 ® Our Business at a Glance 02

{1) Source Eumpean Rantal Assoc:aticn Equipment rental Industry Report 2015

This Report contains certan forward looking statements with respect to the operations strategy performance financial condition, and growth opportunites of the Group

By ther natwre these statememns nvoive uncertanty and are based on assumptions and iInvolve nsks, uncanaintes and other factors that coutd cause actusl results and
developments to differ matenally from those anticipated The forward-looking stataments reflect knowledge and information avadable at the date of preparation of thes Report
and other than in accordance with its legal and regulatory obligations, HSS undertakes no obligation to update these forward looking statements Nothung in this Report should

be construed as a profit forecast
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Revenue

£312.3m

+9.7%

Adjusted EBITDA

£71.0m

(0:1%)

Adjusted EBITA

£20.3m

(34.9%)

Adjusted EPS

3.20p

(61.9%)

Core utilisation (LTM)

48%

+1pp

Specialist utilisation (LTM)

76%

+6pp
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Our added value

We create value through maximising the utiisation of caprtal
equipment by ensunng its availlability through our urkque

distribution network

We ensure it 1s mantained, safe and ready to use

Directors’ Report
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We build long-term relationships with customers

We provide added-value specialised services in specific

market areas

(®Our Busness Modal 08

Our strategic prionities

1. Optimise the distribution and

branch network.

2 Win new, and deepen existing,
customer relationships.

3 Continued development and growth
of our specialist businesses.

(®Our Strategy in Action 15
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Our Business
at a Glance

Qur business focuses on supplying equiprment

and services to the ‘fit-out’, ‘mantan’ and

‘operate’ sectors of the market, with our specialist
businesses also supplying construction contractors
Over 90% of our revenue comes from B2B clients
The Group caters to a long-standing and diversified
customer base ranging from retallers and arports to
faciibes management companies and nfrastructure
developers, serving them ‘anytime, anywhere’
We segment our operations into Core businesses

and Specialist businesses
HSS network!"
naticnaidistnbution  regional distnbution local distribution
centra centres certres
traning locations? Specialist locations? trading locations
IMAGE REMOVED

{1} Asat 26 Decemnber 2015
2) Some ot which ara co located with othar HSS core or speciatst locations

(& Our Unique Distnbution Network 10

Our customer-led strategy

HSS’s customer needs and requirements

rform our Strategic values

® &
Availlabilty Support

_—

which sit at the heart of our Strategic enablers

® ®
Safety Value

Ensure safe, sustainable working
environments for colleagues and customers

@ Deliver value and quality to our customers
@ Focus on profitability and growth

@ Dnve availlability and operational effictency

Invest in our colleagues
\,//

which underpin the achievernent of our Strategic pnorities

@ @ ®)

Optimise the Win new, and Continued
distribution deepenexisting, development
and branch customer and growth of
network relationships our Specialist
businesses

—

which we helieve will enableus to

\/,,/

continue growing the
business and create
shareholder value

(3 Our Strategy inAction 15
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the UK and Ireland

Core businesses Customer proposition Revenue
IMA Prowvides an extensive range of tools and equipment for hire across
GE over 1,600 product lines m
REMOVED
84% of revenue
IMAGE Responds to customers' specific needs for equipment not typically
part of our core offenng, working with a network of more than
REMQOVED 450 suppliers to source over 2,000 equipment lines
Prowdes trainng to meet the requirements of customers Offers
IMAGE 261 Industry-recognised techmical and safety courses at either
REMOVED customer sites or one of 52 HSS training venues throughout

Specialst businesses

Customer proposition

Revenue

A specialist provider of powered access equipment operating across

£51m

16% of revenue

IMAGE the UK and offenng safety as standard through the additton of s
award-winning ant-entrapmertt device Activ’ Shield Bar The Group
REMOVED is the second largest provider of powered access equipment in
the UK The range s prowided under the HSS Powered Access brand
inireland
We believa the Group is now the second largest provider of
IMAGE temnporary power generation and distribution equipment and serices
in the UK with a well-invested fleet of Remote Fleet Management Smart
REMOVED Equipment generators operating under the ABIrd brand in England and
Wales, Apexn Scotland and HSS Power in Ireland
One of the UK's leading HYAC companies The business offers
IMAGE awde range of specialist, frequently complex, boders, chillers and
BREMOVED ar-conditioning unrs to multiple sectors iIncluding facilities and
property management, construction, datacentres and ecucation
Under the Reintec and TecServ brands the Group offers equipment
IMAGE management sclutions to the comract clearing markst, prowiding
REMOVED the benefits of management, maintenance, compliance and
costefficiency
{® Our Financial Review 22
Customer satisfaction
Net Promoter Score —

AlIHSS customers in the UK

Source TNS

IMAGE REMOVED
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Our Marketplace

We operate In the UK tool and equipment hire market,
the total turnover for which was estimated to be £5 7bn
in 2015M

UK equipment rental companies provide customers with
a wide vanety of tems ranging from larger construction
equipment {plant hire'), to smaller equipment {‘tools and
equipment hire') and specialist equiprment

The pnmary customers for equipment rental companies
include construction contractors, utiities and faciliies
management companies, government entities, retallers,
infrastructure developers and homeowners

Construction-related custorners (residential, non-residential
and infrastructure) are estimated to account for ¢ 60% cf
UK eguipment hire market revenues

The non-construction portion of the market largely
constitutes the service and industnal sectors

The UK equipment hire market I1s highly fragmented, with
a large number of small operators servicing trades, and
larger companies servicing corporate contracts as well
as construction and trades

IMAGE REMOVED

Source Furopean Rental Assocation {ERAY) 2015 Equipment Rantal Industry Report

{1) Scurce. European Rantal Assocaton Equ pment remal industry Report 2015

Market position

The Group's Core businesses focus largely onthe
non-construction elements of the market in the
fit-out, mantenance and operation of buildings
Our Specialist businesses and our rehire
operation support this focus as well as ground-up
construction The Group's exposure In these
markets includes faciliies management, retall,
commercial fit-out, property, utilities and waste,
infrastructure and energy services

The Group focuses on two product categories
of the overall equipment rental market

-1 Tooland equpment hre (e g dnlls, ighting,
« stteworks and access equipment)

2 Specialist equiprment hire {powered access,
» power generation, cleaning and large HVAC)

It 1s estimated that the Group has a ¢ 6%
share of the highly fragmented UK tool and
eguipment rental market, making 1t the second
largest operator

IMAGE REMOVED

Sources Consabdated Incoma Staternent (page 76) and European Rental
Assocation (ERAT 2015 Equpment Rantal industry Rapon

Together with cur Specialist businesses the Group
18 the second largest prowder of powered access
equpment n the UK and we believe the Group I1s
now the second fargest provider of temporary
power generation and distnbution equipment n
the UK
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Market drnvers

Market prospects

Customers are increasingly taking advantage
of the numerous benefits of renting rather than
owning equipment, iIncluding the ability to

- avoid the large capital investment required for
equipment purchases,

-> access a comprehensive range of equipment,

- obtan equipment as needed, mirimising the
costs associated with idle equipment,

- decrease exposure to credit market conditions,

- reduce storage, maintenance and
transportation costs,

-» beneft from ancillary services provided by
equipment hire companies, and

- utilise the equipment hire distribution network
to efficientty allocate equipment

Independent tradespeople are driven by local
avallability, hence the large number of independent
operators Service and avallability are very variable
In this sector

Larger customers are increasingly looking for
natanal hire solutons, ncluding full geographical
coverage, centralised procurement and off-hire
support, centralised ordering and customer
support to ensure a consistency of service

In 2015 the UK market was estimated to have the
second highest GDP and construction industry
penetration rates in European markets (3 2% and

2 6% respectively) and grew 1 5% (in turnover terms),
shghtly ahead of the estmated growth for the total
European market of 14% The UK market 1s
expected to grow by a further 3 7% in 2016 and

2 6% in 2017 reflecting macroeconomic growth and
Government promoted horme and infrastructure
development

The European Rental Association note that market
incurmbents are Increasingly seeking to offer a
combination of equipment rental and associated
services In response to customer demand, HSS
has been at the forefront of these developments
Qur approach has been to buld a balanced portfolio
of Core products and associated services, which
we have then supplemented with the growth and
development of our Specialist businesses and therr
skilled teams to ensure we cffer our customers the
expertise they demand Together with the continued
evolution of our distribution network and leading
systemns, we believe we are weli placed to continue
developing new senice solutions for our customers
and to benefit from future market growth

Independent hire providers are likely to target growth
in both housebulding and renavation Through our
local yet national’ branch rollout programme we
intend to take share from these independents by
offenng excellent avallability of a quality hire flest
backed by strong customer service

IMAGE REMOVED

Sourga. Eurppean Rental Associanon [ ERA) 2015 Equpment Renial Incustry Report
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Chairman’s
Statement

IMAGE REMOVED

We focus on three strategic
priorities: optimising the branch
and distribution network; winning
new, and deepening existing,
customer relationships; and the
continued development and growth
of our specialist businesses. The
Board is committed to creating
shareholder retum.

Alan Peterson
Charman

| am pleased to welcome you to the HSS Hire
Group plc Annual Report and Accounts for
2015 We achieved revenue growth ahead of
the UK eguipment rental marketplace, whilst
continuing to invest in the business and make
progress aganst our strategic plan, however,
it was a challenging year | would like to assure
you that the Board takes the matter of the
declne in the share pnce very senously and

1s commutted to creating shareholder returm




Market environment and share price performance

The business expenenced softer market condiions through the
second guarter, which were also reported by others operating in the
construction and bulding mantenance and facities markets There
were a number of macroeconomic factors which cantributed to this,
including specific weaknesses in the RMI markets in which we operate
Our profitatility was also adversely affected by weaker than expected
demand amongst our larger customers, changes in revenue mix,

the first year of plc costs, and incrermnental depreciation from fleet
investment These factors combined to place significant downward
pressure on our share pnee through this penod

Our results

We achieved revenue growth of 10% in 2015 bringing our turnover
for the year to £312 3m, delivered Adpusted EBITA of £20 3m {FY14
£31 2m) and achieved a ROCE of 11 2% {FY14 23 1%)and a RCA
of 14 9% (FY14 270%)

(®Find out morein Our Financial Review 22

QOur strategy and plan

In ighit of lower than expected revenue growth and the associated
impact on profitability, the Board undertook a review of strategy,
concluding that with the essential rebasing of our cost structure and
anincreased focus on operational and capital efficiency, it remains the
nght one to grow the business and create shareholder value We are
confident that the cost-reduction plan s progressing well, giving us
inherent fiexibility as to the next stages of investment in the network

We focus on three strategic prionties optimising the branch and
distribution network, winning new, and deepening existing, customer
relationships, and the continued development and growth of cur
specialist businesses These prionties are being achieved through a
set of five strategic enablers as outined in the Chief Executive Cfiicer’s
review on page 12 and are driven by the needs that our customers
consistently tell us are central to therr success safety, value, avalabiity
and support

In 2015 we made solid progress against our three strategic priorties
We opened 50 new low cost, local branches and further evolved the
distnbution network Including planning for the launch and opening of
the National Distnbution and Engineenng Centre alongside the refocus
of our Distrbution Centres  Following lower than expected key account
growth at the beginning of the year, we Invested to build our pipelne
and have seen a number of Important customer wins in the second half
We also continued to mvest In the specialist businesses which support
our unique custamer proposition — including acquining specialist
heating and cocling provider, All Seasens Hire

() Find out more about Qur Strategy in Action 15

Our Board and management team

I would like 1o thank former Chiet Executive Chns Davies, who stepped
down towards the end of the third quarter following nine years in wiich
we saw the Adjusted EBITDA of the HSS Group double Dunng the
year, Fiona Perrnin, Group Sales and Marketing Director, stepped down
from the Baard for family reasons, transitioning some of her other
duties to other executives who were well-prepared for succession

HSS Hire Group plc o7

Annual Report 2015

John Gill, who has been involved with the development of our growth
strategy, in particular the implementation and evolution of our
distribution and logistics network, previousty as CFO and then COO,
has taken over as CEQ to drive forward our plans He is supported by
an effectve senior management team which has responded well to the
market conditions we saw In the year

(YFind out more about Our Board of Directors 40

Governance

Prior to our February 2015 IPO, we aready had strong governance
structures In place and we have worked hard 1o develop and establish
the vanous addritional committees, systems and polcies through the
first year as a public company | bebeve that strong governance is the
bedrock of effective execution of our business plan together with the
smooth running of day-to-day operations and the protection of assets

@ Find out mere about Qur Governance 38

Qur people

HSS achieves excellent customer satisfaction scores and this 1Is

down toits people We recrurt motvated and driven individuals who
believe In cur unique company sthos and then we iInvest In their
development | never fal to be Impressed by their professionalsm,
energy and commitment to going beyond the call of duty for our
customers They are at the heart of HSS's differentiated market position
and unique customer service offenng Dunng the year we have made
imnpravemnents in the diversity of our workforce and established targets
for further progress which are reported on page 37

® Find out more about Qur Comporate Responsibiity 32

Caorporate responsibility

Our primary responsibility 1s to ensure the safety of HSS colleagues and
customers, our Board agenda starts with Health and Safety in an ethos
of ndmdual ownership which 1s reflected across the Group We also
pay close attertion to reducing the Impact we have on the environment
and in the role we play as a cornmunity business across the UK and
Ireland You can read more about our corporate responsibiity activities
on page 32 and in the separate Corporate Responsibiity Report
published on our website www hsshiregroup com

(®Find out more about Cur Corporate Responsibiity 32

Looking ahead

We have moved intoc 2016 with a heavy focus on cost managernent
and productivity, combined with continued growth HSS s an
entrepreneunal business with a solid business plan underpinned by
operational and capital flexibdity We move forward determmed to
deliver that plan and to create shareholder value

Dividend

The Directors have proposed a final dvmdend of @ 57p per orginary
share It approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting the total
dmdend for the year would be 114p per share, reflacting the Board's
stated intention 1o adopt a progressive dvidend policy The final
dividend s expected to be paid on 4th July 2016 to shareholders onthe
register at close of business on 3rd June 2016 The ex-dvidend date1s
2nd June 2016

Alan Peterson
Charman
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Our Business
Model

Creating value

Our business mode! shows we create value through
maximising the utiisation of capital equipment by ensunng
its avallability through our unigue distnbution network and
ensunng it 1s mantained, safe and ready to use We build
long-term relationships with customers and provide
added-value, specialist services Inspeciiic market areas

Our strategic @ @ @

‘ enablers Ensure safe, Deliver value Focus on Drive availability
sustainable working and quality profitability and operational
environments for to our customers and growth efficiency
colleagues and
customers

Our business

model
|
|

IMAGE REMOVED

|
|

Our strategic
| priorities @ @ @

Optimise the Win new, and Develop and grow
distnbution and deepen existing, our specialist
branch network customer businesses

relationships
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Our Unique Distribution
Network

Meeting customers’ needs for availabilty

IMAGE REMOVED




We operate from over 320 locations across the UK and
Ireland Our retal-like distnbution network means we can
serve our customers anytime, anywhere Orders are routed
automatcally to the most convenient distnbution centre — and
by efficiently mowving our rental equipment between branches,
our comprehensive range of kit can be avallable to customers
wathin 24 hours of ordenng

This unique operating system considerably reduces the cost
of extending our Local Branch network It also helps us make
much better use of our fleet, ncreasing our productvty and
helping us deliver consistently high levels of service to our
customers —wherever they are in the UK

IMAGE REMOVED
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Review

1would like to outline the progress
we made and challenges we
encountered during the year -
including the pressure on our share
price. | will also discuss the steps
that we are taking to overcome
these challenges as we continue
toinvestin our business to secure
further market share.

IMAGE REMOVED




Overview

In 2015, we iInvested in the growth and development of our local branch
network and our specialist businesses Whilst our custormers’ end
rnarkets were more vanable than expected, we delivered revenue
growth of 109, ahead of the overall equipment rental market

In hght of our performance in the first erght months of the vear, the
Board and I reviewed the overall strategy in considerable detall and
cenduded that aur strategic obyectives continue to be the nght ones
tc generate shareholder retum, but with some modfications which
allow us to respond more rapidly to market conditions Specific areas
of focus Include the rebasing of our cost structure, Increased focus
on capital efficiency and an ongoing drive for aperational efficiency
These are central to our objectives as we move forward

The HSS difference

HS8S continues to be strongly differentiated within its markets Qur focus
starts with the needs of our diverse customer base and they tell us that
they pnoriise Safety, Value, Avalability and Support Durng the year

we worked hard to further wnprove our custorner service In support of
these values, and drive our operational efficiency, whichin itself results
infurther customer satisfaction, as well as cost benefits The growth
Inour extemally assessed Net Promoter Score to 36 reflects this
difference and continues to be well above the industnal and services
sector benchmark

()Find out more about Our Marketplace 04

Qur performance

Despite less favourable market conditions, we continued to graw our
revenues strongly Revenues in our Core businesses were up 7%
year-on-year, significantly ahead of the ERA’s estmated 1 5% rate

of market growth for 2015

Revenues in our Specialist businesses grew by 30% year-on-year,
maienally ahead of the wader market This partially reflects the
acquistion of All Seasons Hire In May 2015 but s pnncipally due tous
starting to realise the benefits of our continued Investment in the hure
fleets, depot network and sales teams of ABird, Apex and UK Platforms
through 2014 and 2015

Qur Adusted EBITA performance in the year reflects the ncrease n
depreciation charges resulting fram cur investment plans, including
the opening of 50 new low cost local branches and further investments
N our specialist businesses and hire fleet. These are nvestments to
ensure we have the nght network and rental fleet to support demand
over the coming years

{3 Find out more In our Financial Review 22
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Qur markets

Our marketplace 1s described on pages 04 and 05 We operate In
the UK tool and equipment hire market, which the European Rental
Association the 'ERAY) estimate had a total turnover of £5 7bnin
2015 s worth noting the ERA's assessment that non-construction
{cperating environments and business) demand for rental s 40% of
sales versus 60% from construction, with non-caonstructon one of
the highest shares in Europe

QOur market focus 1s In the operaticn of the built emaronment where cur
work for many major blue-chip companies—facities management,
arports and retal customers for example — benefits both our Core and
Specialist dwvisions and1s backed by strong customer propositions,
from our Reintec cleaning equipment offer through to "Total Equtpment
Management’ where we manage entrre flests of equipment for some of
our largest customers Here customers recognise the benefits of rental
in operational efficiency and maintaining a flexble cost base

The ERA alsc notes that ¢ 50% of the market 1s held by regional
and/or independent tool hire operators HSS Is directly targeting this
opportunity to win share in locat markets through the expansion of
our low cost, local branch footprimt This s backed by a retail-lke
distnbution network which Ssupports our customears’ number one
prionty — avallability — through both a range of products designed

to be hired instantly and access to our entire range next-day

HSS also servces the construction segment of the equipment rertal
market through our Core tocls and equipment offer, albest more
fecused on later-cycle 'build, mantain and operate' customers and
through cur rehire dvision which provides a single point of contact,
order and invoice for third party plant and equipment, some of
which 1s used In early-cycle canstruction Our Specialist dwvisions
100, benefit from ongaing construction growth supplying powered
access and power generation to vl engineenng and residential and
commercial construction

Dunng 2015 we successfully launched the first transactional mobile-
enabled e-commerce platform from a national tool and equipment hire
comparny, which enables out ot hours ordening, click and collect, local
stock availability checks and instant access o bespoke pricing for local
trades This commitrent 1o a multi-channel offer positions us wellto
meet the expectatons of our customers, offenng convenience and
searmless service H also helps drive up the utiisation of our equipment,
making our use of capital more efficient.

(PAnd out more about Our Marketpiace 04
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Review Continued

Our strategy

Having examined our strategy th depth dunng the year, the Board s
confident that, with modifications to rebase our costs and ensure a
deeper focus on operational productiaty and capital efficiency, it
continues to ba the nght one to create shareholder return over the
medium term These modifications will aliow us to respond to market
condibons with more flexibikty whie optimising investment and marging

Optirmising our branch and distribution network

Dunng 2015, we opened 50 new low cost local branches in new
markets, extending our availabiity promise to-qur customers and
winning share from both national and local competttors These
branches are part of our strategy to become ‘the local tool hire
company with a national presence’ and are backed by continual
development of our distnbution system Thisis continuing 1o evotve
1n 2016, with the opening i the first quarter of our new National
Distnbution and Engineenng Centre, operated on our bahalf by
ourlong-term partners, Unipart, alongside our existing network of
Customer Distribution Centres across the UK This latest evolutionis
designed to deliver clear competitive advantage through enhanced
avalability of equipment to branches and customer sites in support
of our muttichannel offer It also dnves utiisation and capital efficiency
In our core business

The rofl out plan for local branches has been successtul and we will
continue to open new local branches dunng 2016, but wath flexibility
i the speed of roll out In Ine with prevailing market condions Qur
current plans see us opening upto 20 new local branches 1N 2016
We will continue to refine the format, using the lessons learnt from
the top performers in the portfolio to further iIMprove the operating
modei for the entire estate Our extensive network now compnses
over 320 branches and operating locations ensunng that we provide
convenience to cur customer base

Win new, and deepen existing, customner relationships

We have focused hard on being able to provide more of the equipment
and services that cur customers need 1o enable us to grow revenue
with a greater share of ther spend Our Specialist businesses support
our ability to be a 'one-stop-shop' for customers across many
segments Our OneCall rehire dvision also supports our growth
through the ease of ordenng wvia HSS from a supply chain selected

for quality and safety Foliowing lower than expected growthin key
accounts in the first half of the year, we increased our focus onwinning
new customer accounts in the last quarter

Continued development and growth of our specialist businesses
Our strategy has been to acquire and integrate specialst businesses,
and then invest In fleet and depot expansion to dive growth Dunng
2015 this contributed to revenue growth for the Group while at the
same time depreciation frorn these investrments impacted profitability
We acquired specialist heating and cooling provider, All Seasons Hire,
and can now offer our customers access to temporary bespoke chillers
and bollers, typically used in managing heating and cooling dunng
compiex bullding moves and mantenance As with our other specialist
businesses we are now focused on expanding All Seasons Hire's
reachwva depot and fleet expanston Having completed two years of
significant investment m our Specialist businesses, our focus n 2016
will be on organic growth and margin improvemern

In order to support our three strategic pnorities, we focus on five
strategic enablers which are cuthned on page 15 and aredentified by
icons through this repert Our achievements under each are measured
wvia our KPls whuch are outined on pages 26 and 27 The enablers star
with afocus on profitability and growth via delivenng value and qualsty
to our custormers through iInvesting in our colleagues Operatcnal
efficiency —ancther enabler — was boosted in the year with further
davelopments in our distnbution network Including the opening of
large new dedicated distribution centres al Reading and St ves

(® Find out more about Our Strategy n Action 15

Safety and the environment

Our fifth enabler 1 the safety of our colleagues and customers,
alongside minimising our iImpact an the emvironment in which we
operate In 2014, our RIDDOR trequency ratio — one measure of
safety - stood at 0 50 and in 2015 showed a small decrease to 0 49
We believe In a culture which states that 'safety 1s the way we do things
round here' and continue to put an emphasis on the ownership of
safety from the Board through to every ¢colleague

We also deliver innovations in safety — a good example 1s our antt-
entrapment system Activ' Shield Bar which was fitted onto the 1000th
UK Platforms’ diesel boom dunng the year

We understand well the role that ture plays in making more efficient use
of resources through a reduction in matenals used In manufactunng
The cpening of our purpose-built refurbishment centre in Manchester
has significantly increased our capacity to refurbish more machines
This extensicn of asset Ives 1S a strong example of our commitment to
ourroleinthe circular economy’, making effective use of the world's
resources and our own capitat For full details of our CR programme
and commitrments please see page 32 or download our full CR report
from www hsshiregroup com/corporate-responsibikty

(@ Find out more about Corporate Responsibiity 32

Qur people

Our Training Academy at Reading delivered training to 526 delegates
throughout the year Building on that success we are extending the
Acadermy’s reach Into our branch network creating Branches of
Excalience throughout our operaton to deliver ongoing colleagus
traning, while the Acadenmy concentrates on the development of our
managers Traning days per colleague 1s a K for our bustness (see
page 21} as we continually develop our colleagues’ skills in custormer
sarvice as well as the techrnical and safety requirements of the roles
they undertake every day

| am continually impressed by the energy, enthusiasm and customer
commitment of our colleagues and would ke to thank them
wholeheartedly for the roles theyindvdually play every day in
building cur business

(3}Find out more about Our Key Pertormance Indicators 26

Outlook

Following the challenges of 2015, we are taking a highly disciplined
approach 1o managing our growth, with & focus on costand
operational efficiency, on improving productvity and on delivenng
higher standards of customer service Qur absolute prionty is the
creation of shareholder value and we have put in place the foundations
for future profitable growthin 2016 and beyond

John Gill
Chief Executive Officer
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Our Strategy
in Action

The business remains focused
on the three strategic priorities,

evolving these in line with
marketplace developments.

Over the next six pages we explain
how the delivery of these strategic
priorities is supported by our strategic
enablers: the actions we have putin
place to ensure the priorities are
achieved efficiently and effectively.

Our strategic priorities
@ @ @ IMAGE REMOVED
Optimise the Win new, and Continued
network deepen, existing, development
customer and growth of
relationships our specialist
businesses

© ® W

Ensure safe, Delver value Focus on
sustanable and qualty to profitability
working our customers and growth
environments

for colleagues

and customers

Our strategic enablers

© @

Dnve availlability Invest in our
and operational colleagues
efficiency

sseUISNg INO

SOUBLLLOLA N0

eluBeAQD)  Senmqisucdsey nd

UONBULIOU JOYID  UOIELLLIOM| [B1DUBLIY




16 HSS Hire Group plc
Armual Report 2015

IMAGE REMOVED

o0

new low cosl, local
branchesrolled out In 2015
We now have the largest
network of any UK and
Ireland equipment
hire company

Optimise the distribution
and branch network

OB0C0

Our network of more than
320 locations 1s now the
targest of any tool and
equipment hire operator
in the UK and ireland.

In 2015 we expanded into
even more communities,
with the opening of

50 more low cost,

local branches

Access and knowledge
These small-footpnnt branches,
typically located on trade parks,
stock a dedicated ‘trade
essentials’ range designed to
be picked up, allow customers
1o order the entire Group range
for nexd-clay or named-day
delivery, and integrate fully with
our e-commerce platiormn They
provide all the presence of a
local hire company but with the
support of a national provicler

The colleagues that provide this
local expenence need to be able
to provide excellert service,
backed by expert knowledge
QOur Training Acadermy

delivered traning to 526
colleagues dunng the year and
1s being extended to provide
iocal Branches of Excellence
ensunng cngoing induction and
refresher traning This knowledge
and service was reflected in a
customer satisfaction score
which is consistently well

above our provider, TNS's
industry benchmark
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IMAGE REMOVED

Yo

CLICK &
COLLECT

In 2015 we launched the
first mobile-enabled
transactional e-<commerce
platform from a major UK
equipment hire company

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

®WE

We are committed to
ensunng that HSS
customers benefit
from having the tools
they need, where and
when they need them,
ordered via a seamless,
Joined up expenence.

Control and convenience

In 2015 we launched the first
truly transactional e-commerce
platform from a major UK hire
comnpany, bringing convenience
and control to our customers
frommobies on the move as
well as desktops and tablets

QOur customers told us they
needed instant stock avalability
10 save time, that they wanted to
be able 1o transact out of hours,
that they wanted to be able to

order tools from ther site direct
from our website The all-new
hss com delivers this and more

It offers a branch finder, the
ability to on and off-hire at
account-specific rates and allthe
convenience of click and collect
Advanced reporting provides
complete control lisdesignedto
prowide all the functionality of the
websites we all use as consumers
to the businesses that depend on

hire every day
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|

Win new, and deepen existing,
customer relationships

QOO

Our second strategic Responsive and convenient
pnonty s to deepenand In 2015, we extended the number

widen our customer of ive tracing accourts by
account relationships. ¢ 2,000 and increased the valug

of ther average spend as we
attracted new custormers and
extended the support we provide
1o our existing accounts

Qur service IS the major reason
why customers both work with
HSS in the first Instance and why
they increase ther spend with us
We provide more tools ang
equipment via our Core and
Specialst ranges and ensure we
are easy to transact with Thiscan

be as simple as enabing
customers to pick up and drop
off kit at any branch or because
of the relationships we develop
which enable us 1o understand
therr unique needs

Our retall-tke distnbuuon network

enables colleagues throughout

our branch network and our

extenswve field sales teams to offer

our customers avallability of a

capita-efficient, well-maintaned

fleet We also support our :
customers through arange of

systems including leading web

systems such as hss com




¢.37,000

live trading accounts - we
grew our trading account
number by ¢.2000 and
Increased our average
revenue per customer

MAGE REMOVED
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Total Equipment

Management

We manage complex
supply chains on behalf of
same of the UK's leading
infrastructure, retail and
facilities management
companies and work with
allthe major arrports

Growing our specialist capability
and offenng a strong rehire
operation to provide equipment
which s not in our range through
asingle poirt of contact,
contract and mvoice, enables

us 10 Increase our share of our
customers’ spend Our training
busness offers customers
extensive access o accredited
Health & Safety courses at 52
centres natonwide, a key part

of our customer propeostion

For our larger accounts many
relationships have developed

to mean that we manage their
equipment via dedicated desks
In our spacialist customer service
centraincluding controling
complex supply chains on ther
behalf via our Total Equipment
Managemsent senice
Recognising that our key
accounts were not growing as
we anicipated they would in early
2015, we invested in building and
converting our pipeline which
resulted In several new wins
towards the end of the year

Amongst these larger customers,
we work with all the UK's major
arports, the maornity of the top-50
faciities managers, several

large retailers and sigruficant
infrastructure companies

We anjoy excellent customer
retention, measunng our
customer satistacvon daity
through intemal measurement
and quarterty through
independent monitonng of

our Net Promoter Score

£sausng Ino
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Continued development and
growth of our specialist businesses

@OWO®

We continued to develop
our specialistbusinesses as
our third strategic priority.

Specialist and supportive
We invested further in our power
generation businesses ABird and
Apex, In our powered access
business, UK Platforms, andin
our equipment senvcing and
rental dwvisions Reintec, TecServ
and HSS Groundcare

In all cases we purchased more
equipment and extended the
depot network All these
businesses now offer full UK

and Ireland coverage We have
continued 1o Invest In the speciic
salestearns which support these

specialist businesses, providing
custormners with in-depth
expertise LTM (ast 12 months)
utilsation rates grew 1o 76%
{2014 70%) reflecting growth
and efficient use of our capital

In 2015 we also continued our
Investment IN ABird and Apex's
Remote Fleet Management
Smart Equipment features, which
enable remote monrtonng and
control of our generator fleet by
custormers, as well asthe abilty
to order fuel



Heating

solutions

All Seasons Hire provides

HSS Hire Group pic

Advanced
and Cooling

gpecialist bespoke solutions
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41

specialist business
locations -some
co-located — strategically
placed across the UK
and Ireland meaning
efficient distnbution
to our customers

IMAGE REMOVED

We also continued to fit our
unique anti-entrapment device
‘Activ' Shisld Bar’ 1o diesel
hooms in UK Platforms’ fleet
fitbng the 1000th boom lift In
the second quarter as part of
our commitment to ‘salety

as standard’

Dunng the year we also acquired
specialist heating and coaling
provider All Seasons Hire and
immediately commenced the
Integration process

All Seasons Hire specialses In
the supply and nstallaton of

ternporary or back-up—and
often bespoke and complex—
iarge-scale heating and cooling
equipment This includes
emergency bollers for facities
such as schools and hosprtals
and cooling equipment for data
centres All Seasons also offers
smaller scale ar-conditioning
and heating equipment for use

m offices and other buldings,
complementing HSS' exssting
range Like our cther acquisitions,
we have commenced investrent
in both fleet and network
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Financial Review

IMAGE REMOVED

Despite a good start to the
year, 2015 did not develop
as expected. We have
taken action, including the
implementation of a cost
reduction programme, and
we are now building more
flexibility into our strategic
and operating model to
drive profitability and
improve retumns.

Steve Trowbridge
Chief Financial Officer

Key highlights 2015

Revenuetm

£312.3m

2014 £284 6m

Adjusted EBITDA £m Adjusted EBITAEm
£71.0m £20.3m
2014 £711m 2014 £312m

Core LTM utilisation % Specialist LTM utilisation S
48% 76%

2014 47% 2014 70%




Overview

Following a good start to 2015, with Q1 revenues ahead of budget, full
year revenues did not develop as expecied We reporteg thistothe
market and took action through the second halt of 2015 1o address
the lower than expected revenue growthin Q2 and Q3 At the revenue
level this included investment In our key account teams o enable

us to build a larger pipeline and win and convert more attractive
contract opportunities

At the cost level we reduced our cost base through refining our branch
organisational structure, honing our sales teams, and reorganising

our customer support and central functions thereby drving efficiency
through the business As a result of actions to date cost savings In

Q4 2015 were £2 4m, in ine with the guidance of £1 5Smto £3 0m
provided 1o the market in August 2015

As indicated in my 2014 Financial Review, we completed our IPO In
February 2015 The associated corversion of investor loan notes

and accrued interest into equity and partial repayment of our Senior
Secured Notes and drawn revolving credit faciity balances enabled us
1o de-gear the business Since the IPO we have increased the leverage
in the business through continued Investment In expanding our core
and specialist hire fleets to meet customer demand We also increased
the headroom In our existing facities in Noverber 2015 to gve us
additional flexibility to execute our plans

Group financial performance

Revenue

Group revente grew 10% to £312 3m (2014 £284 Bm) as we expanded
our core business and invested in our specialist offenngs Thisis one of
our KPlIs (see pages 26 and 27) Particular drivers of this result were

- the increasing maturtty of cur new local branches opened through
2014, and the intial revenyue perforrmance trom the 50 local branches
opened dunng 2015,

- contnued revenue growth in our HSS Traiming and HSS OneCall
businesses (28% and 16% growth year-cn-year respectively),

— turther double digit orgarvic growth in ABird/Apex and UK Platiorms
{22% and 15% respectively), and

~ the revenue contnbuted from All Seasons Hire, the heating and
cooling speciaist we acquired in May 2015

Revenue growth for 2015 was lower than achieved in 2014 {25 5%),
prnncipally reflecting more challenging market/trading conditions widety
cried by listed peers and a number of our listed customers, but also
reflecting a lower level of acquisitions and the associated fult vear effect
of such acquisitions In 2014 acquisitions acceunted for 6 8% of the
revenue growth, compared to 1 3% in 2015

HSS Hire Group plc 23
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Growth In revenues from our Key Account customers, whilst positive
{+10 3%j}, was below the level we had expected given our achievements
In growing these revenues through 2013 and 2014 We referenced

this in gur interim results published in August 2015 and took action

o reorganise and invest In our business development capabilites

10 ensure we bulld and convert a larger pipeline of attractve client
opportunities

This renewed focus on winning and deepening customer relationships
was applied to all of our custormer groups Across the groupasa
whole the average spend per account customer Increased to £8 1k
ffrom £7 7k in 2014) reflecting both an increase in revenue from trade
accounts and an increase In Iive accounts through the year This 1s one
of our KPls {see pages 26 and 27)

In respect of wider markat growth, the annual ERA European
Equipment Renta! Industry report estimates that the UK market grew
by 1 5% In 2015 This rate of growth was two thirds lower than they had
forecast for 2015 at the outset of the year and mrrored the tougher
trading conditions premacusty menticned On this basis, we continue

to grow at a faster rate than the wider UK tool and equipment market
and will continue to target cutperformance through 2016

Ravenue Ad|usted EBITDA Adjusted EBITA
£m 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Core £2617m £2456m E£456m £512m
Specialst £506m £390m £254m L£i199m
Group £3123m £2846m £710m £711m £203m £312m

Costs

Our cost of sales increased by £17 9m (17 49} to £120 9m
Appraxmately £1 7m of this growth was due to the annualisation of
the March 2014 Apex Generators acquisition and the purchase of
All Seasons Hire in May 2015

The pnmary driver of the growth in cost of sales was higher
deprecraton charges (+£9 4m) refatng to our larger hire fleet This
reflects two years of demand-led investrnent {0 support growth in

the core business and to expand our specialist businesses Strong
growthin HSS OneCall frehire} and HSS Training revenues and the
corresponding increase in related third party supplier costs accounted
for £2 1m and £1 Om respectvely and stock mantenance costs also
increased by £3 Om due to the increased size of the fleat

Our distribution costs increased by £4 1m (11 0%) to £41 3m This
ncrease was pnmanly drven by the growth in volume of customer
delivenes and collections, across both the core and specialist
businesses £0 5mrelates to the annualisation of Apex Generators
and All Seasons Hire acquisitions
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Financiat Review
Continued

Our administrative expenses increased by £22 3m (18 3%) to £144 2m
The Apex and All Seasons acquistions accounted for ¢ £1 2mof this
growth Staff costs also increased due to the branch openings, as well
as growthin field-based sales staff The growth in Key Accounts, H3S
Traning and HSS Onecall also required additional headcount to be
recruted 2015 was also the first year of Ife as a plc, with the additicnal
Board and govermnance costs that are required The remaining cost
Increase was dnven largely by the annualisation of the 2014 new branch
openings combined with the 50 opened in 2015 contributing to an
Ingrease In rent and rates costs of £3 4m

n H2 15 we 1ook the opportunity to review and refine our staffing
maodel across the business, reorganising our operations to reduce
cost The opening of the NDEC in 11 2016 and the new purpose
buitt refurbishment centre in late 2015 bang the opportunity to
further improve productmty and operational and capital efficiency

Qur Adusted EBITDA was broadly flat at £71 Om (FY14 £711m)
reflecting the increases in our cost bases set out above Our Adjusted
EBITDA margn for FY15 was 22 7% [FY14 25 0%) Adusted EBITDA
and margin are Included in our KPIs (see pages 26 and 27)

Qur Adjusted EBITAwas £20 3m (FY14 £31 2m) Thisdecrease
year-on-year principally reflects the ncrease in depreciation dunng the
year, from £39 8min FY14 1o £50 7min FY15, which arose primanly
as a function of our fleet nvestment through FY14 and FY15 Adjusted
EBITA and margin are included In our KPls (see pages 26 and 27)

Core performance

Durnng 2015 the Core businesses delivered revenue of £261 7m (FY14
£245 6m) and Adusted EBITDA of £45 6m (FY14 £51 2m) and togsther
accounted for 84% of Group revenue and 64% of the Group's Adjusted
EBMDA

Revenue growth, and as a resuit of our operational gearing, earnings
In cur core business were impacted by softer than expected market
condtions, price competition and lower than expected growth
amongst our custormers

Qur cost base increased through the year reflecting increased revenues
and associated distribution and stock maintenance costs, the opening
and associated running cost of the 50 new immature local branches,
ongoing wage inflation, Investment in staff n anticipation of certain
levels of revenue growth and investment in plc related headcount

During the year we invested £41 3min our core hirefleet {2014 £41 9m)
and LTM utlisation improved to 48% (2014 47%) Thisis one of our KPis
(see pages 26and 27}

Specialist performance

Dunng 2015 the Specialist businesses delivered revenue of £50 6m
{FY14 £39 0m)and Adjusted EBITDA of £25 am (FY14 £19 9m)and
together accounted for 16% of Group revenue and 36% of the Group's
Adjusted EBITDA

Ounng the year we invested £23 7m in our Specialist hre fleet (2014
£30 0m}and LTM utilisation improved to 76% {2014 70%) Thisis one of
our KPls (see pages 26 and 27)

The considerable investment in our Specialist businesses over the last
few years has enabled us to buld modem well-invested fleets, and to
establish a UK wide Specialist depot network, a number of which are
co-located with other Specialist businesses or exsting HSS locations
This gives us more flexibility for the levels of hire fleet capital expenditure
In our Specialist businesses through 2016

Other income

Other income of £0 9m relates to income receved from sub-let
non-trading stores This decreased by £0 2m compared to the prior
penod as concerted efforts were made to shnnk the non-trading
property estate through head iease expines and targeted surrenders

Operating profit

Operating profit was £6 8min FY15({FY14 £23 6m) pnncipally reflecting
the £11 9mncrease in depreciatan and amaortisation charges together
with the £4 8m year onyear increase in non-finance related exceptional
costs

Finance costs

Qur netfinance expense decreased by £11 4m, or 35 5%, from £32 1m
in 2014 10 £207m This decrease was prmarily due to the reduction n
net debt following the IPO at the start of 2015 Thisreductionledto a
decrease Ininterest oninvestor loan notes of £7 3mand a £2 3m
reduction in senior secured note interest

Taxation

The Group has incurred an income tax expense of £0 4min FY15,
cornpared 1o a £3 Om income tax credit n FY14 The FY15 tax charge
prncipally reflects the onginaton of unprovided temporary differences
The FY14 tax credit principally related to the recogrition of a £2 4m
deferred tax asset (on pnor year losses) together with the release of
deferred tax cn intangible assets acquired

Reported and adjusted earnings per share

QOur basic and diluted loss per share Increased to 9 9p(FY14 8 6p)
This was due to the larger lass for the year, largely driven by tugher
depreciation and amortisation charges and an increase in non-finance
exceptonal costs and partially offset by the increase in the weighted
number of shares as a result of the [POn February 2015

Our adjusted earnings per share, beng profit before amortisation

and excepional costs less 1ax at the prevaling rate of corporation tax
decreased to 3 2p from 8 4p in FY14 reflecting the impact of the lower
adiusted profit together with the increase in the weighted number of
shares as a result of the IPO in February 2015 Thisis one of our KPls
{see pages 26.and 27)

Cash utilised in/generated from operations

Cash utiised in operations was £7 4m for FY15, a £23 8m decrease
from the prior penod (FY14 £16 4m) This movement pnncipally reflects
the £17 4m increase 1 cash settled purchases of tire equipment in
FY15 {extended payrment termns from 2014 and purchases made in
2015), together with the increase in exceptional costs n FY15




Capnal expenditure

Fixed asset additions dunng the penod (excluding assets acquired on
acquistion) were £84 O0m, sightly higher than in 2014 {£83 6m) Ofthis
total, £65 Om represented fleet investrment or additons of matenals and
equipment held tor hire (2014 £71 9m) and £16 Om represented
addrtions to non-hire equipment (land, buidings, plant and machinery)
2014 £11 7m) with a further £3 Omrelated to the accounting for
diapidatons on new properties The Increase in non-hire equipment
additions principally reflects the opening and fit out of 50 new ow cost
local branches and relocated distribution centres such as in Reading
and St lves

fleet Investment continued 10 excesd depreciation, consistent with
2014, and reflects the substantial Investment made in growing both our
Core and Specialist hire fleets over the last two years This investment
together with the opening of the new National Distribution and
Engineering Centre, which i1s designed to further enhance avalability
across our branch network, enables us to reduce our capital
expendrture in 2016 In ine with softer customer demand Fest
Investment 1s one of our KPIs (see pages 26 and 27)

Return on Assets ('ROA’) and Return on Capital Employed {{ROCE’)
Our ROA for FY151s 14 9%, 12 percentage points lower than in FY14
(27 0%) Thisdecrease s pnmarily due to the lower EBITA generated
dunng FY15, the reasons for which are set out above, but also reflects
the significant Investment in our fleet through FY14 and FY15 which
together matenally ncreased the average net book value of hire fleet In
use by £33 2m ROA s calculated as Adusted EBITA dvided by the
total of average total assets {excluding intangible assets) subtracted by
average current habimes This 1s one of cur KPIs (see pages 26 and 27)

QOur ROCE for FY151s 11 2%, a reduction of 12 percentage points for
the same reasons outlined above ROCE s calculated as Adjusted
EBITA dwided by the total of average total assets {excluding intangible
assets and cash) less average current liabiities {excluding current debt
itemns) This is one of our KPIs (see pages 26 and 27)

Leverage and net debt

Net debt {stated gross of Issue costs) decreased by £98 9mto
£2181m This decrease pnncipally reflects the repayment of £64 Om of
our Senior Secured Notes from the proceeds of the IPO in February
2015 and the conversion of Investor loan notes into equity, offset by
increases in our finance leases and RCF drawngs through the year as
wa have settled capiial expenditure crediors from 2014 and through
2015 Qur leverage, calcutated as net debt dvided by Adjusted EBITDA
decreased from 4 5xin FY14 10 3 1x at the end of FY15 Thisis one of
our KPIs (see pages 26 and 27)

Steve Trowbridge
Chuef Financial Officer
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Our Key Performance
Indicators

KPI Strategic Importance of KPI FY15 Track record
enabler performance
Revenue Simplest measure of the ongoing grawth of the
@ Group s sales from whech profits can be generated £31 2-3m
and shareholder value created +37% IMAGE
® Financal Statements 76 REMOVED
usted EBITDA Widely recognised measure of profitability before
Q:(lj margin @ amortisation, impacts of depreciation polictes £71 -o-m
and capital structure {interest and tax) and 22 7% margin IMAGE
exceptional costs Metnc also used In leverage
and covenant calculations REMCVED
@ Financtal Statements 76
Adjusted EBITA Measure of profitability before amortisation,
amjj margmn @ impacts of caprtal structure (interest and tax) and £20-3m
axceptional costs This KPI s used 1o calculate 6 5% margin IMAGE
Executive Director remuneration REMOVED
Adjusted EPS @ Measure of adjusted profilability per share Widely 3 20p
recogrised rmeasure of shareholder value (profit) -
being generated by a business excluding non- per share
recurrng or exceptional tems and amortisation and IMAGE
after charging the prevalling rate of corporation tax
This KPI 15 used to calculate Executive Ditectors' REMOVED
Remuneration
® Financial Staterments 76
Returmn on Assets @ Histanc way that the Group has measured the 1 4 90/0
(‘ROA)M return generating abdlity of the business This KPP -
@ 1s being superseded with ROCE (see below) FY14 270% IMAGE
REMOVED
Retum on Measure of the return generating ability of 11 2{:%J
iCapital Employed the business adopted at the directon of the - o
(‘ROCE?" Remuneration Committee This KPi is used to FY14 231% IMAGE
calculate Executive Director remuneration REMOVED
IFleet Investment Measure of iInvestment in hire fleet Excludes
@ assets acquired through acquisition ggg'om
® Financial Statements 76 6% IMAGE
REMOVED
{1} The AOA and ROCE fur FY14 reflact re-dassdicabons of long-tenn provisons on the batancs sheat
Strategic Enablers
Ensure safe, Deliver value Focus on profitabiity  Drive availablity and  Investin our

sustainable working
environments for
colleagues and
customers

and quality to
our customers

and growth operational efficiency colleagues
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KPI Strategic (mportance of KP| FY15 Track record
enabler performance
Leverage Measure ot net debt present in the business,
@ expressed as a multiple of Adjusted EBITDA 3'1x
@ FY14 45x IMAGE
REMOVED
Net Promoter Third-party survey of how lkely customers are 36
}score (NPS) to ‘promote’ HES The score shown for each
Score year is for the last research wave completed Fyi4 25 IMAGE
n each year A higher score indicates a betier REMOVED
customer experience This KPI 1s used to
calculate Executive Director remuneration
RIDDORs @ ‘Widely recognised rmeasure of safety in 0 49
the workplace Safety is at the heart of how -
HSS operates This KPI 1s used to calculate FY14 050 IMAGE
Executive Director remuneration {see page 64) REMOVED
® Corporate Responsibility 32
Carbon @ As we pursug our local branch rollout strategy we 43
emISSions I our recogruse we have the duty to do so In 2 manner
'Pum environment whera our impact on the envircnment Is minmised Fy14 42 IMAGE
(kg CO, per m?) We therefore track our carbon emissions per m?
2 (® Corporate Responsibility 32 REMOVED
Training days People are at the heart of HSS® service offenngs
per colleague With training we can ensure that colleagues 4.3 days
are best prepared to help our customers in FY14 43 IMAGE
1herr projects REMOVED
& Comporate Responsibility 32
Utilisation (Core) Useful measure as ta how eftectively we have [}
@ employed capital nvested in cur Core hire flest 48 / o
@ Assessed over the last 12 months Should be +pp IMAGE
considered in tandem with ROCE (and ROA)
10 assess whether assets are being profitability REMOVED
deployed
Utilisation @ Useful measure as to how effectively we have 76%
{Specialist) employed capital invested in our Specialist °
@ hure fleet Assessed over the last 12 months +6pp IMAGE
Should be considered in tandem with ROCE
{and ROA) to assess whether assets are being REMOVED
profitability deployed
‘Average revenue Measure of the average customer spend with
per acgcoum the Group in each financial year Useful measure £8-1 k
customer @ of value generated per customer from which we Y14 £©77k IMAGE
can generate shareholder returns REMOVED
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Principal Risks
and Uncertainties

Managing Risk

The Board sets the strategic pnoriies for the Group, the KPIs and
performance monitoring relating to these priorities, and establishes
the nsk appetite

Overall responsibility for the Group’s nsk management lies with the
CEO and CFQ, who have ownership of nsk in reporting e the Board
of Directors

The Group then manages s risk through a group nsk register which
1s maintained by the Risk and Assurance Director and the Company
Secretary Thisis subject to regular quarterly review by the Audt
Committee, where changes to the nsk landscape, nsk ratings
{regarding likelhood and iImpact) and assurance actvity are
docurnented

Ansk based internal audit programme 1S in place to ensure assurance
actvity is targeted at key nsk areas, as identfied helow Risk based
assurance work Is then reported to the Board on amonthly basis for
review In addition the Risk and Assurance Director meets wrth senior
management on a monthly basis to discuss the findings of sk based
assurance activity and investigation, provided by the Internal Audit and
Heaith, Safety, Environment and Quality (HSEQ) teams

Principal Risks and Strategy

The Board has camed out a robust assessment of the prncipal
financial and operating nsks facing the Group, based on its three
strategic prionties, which are to optimise our branch and distnbution
netwaork, to deepen our customer refationships and win new
accounts, and the cormtinued development and growth of our
specialist businesses

The Beard has identrfied five key strategic enablers which underpin
the achievernent of these strategic pnonties These are as follows

Ensure safe, sustamahle working environments for
colleagues and custumers

O Deliver value and quallty to our customers

O Focus oh profi tablllty and growth

@ Dnve avallablllty and operatlonal efficiency

. Invest n our colleagues

2015 Risk Management Developments
Through 2015 the Group has continued to improve its appreach
to the management of nsk, with the following developments

- thensk register now links the key nsks to the strategic prionties
of the Group, to ensure that all relevant nsks are identified,

- specialist skill sets, relating to finance, [T and data integnty, have
been added to the Internal Audit team to iImprove the overall
assurance provision,

- investment In training to improve skills across the assurance teams,

- the development of iIntegrated assurance, encompassing functons
such as internal audt, data integrity, heath and safety and the Group
Investigation team This has improved reporting with the addional
benefits of sharing knowledge and working more efficiently across
the assurance functions,

-» The infroduction of controlled nsk self-assessment with
management responsibility for audits, which are overseen
by the central assurance team, and

- A quarterly nsk report 1s provided tothe Audit Committee

2016 Planned Improvements to Risk Management Process
The group will continue to develop ts nsk management process with
the following

-» improved cwnership of nsk at a local level, reviewing local and
departmental nsk registers which can prowide improved identification
of exasting and emerging nisks,

- efficencies ganed by the ncreased use of computer assisted
audit techriques and reports as provided by the Data Integrty
Manager, and

—>areview of a potential audit software reporting sure which, i
mpiernented, will be used 10 IMprove reporting consistency




ILr.u':al branch

Part of the Group's strategy Involves

The Group's property department works

Unchanged

HSS Hire Group plc 29
Annual Report 2015
I
|
!
|
Strategic g
Key nsks enabler Description and impact Mrtigation Risk change @
Macroeconomic @ An economic downturn In the UK and The Group focuses on the 'fit-out, mantan | Unchanged 5
condions Ireland rmay adversely affect the Group's and cperate' markets, which are less ﬁ
@ revenue and operating results by cyclical, less discretionary and have a larger
decreasing the demand for its senaces preportion of recuming spend than the new-
\ and the prices it may charge build construction sector While the Group
! 1S no1 1solated from the construction sector,
' 123£ﬁ$ﬁ; srgaegggg r(,efdzz?;.n:flfectln 9 it focuses on the non-construction portion é’
the viabilty of purchase and tntegration ?f the market, with specific exposure in the g
acilites management, retall, commarcial Z
fit-out, property, utilities and waste, 3
nfrastruciure and energy services markets §
T @
Competrtor @ The Group's industry 1s highly compettive,  The Group i1s ranked number two In its tncreased
!challenge and compstiion may Increase The main markets and the resutting economies | — due to
@ aquipment rental industry is highty of scale enable it to be highly competitive, increased 124
) tragmented, with competitors ranging whilst the fragmented nature of the market | pricing o
, from national equipment rental companies  may offer consolidation opportunities | pressure 2
to smaller multi-regional companies enabling the continued growth of specialist | 2
and small, Independent businesses business within the Group g
operating In a imited number of locations The Group's highly developed distnbution E
; ?ompetmon In the markst has led to service model ncreases the efficiency of 3
requent excess capacity and resultant s o
perations
pricing pressure E o
| The ability of competitors to replicate g
HSS' systems or unique services may
reduce competitive advantage in regard §
1o systemns or knowledge | ®
Operationat @ The prowvision of the Group's expected The Group has robust backup plans in | Increased -
disruption service levels depends on tts ability to place, 1n the event of IT systems falure | due to new
i @ transport its hire fleet across its network n-— or disruption 1 distribution -
i a timely and cost-effectiva manner and on Thera 1s a flaxible distnbution model | model for 2016 é
g?:ﬁgﬁ:gﬁﬁ:mﬁ:lonmg of its retail-like whereby vanous distribution centres g
can senice customers in the event of T
Any information technology (IT) systems the falure of another distnbution centre H =
fallure or disruption, accident, industnal } g
dispute or other imerruption aor matfunction 5
at any of the Group's distribution centres 3
or offices may impact the Group's ablity
1o manage Its operations and distribute its g
' hire fleet to sennce 1ts custormers, affecting T
revenue and reputation a
%

Imcorrectlii

implemented

®&®

further developing the reach of its network
by continuing its branch roll-out In new
locations in the UK If this strategy 1s
Incorrectty iImplemented, the planned
associated business growth will not

occur and the sence we provide to

our customers may be affected

closely with operational management to
ensure that new branches are located
approprately and on favourable lease terms

Extensive market research ensures that the
nght customer base ex:sts 1 a catchment
arga, and branch sales and profitability
targets are closely monnored

Branches ot excellence are being
established which will provide training
and highlight best practice
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties Continued
Strategic
Key risks enabler Description and impact Mitigation Risk change
Customer Some of the Group’s customers may have  The Group runs extensive credit checking Unchanged
! liquidity d ultimately t f d ¢
credit/suppler iquidity Issues and uttimately may no or its account custormers and mantans
] ment PP @ be able to fulfil the terms of therr rental stnct credit control over its dversified
payme! agreements with the Group Bad debts customer base
agdmzfiuq:ssgf ff:S da?so anse due to The Group's Investigation team conducts
s proactive and reactive work in qrder to
Unauthonsed, incorrect or fraudutent minimise the Group’s exposure to fraud,
payments could be made, leading to and all new staff are provided with training
financial loss or delays in payment which in this area
could adversely affect the relationship P
ayments and amendments should only
:zitsr'\.]suglnphers and lead to a disruption be made In ne with a regularly reviewed
PRY authonsation matrnx
Equipment The Group 1s dependent on its The Group makes every effort to evaluate increased
quip
'supply relationships with key supplers to s counterparties prior to entenng into - changes
Im int ’n nce & @ oblain equipment and other services sighificant procurement contracts and recommended
) a I leJ [e:yce on acceplable terms Any disruption In seeks to mantain a range of supplers by external
avanabill
@ supply could affect its abdity 1o service its in order to maximise the economic Ife consultants will
customers to the expected senice levals, of its hire fieet, the Group undentakes take time to be
with the nsk of lost customers or reduced a programm e‘of regular maintenance established
trading levels and reptacement
As the average ags of the Group's hire s
trategic acquisitions are designed 10
fleet Increases, Is cperating costs may expang the greadth and deptl? of the
Q:r:ag: gggsﬂgztgi;gi)le to pass Group's hire flest, reducing rellance on
u third-party hire suppliers
The Group ts working with cutside
consultants 10 ncrease the efficiency of
ns workshops, logistics and supply chain
to ensure appropnate service standards
to customers
Customer @ A decline in the Group’s customer service The Group invests substantialty in areas Unchanged
retention levels could result in a loss of customers such as marketing, community relations
andb d @ and market share The Group's business and cofleague traning, aimed at delvenng
ran depends cn strong brands and any falure  the highest standards of customer service
reputation to maintain, protect and enhance its and colleague engagement
E;a;gﬁé?gldgf?hznbigfégg efiect on The maintenance of high levels of service
9 and strong customer suppen IS considerec
vital, and all new employees will undergo
specific induction In this area at the Group's
branches of excellence
Service levels are tracked via the Group's
nnovative Customer Delght programme
The Group actively engages in prnint and
online advertisements, targeted promotional
mallings and emaill communications,
and engages on a regutar basis in public
relations and sponsorship activities to
promote its brands and its business
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Strategic f_:?
Key risks enabler Descnption and impact Mitgation Risk change 2
Qutsourcing @ The Group outsources certain functions Qutsourcing of services by the Group Increased §
|°f services of ts business to third parties If any 15 subject to sinngent procurement and —due to 4
third parties become unable or refuse to service cntena and all contracts are subject | ncreased
futfit their cbligations, or violate laws or to demanding service level agreements work taken on
@ regulations, there could be a negative which are closely monrtored and enforced by third-party
Impact on the Group's operations or could Performance and quality metncs and KPis providers o
@ lead to adverse publicity and a declina are tracked throughout the Ifa of contracts -
in demand fnability to repar equipment d )
will affect the ability to manage demand, §-
affecting revenue and increasing costs 3
re-Investment in equipment $,
[
Inability to @ Turnover of members of the Group's The Group has established and maintains Unchanged
lattract and management and colleagues and its ability  competirve pay and benefit packages, as
| etai I @ to attract and retain Key personnel may welt as the nght working environment for e
retain personne affect its ability to effictently manage its its colleagues Franng will be prowided 3
business and execute its strategy within the planned branches of excellence %
The Group's business depends on the whtlst the Trairung Academy facility provides g
qualty of, and abiity to ratain, its senior developme?‘t training fordmanagemem. z
management and colleagues Competition 8 process that s murored at mora senior 5
n the Group's sndustry 1s significant and gnanTgement levels by various talared ]
the loss of experienced colleagues could evelopment programmes
lead to loss of customers or iInadequately The Group supports personal development g’
exploiting revenue oppeortunities with the provision of appropriate tramning &
courses é
Legal and @ Fallure to comply with laws or regulation, Robust governance within the Group, Unchanged s
regulatory such as the Companies Act, accounting ncluding a strong finangial structure, with — separately
requirements @ regulations, health and salety law, adequata assurance provision from internal | identified and
Bnbery Act or Road Traffic Act, leading and external audit Addtional assurance managed
@ 10 matenal misstatememnt and potential and support I1s provided by a fully skilted
{egal, financial and reputaticnal habdities health and safety team and an interna!
for non-complance Investigation and fraud prevention team
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Corporate
Responsibility

Managing Risk

HSS is aresponsible company We are committed to a culture of safety
first, backed by strong governance We are focused on actions to
reduce our carbon emissions and other impacts on our environment
Recognising that a diverse, well-traned workforce 1s central to both
our customer service and the long-term weltare of our colleagues,
our recrutment, retention and development targets and programmes
focus on ensunng lifelong skills within a workforce that reflects the
communities in which we operate We also protect our colleagues

via a senes of policies which protect therr nght to Dignity at Work and
a strong cufture of ethical practice which includes a statement of
prnciples around Bnbery and Corruption

Equipment rental is inherently sustanable because 1t promotes

the repeated use of hire company owned equipment by muttiple
customers instead of each customer requinng therr own equipment

to be manutactured Rental cuts dowh on waste, MNIMISes emissions
and improves efficiency and our refurbishment capability 1s central to
this ‘We alsoinfluence the design of eguipment in a quest for more
sustanable performance and to engineer out waste Highly-trained
colieagues, well-maniained and sate equipment and ready avallability
also help o drive the case for inng as a commercially sound solution

Qur tull Corporate Responsibility report 1s published at
www hsshiregroup com/comorate-responsibility/ and the following
few pages summanse our activities and targets

Safety and training

Safety s qur first pnonty wath a strong philosophy of ‘this is just the way
we do things round here' As we grow and develop, we dnve a cufture
of ownership to ensure that our colleagues carry out our complex
operations safely

Equally mportant 1s thal our customers know that every hire is a safe
hire and we continue to develop our products, systems and processes
tosupport that In 2015 we fitted our unigue, award-winning anti-
entrapment device, Activ' Shield Bar to the 1,000th diesel boom in

our UK Platforms fleet helping to enhance our philosophy of ‘safety

as standard’

HSS Training, our specialist safety training business, now offers

261 Health and Safety courses 1o our customers and colleagues from
52 training centres, doubling its network over the last two years and
bnnging convenient, accredited safety training even closer to our
customers This s supported by iis hsstraning com which offers live
avallability and immediate course booking, backed by its own specialist
customer service unit

The chart opposite shows one key measure of acadents and injuries
- the RIDDOR frequency rate, that i1s the reportable injunes under

the Reporting of Inures, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations In 2014, our RIDDOR frequency ratio stood at 0 S0 and in
2015 showed a small decrease to 0 48 We are committed to ongoing
reduction and have renewed our focus on ownership of safety at
every level The new ISC standards to be introduced in October 2016
suppaort this empowerment through strong management valuas,

we are prepared for the transimion trom CHSAS 18001 to the new

IS0 45001 and for the changes to ISC 14001 and ISO 8001

We alsa focus on ensunng that our transport operations are safe
The Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme 1s an overarching scherme
that encompasses all aspects of safety, fuel efficiency, econormcal
operations and vehicle emissions Our comprehensave dnver training
contrbuted {o our achieverment of FORS Gold accreditation for our
commercial vehicle fieet

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

In 2015 we {itted our award-winning
ant-entrapment device, Actv' Shield
Bar to the 1,000th dieset boom in out
UK Platforms fleet

Qur new Refurbishment Centre

Inlate 2015, we opaned our purpese-burlt new 36,000 sq fi
refurbishment centre in Manchester and significantly increased

our capacity fo extend the life of machines and dnve an efficient use
of capital

In 2016 we aim to process more boom and scissor its and generators
than we processed In our previous centre, with a clear aim to extend the
useiul Ife of every machine by at least five years The facility has been
designed with a commitment to emvrenmentally-fnendly operations in

a defined layout by our partners Unipart, and includes overhead fting
capacity, dedicated engne and welding areas, waste and component
recyclng and extraction equipment At the end of refurlishmert to
rnanufacturer-approved specification, all powered access machines
are independently nspected and leave with a new LOLER certificate
ready for cngoing hire

Governance

Duning 2015, we formalised the governanca structure around
Corporate Responsibility { CR’) Our CR Steenng Committee meets
four trmes a year to assess progress and 15 charred by Jon Overman,
amember of the Executive team, with CEO, John Gill's formal review
twice ayear This has helped in determining longer term goals with
clear measurement and reporting {see page 37) In2016 we also
commit to bulding a measure around sustainability into our regular,
Independent ‘Net Promoter Score’ customer satistaction monitoning

We operats to a range of external accrediations We are SafeHire
accrecited and members of the British Safety Councit and Considerate
Constructor's Scheme We are also part of the ESOS and CRC energy
efficiency schemes and hold Investors in People status
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Our purpose bult new 36 000sq 1t
refurtxshrment centre has significanthy
ncreased our refurbishment capacity
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Corporate Responsibility
Continued

IMAGE
REMOVED

Miimising carbon emissions
We focus on minimising our Impact on the envronment in several ways

= our refurbishment centre extends the Ife of equipment and minimises
urnecessary emissions (see page 32),

- we Increased customer availability and reduced custormer journey
emissions through opening a further 50 small-format loca! branches
in the year {see page 07), and

-> we have contracted with our man energy supplier for our electncity
purchases to come from renewable sources

HS3S 15 fully compliant in terms of both ESOS and CRC reporting having
met all Government gudelines with regards to both programmes

In 2016 we will commence reporting 10 leve! 3 Carbaon Disclosure
Protocols We are also committed to attaming 1ISO 50001 accredtation
by 2018, ncluding full Intemational Performance Measurement and
Venfication Protocol comphance

We also worked hard to reduce our miles driven over the year
recognising that emissions from our transport fleet have the single
biggest impact from our business operations (see chart above)

We have achieved this through systemised transport management
and have recantly introduced further software enhancements which
will help aid efficiency over tme Our 2018 goal is to achieve year-on-
year reduction in miles per job and year-on-year reduction in miles
per branch whilst recognising that we are likely to see an increase in
the short term due to the opening of our National Distnbution and
Engneenng Centre

Sustainable Sourcing

We also strive to reduce energy and fugl consumption and increase
the Iife of our products through working with manufacturers and
sustainable sourcing We have introduced a number of iInnovations
N 2015 including

-> energy Harvest units in the ABird and Apex fleets of generators
which reduce fuel usage and CQ, created by up to 50%,

- investrnent in Lithiurn fon Hybnd Lighting Towers which useless
than one tenth the fuel of a conventional Ighting tower, and

- LEDIghting introducing frve LED low level ight products to the
range, atotal of 5000 uruts which reduce energy consumption
by up to 94%

Central to more sustanable equpment are products that are robust
enough for frequent use Through process improvement in 2015,
several products have been discontinued from cur range and more
durable replacements tound

Our 2018 1arget s to reduce our product wastage year-on-year
through responsible sourcing and extending the product’s usefulife
We will measure our progress through stock write-cif, which we
expect to Increase n the short term as a consequence of the utiksaton
efficiencies from our new Natonal Distnbution and Engineenng Centre
but decrease following that

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group reports on all of the emission sources required under the
Large and Mediurm-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 as amendedin 2013

The Group uses GHG Protocol Corporate Accourting and Reporting
Standard data gathered to fulfil the reporting requirements under the
CRC Energy efficiency scheme and DEFRA conversion factors to
calculate greenhouse gas emission disclosures The vast majority of
this data has been sourced from validated sources which include
Carbon Reducton Commitment {CRC) and DEFRA conversion factors
The extent of the GHG reporting boundary compnises of all bulding and
transport emissions within the three reporting scopes

The table below sets outs the Greenhouse Gas emissions for the group
spiit into

-»Scope 1 Alldirect greenhouse gas smissions from sources owned
or controlled by the Company,

- Scope 2 Indrect greenhouse gas emissions from the consumption
of purchased electncrty, heat or steam, and

-» Scope 3 Other indirect emissions Here we report business travel

The DEFRA Carbon Factor is also provided for each emission category
to endence the rates used to calculate the associated Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

Unless otherwise stated all data 1s provided for the period 1 October
2014 10 30 September 2015 This reporting pericd does not cover
the same penod covered by the financial statements, but has been
adopted to allow the majonty of data used to be actual recorded data
rather than estimated consumption

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Emissions Conversion

Consumption {TCO,) Factor
Scope 1
Emissions
Fuel Combustion 983,100 KWh 181 0 184557
Company Vahicles 5,243,586 Litres 13,549 25839
Leeds Bunkered
Diessl 196,822 Litres 509 2 8024
Fugitve Emissions 7,727 Uitres 20 26024
Scope 2
Emissions
Purchased
Electncity 14,917,614 KWh 7313 049023
Scope 3
Emissions
Business Travel 3,045,916 Miles 809 0 298469
Total Greenhouse
Gas Emissions 21,972




The total emissions produced by the Group dunng this period totals
21,972TCO,

Comparative data for prior penods i1s not prowded as this 1s the first year
in which the Group is required to report greenhouse gas emissions inits
Annual Report

The following methodologies were used to calculate the information in
the Greenhouse Gas Emissions reported on page 34

Emission category Methodology

Fuel Combustion 983,100 KWh

Fuel Combustion Based on invoiced gas usage for the penod

{Gas data for H3S January 2014 to December 2014 due to
building portfolio) culstanding quernes on suppler invoices within
the penod Jaruary 2015 to September 2015
Company Vehicle Collated using data from fuel card provider and
Emissions direct purchase records for cars, HGVs, Vans

and Commercial vehicles in litres converted
according to Defra guidelines

Leeds Bunkered
Diesel

Collated with the use of nternal purchase
order records converted according to
Defra Guidelines

Fugitive Errussions Caollated with the use of internal purchase
order records converted according to

Defra Guidelines

Purchased Electnerty  Collated from consolidated invoices received
ffor HSS building from electricity prowviders with consumption In
portfolio) kWh converted according to Defra guidelines

Business Trave! Collated from expensed mileage clams and

converted according to Defra Guidelines

ESOS

The UK Government established ESOS (the Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme) 1o implement Article 8 (4 to 6) of the EU Energy
Efficiency Directive (2012/27/EU) The ESOS Regulations 2014 give
effect to the scheme and the Emaronment Agency I1s the UK scheme
administrator ESOS 1s a mandatory energy assessment scheme for
organisations in the UK that meet the qualification cntena The Group
was required to cary out an ESOS assessment for 29 January 2016
The assessment was undertaken by our energy and environmental
consuttants Maloney Associates It included a full review of the energy
use throughout our portfolio and transport fleet

Dunng March 2016 the Group was selected by the Environment Agency
to be one of the first major organisations wathin the UK to undertake an
external audit of the ESOS compliance submission As an outcornea of
the audit it was confirmed that the Group had undertaken the ESOS
review, methodology and reports to an exceptionally high standard

Minimising our waste

We are committed to mzrumising the generation of waste through
effective sourcing, recycling and re-use Dunng 2015 we collected
over 326,000 kilos of hazardous waste, an increase of 5% from the
previcus year and we completed our fourth year with zero hazardous
waste to landfill Our efforts to ensure that we continue to Increase
the amount of commercial waste we recycle continued with 67%

of commercial waste being recycled compared to 66% in 2014
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of commercial waste being recycled
cormpared to 66% n 2014

Colleagues

Cur colleagues play the largest role In encouraging rental by prowviding
excellent service We reviewed the role of our Academy dunng the year
and have extended it through a “wirtual model’ to regional Branches of
Excellence, equipping our colleagues with essential development and
skills for Ifelong employment Qur pnmary commitment is {0 Increase
the number of traimning days to 5 0 days per annum per colleague by
2018 In 2015, the number of training days was 4 3, In Inewith 2014

Our partnership with Cranfield University School of Management wil
continue and we have also started a programme of managernent
capabiity development leading to qualfications with the Institute of
Leadership and Management (iLM) We will continue to build our
successful Apprerticeship programme, expecting to take onup to
30 apprentices In 2016, providing and a pipeline for front ine roles
across the Group as well as opportunities for young people

Employment, wellbeing and ethics

It 1s also Important that we protect our colleagues from pressures that
may arise at work Wa have a strong cultural ethos which does not
tolerate bullying or harassment, as well as the appropnate policies,

we hava a well-pubhaised whistieblowing process which encourages
colleaguas to raise any concems confidentally Our Dignity at Work
statement 1s underpinned by a number of policies to protect colleagues
and sets out cur commitment to a code where ‘respect forindwduals 1s
regarded as integral 1o the behaviour of al' In addrion, our Statement
of Pnnciples around Bribery and Comuption has been extensively
communicated backed by sales teamn bnefings.

We work with Towers Watson to benchmark our salanes and agree
pay bands, aming to pay median salanes across our job roles This
year we took part In the Towsrs Watson Natonal Lmng Wage Pulse
Survay, helping 1o Inform our review of the National Living Wage, where
we — In iine with 85% of respondents to that survey - have concluded
that we wallintroduce it i Apnl 2016 1n Ine with the legislative dates

Our colleagues also recenve a number of other benefits including
Healthshield protection and Life Assurance as part of standard terms
and conditions
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in August 2015, HSS supported
acommunity project to create an
urban food gargen for local residents
in Merseyside

IMAGE REMOVED

Above: In Juty 2015, HSS supported
Heathrow Airport Lirnited in raturbishing
part of of the Arbour Vales School for
chikdren with leaming difficulties based
IMAGE in Slough

awards for servcas which go beyond
the call of duty

REMOVED Lelt Colleaguesrecerve "Heroes of Hire”

We strive to ensure that our colleague base Is representative of the
communities in which we operate Wae ensure all our policies and
procedures are free from bias and have processes in place to deal with
discnmination or unfar treatment of colteagues Our recruttment policy
encourages applicat:ons from all backgrounds As at 26 December
2015, 492 (15%) of all of our employees were female At the Board level,
one Non-Executive Director was female (representing 14% of the
Board) and at the senior management level fexcluding Board members)
11 werefemala (13%) In Board and senior manager postions
{excluding the Board) we have improved from 2014 whenwehad a
12% ratio for each of these areas, however we recognise that these
ratios are not reflective of wider society and are working to further
improve our employee diversity through the coming years We have
increased the ethric mix of our colleagues across the business in the
year by 0 1% but am to add an additional 5% n 206

Suppaorting our communities

At HSS we see ourselves as a local business with anational presence
and 1ake the role that we play In our communities senously Our
long-running Heroes of Hire programme 1s two-fold firstly it rewards
coleagues who are seen by customers or their colleagues to go
above and beyond therr day-to-day duties through awards at the end
of the year These awards include a ‘Commuruty Hero' award which
recognises HSS colleagues who have typically been involved in
heraismin therr local area The second element 1s our colleague
velunteenng programme which encourages colleagues to mobilise
teamns to help with specific community projects

Dunng 2015, we were pleased to help multiple projects including
redecorating a youth centre in Horsham and helping Heathrow ausport
refurbish part of the Arbour Vales Schoal for thosa with learming
difficutties in Slough Other examples include helping to create anurban
food garden for local residents iIn Merseyside and supporting the US
Embassy in London with alocal community project on September 1ith
Inmemory of the 9/11 tragedy We were also pleased to help with
multtiple projects for the BBC TV senes DIY SOS, lending tools and
equiprnent free-of-charge alongside volurteers, for projects designed
o fransform the homes of those with cisabilities, iinesses, or thase who
have suffered at the hands of poor werkmanship

in 2016, we are committed to refocusing Heroes of Hire with a strong
emphasis on providing training and support for employment skills in our
local communiies We will do this through local volurteenng, through
free, dedicated skills and product training for those seeking work within
our Training Centres nationwide We aim by 2018 to have helped 300
job seekers through these activities




Our commitments

Dunng 2015, we have concentrated on establishing longer term goals,

In line with the Iife of our curent business plan We are committed to

reporting and measunng on our progress agamst these goals quarterly

to the Committee and yearty via our CR report

HSS Hire Group plc
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number of employees employed
by the Group dunng the CITB
assessment penod (to 31 March
i each year}

Our commitments
Report focus area 2018 target Measured by Current position
SHEQ Consistent year-on-year reduction | Weekly accident reporting for 049

in RIDDOR frequency ratio axec team 050 in 2014
People 5 0 traning days per collsague CITB Grant audted training 4 3 days

per year days as a ratio of the average per colleague

A workforce that ts 75% promoted
from wrthun and 33% women

% of internal promotions
Female % of total workforce

41% mnternal promotions
Female 15% of total workforce

Product Iifecycle

Reduce our product wastage
year-on-year through responsible
sourcing and extending the
product’s usefui Iife

Stock write off by value as a %
of the total fieet value

9 8% of stock value

from the HSS Herces of Hire
commitment to buillding a future
for local communities

per year

5 x HSS Traning events
up-skdlng local communities

Carbon Reduction Reduce energy consumption External measurement by 78kWh
in Local Branchas by 5% per Maloney Associates electricity per M?
annum when compared to the
overall floor area occupied
Year-on-year reductton in Measured using internal Miles per job: 12.8
miles per job and year-on-year IT systems Miles per branch 38,804
reduction in miles per branch
Community 300 job seekers bensfitting 5 x colleague volunteenng events | Te be measured from 2016
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For further nformation about HSS Hire Group's CR work, please contact Amy McNamara, CR Manager, amcnamara@hss com, +44 161 888 4810

Approval of the Strateqic report
The Strategic Report on pages 02 to 37 was approved by the
Board of Directors on 6 April 2016 s signed on its behalf by

JB Gl
Director

6 Apnl 2016
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Chairman’s Introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

We have continued to evolve
and refine our corporate
governance policies and
procedures through our first
year as a public company
and recognise the value

that strong governance
brings to all stakeholders

of the Group.

Alan Peterson
Charman

Dear shareholder

On behalt of the Board, | am pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the 2015 financial year

lam fimly of the belief that strong governance is the bedrock of
effective executon of cur plan together with the smooeth running of our
day-to-day operations and protection of our assets This section of our
Annual Report therefore provides you with an overview of our approach
to carporate governance, how and where we currently do and do not
comply with the Code and how we continue to evolve our corporate
governance structure(s)

Reports from the Charrs of each of our tour sub-committees of the
Board {the Audit, Normination, Market Disclosure and Remuneration
Committees) also provide an overview of each committee's activity
durng the year

The key corporate governance 1ssues addressed by the Board or
one of the four sub-committees of the Board dunng the year were
asfollows

Trading performance and group strategy

As lmention in my report on page 06, desprte continued revenue
growth, our resufts for FY15 were below the growth expectations and
targets we had set ourselves at the outset of the year This, together
with the related share price performance, I1s a matter which the Board
have considered at great length and in great detail through the year

In our internm Report released in August 2015 we detalled how as a
Board, in Iight of prevaiing trading conditions and slower than expected
growth dunng Q2 2015, we examined cur current strategy and found
encouraging signs that this strategy rescnated well with customers and
was continuing to defiver market share gans

Combined with the rebasing of our cost structure 1o reduce operational
geanng and the introduction, following John's appointment as CEQ 1n
September 2015, of a more flexible approach to capial expenditure
and local branch openmngs, the Board rermain confident that the
Group's strategy wilt support the continued growth of the business

Succession planning

During the year Chns Dawvies stepped down as CEQ of the business
On behalf of the Board and my HSS colleagues | would like to thank
Chns for his energy and contnbuitions to the growth and development
of the business since he first joined us n 2006 Our succession
planning was well progressed, and John Gill, previously CFO, then
COQ of the business, was invited 1o assume the CEQC role

As iIndicated In cur anncuncement at the tme, John has been a certral
part of the Board's thinking on succession planning for some time

and has been closely involved in developing and implementing the
Group's distribution and logistics strategy The Board consider that he
1s ideally placed 1o lead the rebasing of our cost structure and make
improvements to operating margin and | am confident that he will
continue 10 grow INto therole

Fiona Pernn also stepped down from the Board dunng the year but
continues to work In our business as a senior executive Agan, on
behalf of the Board | would like to thank Fiona for her contributions
as a Board member both pre and post IPO




As aresult of Chns and Fiona stepping down from the Beard, thereby
reducing the number of Executive Directors to two, at the end of 2015
we met the Code's recommendation that at least half of the Board of
Directors, excluding the Chairman, shoutd compnse Independent
Non-Executive Directors

With Fiona stepping down from the Board we now have one fewer
female Director on the Board We continue to recogrvse the value of
promoting gender diversity across our business, at all levels, and this
15 something that the Nominaton Committee will continue to consider
alongside our wider equality and diversity policy (see below) when
assessing overall structure, composition and succession planning

for the Board and senior managament postions

Remuneration pokcy

2016 will be the first year when we implement our new remuneration
policy, which includes performance based elernents such as the
LTIP which are designed to align Directors' interests more closely
with those of the shareholders The Remuneration Commities have
worked dosely with Delortte through the year to design and structure
aremuneration policy aligned to-our strategic objectives, KPls and
principal nsks and uncertainties, but which also reflects best practice
for listed companies of our size and complexity

Further details of the remuneration policy are set out on pages 54 to 62
and will be subject to shareholder approval at our Annual General
Meeting on 15 June 2016

Board evaluation

Towards the end of 2015 we commenced a Board evaluation process
A questionnaire containing the key requirements of the Germbined
Code was circulated tc Board and Comimittee members and
completed by each of them A further process for the evaluation of
certain executives and senior management was commissioned dunng
2015 with the assistance of Blackwood Recrutment LLP Further
detals on both such processes undertaken and the outcomes are
provided in the Nomination Committee report on page 50

The Nomination Committee 1s recommending that all Board Dyectors
are re-elected at our Annual General Meeting

Board Training

Dunng the year we developed a training programme for the Executive
Drrectors which will be implemented in 2018, implemented a training
programme for the Non-Executive Directors, and a number of senicr
managers In the business attended professional development courses
at the Cranfield School of Management

Further detail on the training provded to the Executrve and
Non-Executive Directors dunng the year 1s set out on page 46

Legislative change

We continue 1o operate In an evolving regulatory landscape with
notable changes in legislation this year Including the introduction of the
Modern Slavery Act (eflective 28 October 2015) Where new legistation
has come Into place/wll be Implemented In the near term procedures
have been put in place/will be put In place to ensure our compliance
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Equality and diversity palicy

As a Board and Company we recognise the importance that equal
opportuniies and diversity play in the long-term success of the Group
and we are committed to the application of the Group's equality and
diversity policy across all levels of the business indiuding at Board level

Currently we have one female Non-Executive Director, meaning one
third of cur Independent Non-Executive Directors are female and

14% of the Board aretermale Further detail on the gender spiit for
senior management and employees is provided within the Strategic
Report on page 36 We belleve that the current mx of expenence,
background and perspectives amongst the Directors contnbutes te
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as assessed dunng the year,
however we recognise that female representation at Board and senior
management levelin particular 1s currently imited

It 1s the responsibility of the Nomination Committes ta regularly review
the structure, size and compositicn of the Board (ncluding its skalls,
knewledge, independence, expenence and diversity) and make
recommendations to the Board about any changes {fand when
Birector or senior management appointments are being made or
succession planning 1s being undertaken, candidates must be
considered on ment and against clojective crtena, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board and amongst the serior
management team, Including gender, taking care that appointees
have enough time available 1o devote to the positich

Further details on our approach to equality and diversity can be found
on page 63 and within our Corporate Responsibility report avalable
for download at www hsshiregroup com/corporate-responsibiity and
a summary of which 1s provided on pages 32 o0 37

Looking ahead

The results of our first Board evaluaton process give me confidence
that we have assembled a Board with the appropnate mix of skills,
expenence and business backgrounds to tacitate the jong-term
success of the business Each financial year presents its own
opportunities and challenges and | look forward to working with the
rest of the Board to ensure that the corperate governance proceciures
we have implemnenited through our fust year as a public company
reman current and relevant 1o the Group for the foreseeable future

| look forward to meeting shareholders at our next Annual General
Mesting, which will e held at Haberdashers’ Hall on 15 June 2016

Alan Peterson
Charman

6 Apnl 2016
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Board of Directors

IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
® o Ol T10I0)
Alan Peterson John Gill Neil Sachdev Steve Trowbridge
Charrnan Chief Executive Officer Independent Non-Executive Chuef Financial Officer
Deputy Chairman

Alan Peterson has served as John Gill joined the Group as Neilis currently chairman of Steve Trowbndge joined the
the Group's Chairman since Chief Financial Officer n February | Market Tech Holdings Limirted Group In 2008 as Group Financial
December 2012 Healso 2008 and was appointed {Carmnden Market), chairman of Controller and was promoted
served as the Group's Chairman Cheef Operating Cfficer n 2014 Martins Properties (Chelsea) 10 Finance Director In 2011,

batween 2004 and 2007 Alan's
axperience over the last 25 years
includes iInvotvement ina number
of public and private equity-
backed businesses across the
UK, Eurcpe and North Amenca
He has held the role of chief
executive officer and charrman

In anumber of manufactunng,
Industnal and retal companies,
including Enterprise Group PLC,
Azels Holdings SA, Rockware
Group and Meyer International
PLC He s alsc the charman of
Pattonar Holdings Limited and
BBI Diagnostics Group

Alan became 31 s first Industnalist
in Residence In 2001, serving
untl 2005 He s a graduate of
Loughborough University and is
aCompanion of the Chartered
Management Institute

Alan charrs the Board's
Nomination Committee

More recently, In September
2015, John was appointed

Chief Executive Officer of the
Group Before joining the Group,
he served as finance director at
Screwfix Direct Lid, a subsidiary
of Kinghsher ple, from June 2006
Pror tothat, John held a number
of roles at Kingfisher plc, ncluding
those of senior corporate
developrnent manager, head

of corporate development and
head of corporate strategy

John worked for GE Caprtal
between 1995 and 2000,
uttirnately senang as the finance
drector of the French operations
of therr asset ieasing company,
European Equipment Finance,
and then finance manager of
mergers and acquisitions far
GE Caprtal He spent his earty
career n vanous finance roles
at Cable & Wircless and BP
John holds a bachelor’s degree
in Chermstry from University of
Sheffield and s an Associate

of the Chartered Instrtute of
Managerent Accountants

Limited, chairman of Exclusive
Contract Services limited and
non-executive director at Intu PLC
where he 1s charman cf the
Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit, Corporate
Responsibiity and Nemination
Committees He also currently
Serves as a non-executive
director of NHS Properties
Lirmted He was formerly group
property director at Tesco plc
and then at J Sainsbury plc

Net 1s a member of the
Board's Audit, Nomination and
Remuneraton Committees

He also chars the Market
Disclosure Committee

betore being appointed Chief
Financial Officer n 2014 Prior

o joning the Group, heheld a
number of positions at Thomson
Reuters, Including investor
relatons manager and most
recently senior head of finance

Steve prewiously worked as an
equity analyst at SG Securties
and as a finance manager at
Cable & Wireless Haholds a
master's degree in Geography
from 5t Hugh's Callegs, Oxford,
and s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, having
qualfied whilst working at Emst
&YoungLLP
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Amanda Burton
Senior Independent
Non-Executva Director

Amanda Burton 1s the senior
independent non-executive
drrector of Monitise PLC and

an independent non-executve
director of Countryside
Properties PLC She charsthe
Remuneration Committee for
both companies Amanda s also
atrustee of Battersea Dogs and
CatsHome Until December
2014 she served as the chief
operating officer of Clifford
Chance LLP She was also
previously the senior independent
non-executive director of Galiford
Try PLC and a non-executive
drrector of Fresca Group Ltd

Amanda s a member of the
Board's Audit and Nomination
Committees, andis Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee

Douglas Robertson
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Doug Raobertsonis finance
drrector of SIG PLC Hewas
previousty finance director of
Umeco ple from 2007 untl 2011,
and finance director of Seton
House Group Limited from 2002
untl 2007 Hehasalso helda
vanety of dwvisional finance
director roles within Wilkams
PLC and was previously
managing director of Tesa Group,
Chubb's hotel secunty division

Doug 1s amember of the Board's
Nomination and Remuneration
Committees, andis Charman

of the Audit Committes

Thomas Sweet-Escott
Non-Executive Director

TFom Sweet-Escott co-founded
Expenent in 2004 Heis pnmanly
responsible for iInvestments In
the financial services sector and
also serves on the Board of
Pattonalr Holdings Limited He
has previously served on the
Boards of Trainline PLC, V Group
and Lowell, and worked for 31in
London andin Madrid He has
amaster's degree in Natural
Sciences from University of
Cambndge

Tomn s a member of the Board'’s
Nominations Committee
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Keyto committees

o Audii Committea

MD, Mariust Disclosure Commatioa
o Nomnantion Commuitiee
Q Ramunaraion Commtiaa
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Corporate
Govemance

Comphance with the Governance Code

The Board 1s committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance and as such has complied with the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code) since the date of the IPO, except
as sat out below

The Code recommends that at least half the Board of Directors of
a UK-listed company, excluding the Charrman, should comprise
Independent Non-Executve Directors As at 26 Decernber 2015
the Company is compliant with the requrements of the Code in this
respect, by virtue of Chns Davies and Fiona Pernn having stepped
down from the Beard and the resutting ratio of Independenit Non-
Executive Directors to other Directors [excluding the Chairman)
being 33 (50%)

Independence s determined by ensunng that, apart from recenng therr
tees for acting as Directors, Non-Executive Directers do not have any
other material relationship or transactons with the Group, its promoters,
1ts management or its subsidiaries, which in the jJudgment of the Board
may affect their ndependence of judgment

Thomas Sweet-Escott, a Non-Executive Direcior, 1s not considered
to be independent for the purposes of the Governance Code as he
represents Exponert Private Equity (Exponent) and related investors
{the Exponent Shareholders), who currently control 50 4% of the
Company's 1ssued shares

On 22 January 2015, the Company, Exponent and the Exponent
Sharehclders entered into a Relationship Agreement which regulates
the ongoing relatonship between them The pringipal purpose of this
agreemant 1S 10 ensure that the Company and its subsidianes are
capable of carrying on: ther business iIndependently of Exponent and
the Exponent Shareholders and that any transactions and relationships
between them are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms

The Code also recommends that the Chairman of the Board of
Directors should meet the ndependence cntena set outin the Code
on appointrment Alan Peterson, the Non-Executive Chairman, was
not considered independent for the purposes of the Code on his
appoirtment as a Director of the Company in January 2015, as a result
of the additional fees paid to him pursuant to a consuttancy agreement
between him, Hero Acquistions Limited and Peterson Consultancy
Services Limrted dunng the period since he became Chaiman of
Hampshire Topco Limited in Decamber 2012 For this reason he is

still not considerad Independent

The Directors recognise that the Charrman 1s not Independent
However, they believe that, In arder 1o ensure masamum continurty
nthe Group’s recent transrtion from a privately owned company to
alisted company, Mr Peterson 1s best placed to be Non-Executive
Charrnan of the Company The Directors believed at the time of the
IPO, and continue to believe that Mr Peterson's significant sector
axpenence and his current and previous expenence as Chairrman of
the Group bnng significant knowledge and expertise whichis and will
continue to be valuable to the Group

Nell Sachdev, Independent Non-Execuiive Deputy Charman of the
Cornpany, Is considered to be iIndependent in character and judgement
and free from relationships or circumstances which may affect, or
appear to affect his judgement

The Code 1s publicly avatable at the following web address
www frc arg uk/Our-Work/Publications/Corporate-Governance/
UK-Corporate-Governance-Code-2014 pat



Leadership

HSS Hire Group pic 43

Annual Report 2015

Key roles and responsibilities

Charman
Alan Peterson

Responsibie for

-» ensunng that the conduct of the Group I1s In accordance with the highest standards of integrty and
probrty, and in accordance with all appropriate governance codes,

-> the leadership and overall effectiveness of the Board, and ensunng that there 1s appropriate
delegation from the Board to executive management,

-» ensunng a clear structure for the operation of the Board and ts Committees,

-> setting the Board agenda in conjunction with the Company Secretary and Chief Executive Officer,

-> ensunng that the Board receves accurats, relevant and tmely information about the Group's affarrs, and

-> ensunng clear two-way communication with shareholders

Chief Executive Officer
John Gill

Respansible for

-» developing the Group's strategy for cansideration and approval by the Board,

- implementing the agreed strategy,

- day-to-day management of the Group's operations, and

- being accountabile to, and reporting to, the Board on the performance of the business

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director
Amanda Burton

Responsible for

- being an alternative contact for shareholders at Board level other than the Chairman,

->acting as asounding board for the Chasmnan,

- ifrequired, being an INtermediary for Non-Executive Directors’ concerns, and

- undertaking the annual Charman's performance evaluation

The Seniar Independent Non-Executive Director carnes out the duties of a Senior Independent
Director for the purposes of compliance with the Governance Code

There 13 a clear differenhation and division of responsibiliies

Board and Committe structure

The Board focuses on

- leadership,

-» nisk assessment and management,

- strategy,

- performance, and

-» monitonng safety, values and standards

in additon there 1s a torrmal schedule of matters reserved for the Board

The Committees each have full terms of reference which can be found on the Company’s website at
www hsshiregroup com/nvestor-relations/corporate-governance

The Board was augmented and strengthened as part of the 2015 IPO process tn order to ensure that
i, and its Committees, has an appropriate range of skills, expenence, knowledge and independence
In order for each to fulfil therr dubies and responsibilities effectively

Non-Executive Directors

The number of Non-Executive Directors and ther range of skills and experence was reviewed
and agreed as part of the 2015 IPO process and subsequently reviewed in the Board Evaluation
(see page 39) The Non-Executive Directors in office are considered to offer an appropriate
batance on the Board and #s Committees
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Corporate Governance
Continued

Governance framework

Alan Peterson
Chairman

Role

- Ensure effectiveness of
the Board

—» Ensure corporate governance

- Ensure effective Board
Comrmittee structure

- Ensure effective
communcations

The Board

The Board compnses seven
Directors, of which frve are
non-executive and three,

Neil Sachdev, Amanda Burton
and Douglas Robertson,

are considered independent
The Board is supported by the
Company Secretary

Role

—2 Lead the Group

- Oversee nsk assessment
and imerma controls

- Oversee strategy

=» Overseathe executve
management

- Monitor performance

= Set values and standards

Audit Commitiee
Allindependent Non-Executive
Directors, chaired by Douglas
Robertson, supported by the
Company Secretary

Role

= Monitor financial reporting

—>Monitor audnt

=> Monttor effectiveness of nsk
managemen? and internal
controls

Remuneration Committee
Allindependent Non-Executive
Directors, charred by Amanda
Burton, supported by the
Company Secretary

Role

-> Determine and review
appropnate Board and senior
executive remuneration policies
and structures

- Detenmine appropriate
rermuneraton packages for
Board and sentor executives

Nomination Committee
AllNon-Executive Directors,
incfuding three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, chaired
by Alan Peterson, supported by
the Comparty Secretary

Role

- Agwise the Board on
composition and membership
Succaession planning

- Adwvisa the Board on
appointmerts

Market Disclosure Committee
Two Non-Executive Directors,
charred by Neill Sachdev, plus the
Chiet Executive Officer or another
Executive Director, supported by
the Comparty Secretary

Role

> Ensure complance with
disclosure requirements

Executive management
Chiet Executive Cfficer, Chief
Financial Officer, Executive
Branch Director and Group
Sales Director

Role
= Fuifil Group strategy

—» Operational management
of the Group

Company Secretary
Patnck Hartrey

Role

=2 Support the Board
and Committees

Attendance at Board and Commitiee meelings of which each Director is amember held between 28 December 2014 and 26 December 2015

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Board!" Committee Committee Commitiee
Executive Directors
Chnis Davies® 8/9® - - -
John Gil 10A11 - - -
Steve Trowbndge 10/11 - - -
Fiona Permn® 3749 - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Alan Peterson 11/11 - - 272
Amanda Burton 11711 5/5 5/5 272
Neill Sachdev 10/11 5/5 5/5 2/2
Douglas Robertson 8/11 5/5 4/5 21
Thomas Sweet-Escott 10711 - - 2/2

(1) Includes the January Board mesting of Hampshire Topco Limited the premaus hoiding company of the Group prior to the Listing of new parent compary HSS Hee Group pic on the Londaon Stock

Exthange i February 2015

@ Chns Davies resigned as a Dwecior of HSS Hire Group pic on 24 September 2015 As a resuft the mavormum number of Board meetings that Chns coud attend was ning
{31 Fiona Pemn resignad as a Director o) HSS Hire Group plc on 15 May 2015 Ag a resuft tha maxsmum number of Board meatinga ihat Fiona could atlend was four




Election of Directors
All the Directors offer themselves for re-election at the AGM of HSS Hire
Group plc tobe held at 1 30pm on 15 June 2016 at Haberdashers' Hall

The biographical detalls of each of the Directors, including details of
ther other drrectorships and relevant skills and expenence, are on
pages 40 and 41 of this report and set out Inthe Notice of AGM

The Beard recommends that shareholders approve the resolutions 1o
be proposed at the AGM relating to the re-election of the Directors

Terms and conditions and time commitments

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are all appointed pursuant
{o formal letters of appointment which outing, amongst cther details,
the remuneration and term of appointrment for each Director

The Charrman devotes such time 1o the affairs of the Company as s
required by his duties In 2015 the Non-Executive Directors spent
approximately 18 days carrying out ther duties There s no fixed penod
required to be committed by the Non-Executive Directors, so this may
change over time as therr vanous duties and commiiments change If
required by changing circumstances

In order to faciitate proper debate and consideration, all Directors are
expected 1o attend Board and Committee meetings to which they are
Invited In person

Chns Davies, John Gill and Steve Trowbndge did not attend the
January Board meeting of Hampshire Topco Limted because they
were attending a pre-1PO rcadshow ahead of the IPO of HSS Hire
Group plc n February 2015

The Executive Directors of the Company may, and generally do, attend
meetings of the Committees at the iInvitation of the Chairman of the
raspective Committee These attendances are not recorded in the
table set cut above:

The Market Disclosure Comnmittee did not meet during the year

Conflicts of nterest
Exponent and the Expenent Shareholders currently controt 50 4% of
the Company’s issued shares

Thomas Sweet-Escott s a partner at Exponent and Alan Peterson has
along-standing business relationship with Exponent and is chairman
of Pattonair Holdings Limted, EAGLE SPV 1 Limited, EAGLE SPV 2
Limited, EAGLE SPV 3 Lmited and EAGLE SPV 4 Limited, which are
each Exponent porticlio companies

Amanda Burton and Neil Sachdev are each Non-Executive Directors of
certain existing customers of the Group The Board has satisfied itself
that nesther customer is matenal enough to create a poteniial confiict of
interest In the event that erther of these customers or other companies
where any of the Directors are also appointed as Direciors were to
become material by virtue of their trade with the Group or ancther
business reason, the relevant Director would be expected tc declare
therr connection 1o the customer/cormpany and the Board would
assess whether a conflict of interest anses and the approprate action
1o be taken

Save as set out above, there are no current or potential conflicts
of Interest between any duties owed by the Directors or senior
management to the Company and therr private interests or other dutes

Any Directors’ conflicts of interest are declared to the Board and
recorded by the Company Secretary
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Effectiveness

Board composition

The Board and Committees are considered to have an appropnate
range of expenence, skills and knowledge 10 fulfil ther dutes Profiles
of each Board member are provided on pages 40 and 41

The five Non-Executive Directors, Alan Peterson, Nel Sachdey,
Amanda Burton, Douglas Robertson and Thomas Sweet-Escott,
represent a majorty of Board members and provide a broad range
of skills and expenence

The two Executive Directors, John Gill and Steve Trawbndge, bring
avanety of sector expenence to the Board Two further Executive
Directors, Chns Dawes and Fiona Pemin, stood down from their roles
dunng the year

Nell Sachdev, Amanda Burton and Douglas Robertson are
considered independent Together they form bath the Audit, and

the Remuneration commitees of the Beard The Market Disclosure,
Remuneration and Aucit Committees are chaired by Independent
Non-Executve Directors, Nell Sachdev, Amanda Burion and Douglas
Robertson respectvely

Appointments to the Board

Any future appointments 1o the Board will be made by the Nomination
Committes, which 1s composed exclusively of Non-Executive Directors,
the majonty of which are considered independent The Nomination
Commities is chared by the chairman of the Board, Alan Peterson
other than at such time when the Normination Commitiee 1S dealing
with the appointment of a successor to the Chairman

Overview of Board's work during 2015
The Board met 11 tmes durnng 2015

Regutar agenda items for the Boardinctuded, and will include in 2016

- operating and financial performance,

— health and safety,

- nskandthe nskregister,

- setting and approving strategy,

— major capital expenditure, and

- evalualion of acquisrtion opportunities

Ad hoc and specific items reviewed by the Board during the year
Included, and wilt includa in 2016

- the Annual Report and Accounts,

— the Intenm {hali-year) Report and Accounts,

- the quarterly reporting required under the reporting requirements
of the Notes together with any associated trading updates,

— RNS releases relating to Directorate changes,

— approval of annual budget, and

-~ approval of acquisitons

The Board delegates authonty to the foliowing committees

- Audit Committee,

- Remuneration Committes,

— Nomination Committes, and

~ Market Disclosure Committee

Board evaluation
Board, Committee and senior management evaluations have been
carmed out as detalled on page 39
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Corporate Governance
Continued

Board training

Dunng the year, all independent Non-Executive Directors were given an
inducton programmsa, covenng their statutory and regulatory duties
and responsibilities as Directors, as well as an extensive grounding in
the business itself The business-related training Invoived meetings and
discussion with corporate functions such as Finance, Marketing and
Procurement, as well as custormer-facing functions including HSS
OneCall, Key Accounts and Customer Care iNon-Executve Directors
were also given extensive site visits to vanous types and sizes of
distnbution centres and branches, to better understand the day-to-day
operatons of the bustness and the issues facing it

The Executve Directors also took part in the Blackwood Evaluahon
(see page 50) which assisted in the assessment and identfication of an
indvidual’s existing strengths and development/coaching requirernents

Access to information and support

The Board are prowided with an agenda and supporting papers and
documentation ahead of Board and/or Committee meetings to give
them the time to read, rewew and consider the information presented
The Board also have access to the Company Secretary and can
request independent adwice at the Company’s expense where
approprate Senior executive management are also frequently present
at Board meetings as deemed appropriate, and the Board can access
such colleagues at any time

Accountability

Financtal and business reporting

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annua! Report and the
financial staternents n accordance with applicable law and regulations,
and as set out In the Directors’ Responsbility Statement (see page 72),
the Board considers that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken
asawhole, is far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess HSS' position and
performance, business mode! and strategy

Risk management and internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for determining the nature and
extent of the principal nsk it 1s willing to take to achieve its strategic
objectives and for establishing and mantaining a sound system of nsk
management and Intemal control, and for reviewang s effectiveness

The principal nsks and uncertanties facing the Company and how
these are being managed/mtigated are detalled on pages 28 to 31

The Group's nsk management and internal control system is designed
1o manage, rather than elminate, the nsks facing the Group and
safeguard rts assets No system of internal control can provide absolute
assurance agamnst matenal misstatement orloss The Group's system
1S desighed to provide the Directors with reasonable assurance that
1ssues are identified on a timely basis and are dealt with appropnately

The Audit Committes {(whose make up, remit and report are set out
on pages 48 and 48) assisis the Board in reviewing the effeciveness
of the Group's nsk system of Intermal control, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk managerment systems
This i1s carmed out with the assistance of the CFO and the Risk and
Assurance Director in an annual review, which 1s supported by the
findings of specific projects/investigations completed by the internal
audit teamn dunng the financial year

Whistleblowing

The company has for several years had a formal whistieblowing
process, whereby any colleague may contact certain nominated
members of senior management {(Group General Counsel, Executive
Branch Director and Marketing Director) to raise any concerns they may
have In complete anormymity These concerns will then be investigated
Independentty and the resutts shared with the whistieblower for

further discussion f necessary This process is communicated to all
colleagues annualty to therr home addresses, and details are also
avalable on the group infranet, HSS World

Going concemn and lcng-term viability statement

Note 1{g} of the Financial Statements sets out the basis on which the
Directors continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparnng the
Annual Report and Accounts

In summary, taking Into account the adequacy of the Group's detot
facilities, current and future developments and the paunapal nsks and
uncertanties (see page 28), and after malking appropnate enquires, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources o continue In operaticnal existence for the foreseeable future

Accordingly they continue to adopt the gong concerm basis in
prepanng the Financial Statements included within this Annual Report

In accordance wath provision C 2 2 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2014, the Directors have assessed the vabiity of the Group
over a three-year pencd, taking intc accourt the Group's current
position, strategic plans, and the potentia impact of the prnncipal nisks
and uncertantes documented onpages 28 to 31 Based onthis
assessment, and all other matters considered and reviewed at Board
level dunng the year the Directors confirmthat they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to contnue In cperation and
meet 1S labities as they fall due over the penod to 29 December 2018

Whilst the Directors have no reason to beleve the Group 1S not viable
over alonger penod they have determined that three years 1s the
appropnate tme over which 10 provide the wiabiiity staternert because

— itreflects a penod over which the Directors can have a reasonable
view of the future In the context of the market emvironment in which
the Group operates, and

— 1t1s consistent with the tme covered by the Group's current strategic
plans and mode!

The Group's annual budgeting and forecasting process Involves the
preparation of an annual budget, and a roling three year strategic
mode! that also includes planned strategic actions and cther specific
assumptions regarding revenue growth, cost trends and capital
expenditure across the Group

Where appropnate, sensitrty analysis 1s undertaken to test the
resiience of the Group to vanous scenancs Whilst all of the principal
nsks and uncertainties were considered, the following were considered
In greater detal dunng the sensitivity analysis macroecenomic
condtions and competitor challenge, n addition to a changing

cost profile

The pnncipal efiects assessed, together with theirr mpact on the
Group's financial statements were therefore

- Reductions in revenue growth rates (market or company specific),
- Increases in costs/rates of cost growth {excluding finance costs),
- Changes in capital expenditure requirements, and

- Changes infinance costs (lUBOR}

In addition to the mitigating factors sdentfied on pages 28 to 31, the
Board noted that the Group has a diversified customer base, a history
of winning new custormers, expectations that no single customer wall
account for more than 5% of revenues, and that the top 20 customers
are expected to account for only ¢ 20% of revenuas Alongside this the
Group has a contimuous profile of lease expines that allows a matenal
porticn of the portfolio to be exsted 1n any one year and the Group's
ability to match capital iInvestment 1o customer demand acts to support
cash generation

With regards to sources of finance, the Board have no reason 1o believe

the Group will not be able to re-finance the Group’s existing £136m !
Senior Secured Notes and associated Revolving Credit Faciity betore

they become repayable in 2019




Statement on disclosure of information to the Auditor
The Directors who held office as at 6 Apnl 2016 each confirm that

a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audt information
of which the Company's auditer 1s unaware, and

b) he/she has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a
director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware of
that information

This confirnation s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Remuneration

The Remuneration and Audit Committees are composed exclusively
of Independent Non-Executve Directers, able to jJudge and achieve an
appropnate balance between incentivising executive directors and the
potential impact on the Company’s nsk profile

The Remuneration Committee fwhose make-up, remit and report are
set out on pages 52 1o 68) sets the polcy for and detal of executive
remuneration The full policy 1s descrbed in full n the Remuneration
Committee report on pages 52 to 68

Both the charrman of the Remuneration Committee, Amanda Burton,
and the Board's Deputy Chairman, Nel Sachdev have significant
expenence on the remuneration committees of other listed companies

Relations with shareholders

Shareholder engagement

The Board is committed to communicating with shareholders and
stakehdlders in a clear and open mianner, and sesks to ensure effective
engagement through the Company's websie, its reguiar public
communications, the AGM and other investor relations actvities

In addrtion to its ongoing reporting obligaticns the Comparty
undertakes a programme of meetings with existing and/or potential
insttutional Investors and equrty analysts, led by the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer These meetings, together with
Investor feedback collected via our brokers, enable us to assess
analyst and investor sentment and to olstain external Insight on how
our performance and growth strategy 1s perceived and interpreted
Asummary report on investor interacton and feedback is then
provided to each Board meeting to keep the wider Board informed

Durning 2015 there have been a total of over 80 such meetings/
presentations and three investor conferences were attended

As well as such meetings and announcements, teleconference calls
are held with instituticnal iInvestors and analysts throughout the year,
copies of relevant presentation matenals are made avalable on the
Company’s website to the extent they differ from the latest publicly
released results presentations

The Non-Executive Directors are avalable for discussion with
shareholders on matters under therr areas of responsibiity They can
be contacted at any tme via the Company Secretary ar directly at

the AGM Al drectors are expected to attend the AGM, providing
shareholders with the opportunity to guestion thern about issues
relating tothe Group, erther dunng the meeting or informally atterwards

The Company reports its financial results to shareholders twice a year,
with the publication of its Annual and Half-Year Financial Reports
More imned trading updates are also provided to the market generally
on aquarterly basis
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The Company also produces quarterly financial reports consolidated
at the Hero Acquisiions Lmited group level to meet the reporting
cbligations of the Notes issued in February 2014 The Notes are held
within HSS Financing ple, a wholly owned direct subsidiary of Hero
Acquistions Limited, iiself a wholly owned subsidiary of HSS Hire
Group plc

These quarterly reports are principally of use to noteholders as they
provide information on the financial performance of the Notes'
guarantor group rather than the Company To aid shareholders'
understanding of the difference between Hero Acquisitions Limited's
and HSS Hire Group plc's results, the Company provides high level
trading updates for HSS Hire Group plc an a quarterly basis

All ot the above menticned reports are made avallable for download
to noteholders and sharehalders in the investor relations section of
the Company's website, www hsshiregroup com/investor-relations

Significant shareholders

Based on TR-1 notifications recenved the parties who hold 3% or
more of the Issued share capital of the Company as at 6 Apn! 2016
are as follows

Number of

ordinary

shares
Name of 1p % holding
Exponent® 77,959,090 50 37%
Standard Lite Capital Partners LLP 13,958,980 802%
Fidelity International Limited® 12,191,756 7 88%
Toscatund Asset Management LLP® 8,302,269 536%

Details of Directors' interests iIn the Company's ordinary share capital
are provided in the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 52 to 68

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held at 1 30pm on
15 June 2016 at Haberdashers' Hall, 18 West Smithfield, London
EC1A9HQ All shareholders are invited to the Company's AGM, at
which they will have the opportunity to put questions to the Beard
Detalls of the Resclutions proposed and being voted on are provided
in the Notice of AGM provided to shareholders and avalable for
download at the Group website, www hsshiregroup com

Retations with other capital providers

The Board recognise the contribution made by other providers of
capital to the growth and perfoermance of the Group and welcome
the views of such parties in relation to the Group's approach to
corporate governance

(1) Compnses shareholdings hisld by Expongnt Prvate Equity Partners GP Lid (UK) and Exponent
Havana Co Invest Partners (UK)

2) Compnses shareholdings held by the Fidelty Special Stuatons tund the Fidelrty UK Srmaller
Companiesfund the Fidelity Spacial Values fund and the Fidslity Index UK fund

@) Cornprises shareholdings held by the Tosca Mid Cap fund the Tosca Opportunity fund andthe

Pegasus fund
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Audit Committee
Report

IMAGE REMOVED

The Committee has
satisfied itself that

the Annual Report

is fair, balanced and
understandable and
provides the information
necessary for shareholders
to assess the company’s
position and performance,
business model

and strategy.

Douglas Robertson
Committee Chairman

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Audit Comnmittee ("the Committee’), | am pleased to
present our report far the 2015 financtal year

The Committee has reviewed the contents of the 2015 Annual Report
and Accounts and advised the Board that it considers the report 1o
be far, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary far shareholders 10 assess the company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy

Activities
The Committee met five imes In 2015 Allmembers attended
these meetings

fts mamn activities durng 2015 included, and will include in 2016
— adopting s terms of reference,

- planning agenda itams and work schedule for the year,

— approving external auditors and audit plan,

— reviewing accounting policies,

— reviewing internal control systems,

— considenng nskmanagement systems, and

— reviewng the nsk register

External financial reporting

The Committee Is responsible for monitonng and reviewing the
financial statements and reviewing compliance with legal, regulatory
and statutory requirements, grving due consideration to the provisions
of the Combined Code

The Committes reviewed the annual and ntenm financial statements
and trading updates released dunng the year with particular focus on
the following significant areas

- camying value of goodwili and intangible assets,
hire stock existence and valuation,

onerous leases,

acquistion accounting, and

~ revenue recognition — cut off and sales rebates

These areas are identfied as significant due to their complexity, size,
level of judgerent required and/or potential impact on the financial
staternents and our strategy

Anoverview of each of these areas 15 set out below

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets

The carmying value of goodwill and intangibles was reviewed at the year

end Aconsistent methodology is applied to each of the Indmdual cash

generating units, taking account of market outlook, nsk-adjusted

discounted future cash flows, sensitivities and other factors which rmay

have a bearing on impament consideratons  As a resutt of this work the

Commnitiee has concluded that no impainment provisions are required |

Hire stock existence and valuation

Rental ncome earned on matenals and equipment held for hire

which s owned by the Group ('hire stock’) is a large cormnponent of the
Group's revenues As such the existence of hire stock 1s impoertant io
the ongoing abiity of the Group to generate revenue from 1its assets
Certain of the Group's funding arrangements are also knked to speciic
assets or asset classes The Committes has therefore given careful
consideration 1o the controls In place 1o verfy the physical existence
and appropnate valuation of hire stock together with the processes for
verfying the reliability of the accounting systems and records, and have
concluded that appropnate systems are in place




Onerous leases

The Committee reviewed with Management the basis of property
related provisions for properties that the Group no longer utlises
(dark stores’), ncluding the estirmates and judgerments appled

by management in assessing the exstence and level of provision
The Commitiee assesses that the approach adopted 1s reasonable

Acquisition accounting

In May 2015 the Group acquired All Seasons Hire Limited Inthe
Group's Interim Resutts, the entire value relating 1o intangible assets
inrespect of All Seasons Hire Limited was provisionally allocated to
goodwil Anindependent valuation of the brand and customer
relationships was completed in October 2015, consideration of which
resulted I a reclassification of a portion of googwill nto customner
relationships and brand The Committee assesses that this approach
ensured the year-end accounts reflect an appropnate split of Intangible
assets In relation to the All Seasons Hire Limited acquistion

Revenue recognition — cut-off and revenue related rebates

The Committee examined the procedures and controls in place to
ensure that the reporting and recognition of revenue, especially for
open hires over the year end, and also the recognition of any revenue
related rebate accruals 1s appropnate

In addrtion 1o the above areas the Committee reviewed the costs
that were identfied as exceptional, and considered the prnciples of
merger accounting as adopted in the financial statements For both,
they concluded that the approach adopted was appropnate for the
2015 accounts

Externa! audtor

The Commitiee oversees the Group's relationship with the external
auditor and formally reviews the relatonship, pokcies and procedures
1o ensure therr ndependence The Group's external auditor, BDO,
also reports to the Committee on the steps it has taken to safequard
1ts Independence and to comply wath reélevant professional and
regulatory requirements

BDO have been auditors to the Group for over 10 years, with the lead
audit partner being rotated on aregular basis Thelast tender for the

audit occurred in 2005 The Board considers that the independence
ot BDO, as auditors has not been, noris likely to be compromised

During the year the Committee reviewed and agreed the scope of
BDO's work, their audit fees and terms of engagement for the half
year intenm results review and full year FY15 audit The fees for audit
services paid 1o BDO are set out in note € of the financial statements

The Commitiee also assessed the effectiveness of the external

audit process dunng the year This assessment was based on the
Committee's interaction with the External Auditor at Committee
meetings and through feedback from the Group Finance team As
aresult of this exercise, the Committee has satisfied itself that BDO
continue to provide an effective audit service to the Company and its
subsidianes and the Committee has made a recommendation to the
Board that a resolution for the re-appointment of BDO be proposed
atthe AGM

Non-audit work and independence

The Audit Commitiee has formalised its pobicy for non-audt services
provided by the Group's external auditors This policy IS designed to
ensure that if and when the Group's external auditors are engaged to
provide non-aucit services the prowision of those senaces does not
impair nor can it be 1o seen to impar the Group auditor’s independence
and objectmty The policy identifies Permitted Engagements, Excluded
Engagements and Potential Engagements and can be viewed on

the Group's website at www hsshiregroup com/investor-relations/
corporate govemnance

In 2015, BDO carned out a small amount of due dligerce reporting
In respect of potental and completed acquisitions Thetees for thig
non-audi service are set out In note 6 of the financial statements
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The Committee does not consider that this work has compromised the
Independence of the auditors by viriue of the safeguards implemented
by and agreed with BDO These safeguards principally consisted of the
use of a separate team of specialists to deliver the non-audi service

RAisk management and intemal controls

An overview of the Company's approach to risk, nsk management and
internal controls, together with a summary of the principal nsks imvolved
in the business, can be found on pages 28 to 31

During 2015, the Committes reviewed the overall nsk management and
internal control framework, InCluding the Board's appetite for nsk, the
wark and role of the internal audit team and the underlying process for
captunng and reporting nisk and control data A nsk management and
internal contrel overview document was produced by relevant senior
personnel within the head office functions, Including the CFO, Risk and
Assurance Director and Company Secretary to assist the Committesin
thelr assessment

As aresult of this revsew the Cormnmittee has satisfied nself that the
Group has an appropriate nsk management and internal control
framework tn place This has ensured that the Group has made the
transition to the public company regulatory envirenment as smoaothly
as possible This work will be ongoing in 2016

Whistleblowing

The Commitiee believes that appropriate arrangements and policies
areIn place to faciltate the proporticnate and independent investigation
of, and implementation of appropriate follow-up acton inrelation to
confidential concemns raised by staff via the whistleblowing process
{see page 46)

Meeting schedule

The Committee meets as often as 1s deemed necessary, but at least
three times a year at appropriate times in the financtal reporting and
auditcycle [t normally nvites the external auditar, Chief Financial
Officer and Risk and Assurance Director to attend each meeting
Other members of the senior management team attend as inuted

Roles and respaonsibilities

The Committee has responsibiity for overseeing the financial reporting
and internal financial and nsk management controls of the Group,

as well as mantaining an approprate relatonship with the external
auditor of the Group and reporting its findings and recommendations
tothe Board

The Committee’s full terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website at www hsshiregroup convinvestor-relations/
corporate-govemance A summary of is key responstbilities include

- recemng and reviewing the Annual Report and Accounts and half
yearly fmancial statements and allrelated pubhc financial
announcements and adwvising the Board on whether the Annual
Report and Accounts arefair, balanced and understandable,

- recemng and reviewing reports from the external auditor,
mornitonng therr effectiveness and independence and approving
ther appointment and therr terms of engagement,

— monitoring the effectiveness of the Group’s nsk management
System,

- revemng the effectiveness of the Group's systemn of iInternal financial
controls and internal control and compliance systems, and advising
1he Board as appropnate,

— overseeing the Group's procedures for detecting fraud and
whistieblowing arrangements

Douglas Robertson
Comimittee Charman

6 Apri 2016
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Nomination
Committee
Report

IMAGE REMOVED

Following the completion

of our first Board evaluation,
the Committee considers
there to be an appropriate
balance of skills, experience
and knowledge on

the Board.

Alan Peterson
Committee Chairman

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Nomination Committee ('the Committee’), | am
pleased to present our report for the 2015 financial year

Our approach

The Committee’s pnmary purpese I1s to ensure that the Group has
the best possible leaderstip and a clear plan for both executive and
Non-Executive Director succession fts pnmary tocus istherefore to
concentrate upon the strength of the Board and the selection of the
best canddates for posts, based on objective critena and wrth due
regard for the benefits of dwersity

Policy on diversity

In performing its activities through the year the Committee has applied
the Group's equality and diversity policy, which it believes 1s appropriate
for application at all fevels of the business, Including Board and senicr
management appointments and/or succession planning Further detal
on the Group's equality and diversity policy 1s provided on page 69

Activities

The Nominaton Committee met twice In 2015 and has met once

In 2016 A meeting was held In September 2015 to consider the
appointment of John Gill as Chuef Executive Officer, following Chns
Dawvies’ standing down from the role Further meetings were held in
December 2015 and January 2016 to consider and finalise the Board
evaluation In respect of 2015

There were two elements 1o the Board evaluation

1) The ‘Intemal Evaluation’
A guestionnarre addressing the key requirements of the |
Combined Code and relating to the Board and each of the the four w
sub-committees of the Board ({the 'Committees’) was cireulated to
Board members and completed by each of them

This questionnare provided an opportunity for all Directors to provide '
feedback on the Chairman, for Executive Directors to provide feedback

on the Non-Executive Directors and vice versa, and also for all Directors

to pravide feedback on the function of the Commitiees

2) The 'Blackwood Evaluation’
In addrtion, a process for the evaluation of certain Executive Directors
and senicr management was commissioned dunng 2015 with
the assistance of Blackwood Recrutment LLP A separate team
from Blackwood Recruitment LLP, alongside other established
recrutment companies has also provided executive search services
to the Group within the year

The findings of both the Intemal Evaluation and the Blackwood
BEvaluation were discussed by the Committee and also the Board,
with the Cammittee determining any reguired actions resutting from
erther evaluation

The Interna! Evaluation showed there 10 be an appropnate balance of
skills, expenence, iIndependence and knowledge on the Board The
Committees wera assessed to be functiorning well and their terms of
reterence were considered to be apprepriate The contnbutions from
the Nen-Executive Directors were valued by the Executive Directors
and further apportunities for drawing on the expenences of the
Nen-Executive Directors for the henefit of the Executive Directors
and the Group were discussed

In addrtion to evaluation at Board level, the Committes, assisted by the
findings af the Blackwood Evaluation, focused onidentitying talented
individuals ior promotion or moving INte key management roles acress
the Group n order t¢ complement therr particular skill sets and to
encourage the cortnued development of such ndwduals Accordingly,
the Committee has made certan recommendations to the Board with
regard 1o changes In the operational management structure of the
Group and related successicn planning, all of which it 1s imtended will

be implemented through 2016

Meeting schedule
The Comrmittes will meet as often as is desmed necessary but inany
event at least two tmes a year

Roles and responsibilities

The Committee's full terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website at www hsshiregroup com/investor-relations/
corperate-governance A summary of its key responsibiities
inciude overseeing

— Board and senior management appointments,

- Board compesition, including the balance of executive and
Non-Exacutive Directors,

— succession planning,

- Job specifications, searches and evaluation of candidates for Board
and senior management appointments, and

- Board evaluation :

Alan Peterson
Committee Chaimnan

6 April 2016
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Committee Report

IMAGE REMOVED

All decisions that could
have beenreferred to the
Committee were discussed
at full Board meetings
during the year.

Neil Sachdev
Committee Chairman
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Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Market Disclosure Cormmittee ('the Commitieg’), fam
pleased to present our report for the 2015 financial vear

Activities
The Cormmittee did not meetin 2015 Al decisions that could have
been referred to the Commrttee were discussed at full Board meetings

Meeting schedule

The Committee will mest as often as 1s deemed necessary
The membership of the Committee s flexible in order to faciltate
speed of action In the event of market sensiive Information ansing
at short notice

Roles and responsibilities

The Committee’s full terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s websile at www hsshrregroup com/investor-relatons/
corporate-governance A summary of s key responsibiities include

- ensunng that the Comparny compilies with its disciosure
requiremnents under the Disclesure and Transparency Rules, and

~ considenng certa:n information and deciding whether such
infermation 1s Insider Information and whether i gves nse toan
obligation to make an announcement

Neil Sachdev
Committee Chairman

6Apn 2016
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Directors’
Remuneration
Report

IMAGE REMOVED

We have refined our
remuneration policies
through the course of

the year to align Director
remuneration with
developing best practice
and to incentivise and
reward the right behaviours
to support the overall
strategy of the Group.

Amanda Burton
Committea Charman

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Beard, our Directors'
Remuneration Report in respect of the year ended 26 Decernber 2015

This ts our first Directors’ Remunerabon Report for a financial year
ending after Admission to the Lendon Stock Exchange on 9 February
2015 and, In accordance with the applicable regulations, 1s presented
In two sectons

- the Directors' Remuneration Policy (see page 54) this sets out
our forward-looking remuneration policy tor Directors, and

- the Annual Report on Remuneration (see page 63) this provides
details of the remuneration eamed tyy Directors in the year ended
December 2015 and how we iIntend to apply the Directors’
Remuneration Palicy in FY16

Atthe 2016 AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be subject to
abinding vote and the Annual Report on Bemuneration will be subject
0 an advsory vote

How we link executive remuneration to our strategy

in anticspation of Admission, the Remuneration Commitiee (the
‘Committee’) undertook a review of its remuneration policy for
Directors i order to ensura that it 1s appropriate for a listed
company During the course of the year, the Commuttee has further
developed the policy to take account of developing best practice

We take a disciplined approach to executive remuneration, ensunng
that we incentvise and reward the right behawviours 1o support

the overall strategy of the Group Our executive remuneration
arrangements are designed to support the Company's three
strategic pricnities In the summary below, we have highighted

how certain elements ot the remuneration policy are related to

the strategic enablers which underpin those strategic priorities

Annual
Bonus

Focus on profitability and growth The pnncipal
performance measure for the annual bonus s EBITA,
reflecting our focus on profitability and growth
Ensure safe, sustainable working environments
for colleagues and customers We include

a Health and Satety measure in the strategic
objectives far the annual bonus, reflecting that this
15 a key market differentiator for our customers
Deliver value and quality to our customers
The annual bonus takes account of our customers
by the use ot NPS as a performance measure
Invest in our colleagues Dsvelopment of

the team 1s used as a strategic measure In the
annual bonus

Deferred
Bonus
Plan

Focus on profitability and growth The deferrat of
any bonus over 50% of the maximum strengthens
algnment between executive reward and the longer
term profitability and growth of the business

LTIP Focus on profitability and growth The Adjusted
EPS element of the LTIP awards captures long-
term earnings growth and the delivery of value to

shareholders over the longer term
Drive availability and operational efficiency”

The use of ROCE reflects the focus on operational
and capiial efficiency

All Invest in our colleagues We adopted an all
employee employes SAYE schema at IPO to enable the wider
share workiorce to share in value created and strengthen
plan a tearn ethos As referenced In our Prospectus,

the Board intended to grant the first awards in

2015 However, after careful consideration of the
Company’s performance dunng the first half of 2015,
the Board decided to posipone the launch of the
scheme The scheme remains ready to launch, and
the Board continues to appraise the appropnate tme
todo so
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QOur policy on executive remuneration 1s designed to promate the
long-term success of the Company, In hine with our focus on profitability
and growth The policy aligns the imterests of shareholders and
executives by the use of shareholding gudelines Algnment is further
enhanced by the deferral of part of the bonus under the Deferred
Bonus Plan and the two year holding period applied to the LTIP

FY15 performance and annual bonus cutcome

The Group's performance in FY151s summansed on pages 22 to 27
We delivered revenue growth ahead of the marketplace, wiilst
cortinung to iInvest inthe business and maka good progress agamst
our strategic plan, however, tha year was challenging and, In many
ways, disappainting The challenging nature of FY15 meant that
although we iIncreased revenue, the EBITA targets for the FY15 annual
bonus were not achieved and no amount was samed in relation to this
part of the bonus Following a robust assessment by the Commrttee
of the strateg:c and personal objectives relating to the balance of

the annual bonus {(10% of the overall opportunity), the Cammittee
determined that bonuses would be earned of ¢ 7% of salary, further
detail in relation 1o the performance achieved and the associated
bonuses earned 1s set out on pages 63 to 68

The Company’s first long-term incentive awards will be those granted
Inrespect of FY16, as referred to below Accordingly, there are no
long-terrn incentive outcomes to report in relation to FY15

Reward for FY16

FY16 will see the first year of full operation of our Directors’
Remuneration Folicy The policy s subject to a binding shareholder
vote at the 2016 AGM and, subject to approval by sharehclders, will
become effective from that date (although in practice we have applied
it from the start of FY16 and throughout FY15)

Executve Director salanes

In ing with the salary review imetable for all other employees, the
Executive Directors' base salaries will be reviewed during June 2016,
with any changes taking effect from 1 July 2016 Any increaseis
expected to be modest and in line with the range of salary Increases
awarded to other employees in the Group

Annual bonus

The overall bonus oppertunity will remain at 100% of salary, with
performance measures spit between EBITA and personal/strategic
measures We have, however, re-balanced the weighting of the
performance metncs from 90 10 to 85 15, EBITA o personal/strategic
measures This re-balancing recognises that 15% 1s a more meaningiul
mechanism to reflect the lead indicators which will result in improved
business performance in the future

While the EBITA targets are not disclosed for commercial confidentiality
reasons, we will disclose themn in fullin the 2016 Directors’
Remuneration Report { DRR') whern we report the performance outtum
for 2016 The targets have been set by reference to the 2016 budget
and require outperformance of tha budget for the maximum EBITA
element of the bonus to be eamed, reflecting our focus on profitability
and growth The personal and strategic measures are similarty
confidential, but tie directly into the Company's strategy and support
the strategic enablers which underpin the achievernent of our strategic
pnonties We will report in the 2016 DRR on how we performed against
those measures and how any bonus earned for 2016 by reference to
them reflects 2016's performance
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LTIP

In 2016 we propose to make the first awards under the LTIP that we
adopted at the tme of the IPO The usual maximum LTIP award
opporiunity for Executrve Directors 1s 125% of salary However, taking
Imto accourt the current share price, 2016 awards will be at the level of
100% of salary (with smaller awards for below board particpants) Itis
the Remuneration Commyttee's imerntion to grant the usual maximum
opportunity of 125% of salary in 2017, but this will be assessed at the
time Awards will vest subject to performance over a three-year penod
ending with 2018 The performance condrions will be based on
Adjusted EPS (as regards 75% of the award) and ROCE (as regards
25% ot the award) The performance targets are set out on page 67

Reflecting developments in best practice since the IPO, we have
amended the LTIP to Inciude a two-year holding penod following the
end of the performance period, demaonstrating our commitment to
shareholders and strong governance

Ihope that you will agree that our proposals reflect a sensible and
disciplined approach to executive remuneration and that you will
support the resclutions to be proposed at the 2016 AGM i relation
to the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Amanda Burton
Charman of the Remuneration Committee

6 Apnl 2016

At a glance summary: Executive Directors' remuneration

Shareholder approval will be sought for the Directors' Remuneration
Policy at the 2016 AGM (ses page 39)

FY15 annual bonuses earned of approximately 7% of salary based
on achievement of strategic and personal objectives (see pages 64
and 65)

No change in maximum bonus opportunity for FY16 Bonus will be
based on EBITA (85%) and strategic and personal cbjectives (15%j}
(see page 53)

Salaries for FY16 will be considered in June at the same time as tor
the wider workforce Any increase will be in Lne with the range of
Increases awarded to other employees

FY16 will see the first operation of the LTIP with awards vesting
based on Adjusted EPS and ROCE targets (see page 67)

Reflecting best practice developments, a two year holding penod
has been added to the LTIP following the performance penod
{ses page 56)
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Key principles
HSS Hire's remuneration package for Executive Directors has been
designed based on the following key pnnciples

— to promote the long-term success of the Company, with transparert
and stretching performance conditions, which are ngorously appked,

- to provide appropniate alignment between the Company’s
strategic goals, shareholder returns and executive reward, and

— tohave a competitive mix of base salary and short and
long-term incentives, with an appropriate proportion of the
package determined by stretching targets inked o the
Company’s performance

Policy table for Executive Directors

suitable calibre

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation
Base To provide a competitive base salary for the market tn which | Sataries are usually reviewsd annually taking into account
salary the Group operates to atiract and retan Executives of a

- undertying Group performance,

- role, expenence and indvdual performance;

- competiive salary levels and market forces, and

- pay and condmions eisewhere In the Group

the total remuneration package

Benefits To provide broadly market competitive benefits as part of Executive Directors receive benefits in line with market

practice, and these include Iife insurance, pnvate medical
insurarce, company car or car allowance and, where
relevant, relocation expenses

Other benefits may be provided based on individual
circurnstances Thaese may Include, for example,
travel expenses

benefits {or cash allowance equivalent)

Retirement To provice an appropnate level of retirement benefit

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the
Group defined contnbution pension plan In approprate
circumstances, such as where contnbutions exceed
the annual or lifetime allowance, Executive Directors
may be permitted to take a cash supplement insteatd
of contributions 10 a pansion plan

Scheme of ownership

Sharesave To create algnment with the Group and promote a sense Executive Directors are entitied to participate In a tax-

qualifying all employee Sharesave Scheme under which
they may make monthly savings contnbulions over a
penad of thres or five years lnked to the grant of an
option over the Company’s shares with an option price
which can be at a discount of up to 20% of the market
value of shares at grant

bonus strategic direction of the Group

Annual Rewards performance against targets which support the Awards ara based on performance {typically measured over

a year) against key financial targets and/or the delivery of
strategic/indmdual objectives

Pay-out levels are determined by the Comruttee after the
ysar end based on performance against those targets

The Commitiee has discretion to amend the pay-out should
any formulaic output not reflect the Committee's assessment
of overall business pertormance

For up to two years following the payment of a bonus
award, clawback provisions will apply such that the
Committee may reguire the repayment of some or all of the
award in the circumstances set out at the foot of this table
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Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

While there 1s no maximum salary, increases will normally be in ine
with the range of salary increases awarded (in percentage of salary
terms) to other employees in the Group

Salary increases abcve this level may be awarded to take account
of indiwidual circumstances, such as, but not Imited to

->where an Executve Director has been promated or has had a change
N scope or responsibilty,

- an indwidual’s development or performance inrole (e g 1o align a newly
appainted Executive Director's salary with the market over time),

- where there has been a change in market practice, or

-» where there has been a change in the size and/or complexty of
the business

Increases may be /mplemented over such time penod as the
Committee deems appropriate

Not applicable

Whilst the Committee has not set an absolute maximum on the lavel
of benefits Executive Directors may receive, the value of benefits 1s
set at a level which the Committee considers 1o be appropriately
positioned taking into account relevant market levels based on the
nature and location of the mole and individual crcurmstances

Not applicable

The contnbution levels for the year 2016 are st at 10% of salary

Contributions of up to 15% of base salary may be made to
take account of a change in the scope of the role, increase In
responstbility and/or a change in the size and/or complexity of
the business

Executive Directors may be permitted to take a cash supplement
instead of contnbutions to a pension pian to the same level

Not applicable

Participation imits are those set by the tax authonties from time
to time

Not applicable

Maximum annual bonus opportunity 1s 100% of base salary

Targets are set annually reflecting the Gompany's strategy and algned
with key financial, strategic and/or ndmdual targets

Atleast B0% of the annual bonus ts assessed against key financial
performance metnics of the business and the balance may be based
on non-financial strategic/personal objectives

Financial metrics

There 1s ne minimum payment at threshold performance Up to 50%
of the maximum potential for this element of the bonus will be paid for
on-target performance and all of the maximum potantial will be paid
for maximum performance

Non-financial strategic or individual metrics

Vesting of the non-financial strategic or indmdual metncs will apply on a
scale between 0% and 100% based on the Committee's assessment of
the extent to which a non-financial performance metnc has been met

sseUISNg INO

adUBLUCLIad IO

gBIIOADY  senIqisucdsey an)

UONBULOMU B0  UOTELLLIOU| [RIDURUI]




56 HSS Hire Group ple
Annual Report 2015

Directors’ Remuneration
Report Continued

Policy table for Executive Directors

Component

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Deferred
bonus plan
{'‘DBP’)

Prowdes a retention element through share ownership and
direct allgnment with shareholders’ interests

Executrve Directors are required to defer any annual bonus
award earned in excess of 50% of the maxmum award
into shares over a two year perod The Committee may
decide to pay the whole of the bonus earned in cash
where the amount 1o be deterred would, In the opinicn of
the Commuttee, be so srmall as to make operation of the
DBP administratively burdensome Deferred shares will
typically take the form of a nil-cost share options but may
be structured as an alternative form of share award

Executive Directors may also be offered the opportursty to
defer voluntanly up to 100% of any annual bonus award
earned into shares over a two-year pencd

Awards under the DBP may be granted con the basis that the
number of shares shall be ncreased to reflect dvidends pad
over the vesting penad, or the Committee may make a cash
payment equal to those drvdends on release of the shares

The vesting of the delerred shares 1s not subject to the
satisfaction of any performance conditions However,

the Commitiee has the nght 1o apply malus provisions to
reduce, cancel or impose further conditions on unvested or
unexercised awards in {but not imited to) the circumstances
set gut at the foot of this tabla

Long Term
Incentive
Plan (‘LTIP")

To incentivise Executive Directors, and to deliver
genuine performance-related pay, with a clear line
of sight for executives and direct algnment with
shareholders' interests

The first LTIP awards will be granted in 2016

HAwards will be in the form of nil-cost share options,
conditional shares or other such torm as has the sarme
economic effect Awards will be granted with vesting
dependent cn the achievement of performance condrtions
set by the Committes, normally over at least a three-ysar
perforrmance penod

Awards will usually be subject to a two-year holding penod '
following the end of the performance period, and shares will

typically not be released to participants until the end of any !
such holding penod

Awards may be settled in cash {or granted asanghtto a
cash amount) at the election of the Committes

Awards under the LTIP may be granted on the basis that
the number of shares shall be increased to reflect dmdends
paid over tha period to release, or the Committea may
make a cash payment equal to those dividends on release
of the shares

The Committee may at its discretion structure awards as !
Qualtying LTIP awards comprising both an HMRC tax-

qualfying opticn and an LTIP award, with the vesting of the

LTIP award scaled back to take account of any gain made

on exercise of the tax-qualfying option

The Committea has the nght to apply mafus provisions to

reduce, cancel or impose further conditions on unvested

awards In (but not kmited to) the circumstances set out at .
the foot of this table

For up to two years following the vesting of a LTIP award,
clawback provisions will apply such that the Commuttee may
cancel an award that has not been released (e g an award |
which 1s subject to a holding penod) or which has not been

exercised, or require the repayment of some or all of the

award in the circumstances set out at the foot of this table
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Maxirum opportunity

Performance measures

Ondinartly, any bonus earned In excess of 50% of the maximum
award 1s mandatonly deferred, subject to the discreten of the
Committee as referred to in the ‘Operation’ column At the
discretion of the Committee, up to 100% of any bonus earned
may be deterred

Not applicable Deferred shares are not subject to any addrtional
performance metncs after the application of the performance metrics
which determines the amount of annual bonus award earned

The normat maxirmum award 1s 125% of salary inrespect of a
financial year The normnal mavarnum award kmit will only be exceeded
in excepliona! circumstances Involving the recruitment or retention

of an Executive Director and 1s subject to an overall Iimit of 250% of
salary In respect of a financial year

Where an award Is structured as a Qualfying LTIP award, the shares
subject to the tax-qualifying cption part of the award are not taken
nto account for the purposes of this imit, reflecting the scale back’
referred to in the 'Operation’ colurmnn

Performance measures are selected that reflect undertying
business performance

Pertormance metrics and their weighting whare there i1s more
than one metrc are reviewed annually 1o mantain approprateness
and relevance

Awards will vest between 25% and 100% for performance betwesn
'threshold’ performance (the minimum level of periormance that
resuits In any level of vesting) and ‘maximum’ performance
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Crrcumstances in which malus and/or clawback may apply

- a matenal misstatement of the Greup's financial resulis,

— anerror in the information or assumptions on which the award was
granted or vests including an error in assessing any applicable
performance conditions,

— amatenal falure of risk management by the Group,

— senous reputational damage to the Group, or

— matenal misconduct on the part of the participart

Malus and clawback may be applied in respect of any tax qualifying
option part of a Qualifyng LTIP award to the extent permitted in
accordance with the applicable legislation and HMRC practce

Paolicy table for Non-Executive Directors

Purpose and Approach of
link to strategy the Company

Non-Executive Directors’  Fees are normally reviewed annually
fees are set at a level that
reflects market conditions
and 18 sufficient to

attract ndividuals with
appropriate knowledge
and expernence

Fees pad to Non-Executive Directors

for therr services are approved by the
Board Fees may include a basic fee and
addmonal fees for further responsibiities
{for example, charmanship of board
committees or holding the office of Senior
Independent Director) Fees are based

on the level of fees paid to Non-Executive
Directors serving on the board of similar-
sized UK listed companies and the time
commitment and contnbution expected
for the role Typically, any fee increase

will be in ine with the wider workiorce
Fee increases may be awarded above
this level In certain circumstances such
as (but not Iimited to)

->where there has been achangein
market practice,

-» where there has been achangein the
sze and complaxity of the Company; or

-> where there has been an increass in
the Non-Exacutve Director's time
commitment o the role

Overall fees paid to Non-Executive
Directors will remain withun the imits set
by the Company’s Artictes of Association

Non-Executive Directors cannot
participats in any of the Company's share
schemes or annual bonus and are not
elgble to join the Company's pension
schems Non-Executive Directors may
be eligible to receve benefits such as the
use of secretanal support, travel costs or
other benefiis that may be appropnate

Explanation of performance measures chosen

Performance measures are selected that are aigned with the
performance of the Group and the interests of sharehclders Stretching
performnance targets are set each year for the annual bonus and LTIP
awards When setting these performance targets, the Committee will
take into account a number of different reference points, which may
nclude the Company’s business plans and strategy and the economic
ermaronment Full vesting wilt only occur for what the Committee
considers to be stretching performance

The annual bonus 1s based on a mix of financial and strategie/indmvidual
targets The measures are based on the financial, operational and
strategic pnonties of the business and may vary year-on-year to

reflect the strategic direction of the business For 2016, 85% of the
annual bonus award will be based on EBITA, a key financial measure
recognised by all colleagues throughout the business and directly
Iinked to our strategic enabler of focusing on profitabidity and growtn
The strategic and indmdual targets recogrise the lead indicators which
are ahgned to our three strategic pnonties optimising the network,
winning new and deepenng existing customer relationships, and
continued development and growth of specialist businesses The
targets have been set by reference 1o the strategic enablers which
underpin those pnonties, ncluding the use of a Heafth and Safsty
measure linked to our strategic enabler of ensunng safe and sustainable
working environments

Long-term parforrmance measures provide a robust and transparent
basis on which to measure the Company's performance over the
longer term and prowide further alignment with the business strategy
TP awards granted in 2016 will be based on earnings per share and
ROCE Adusted EPS is currently the critcal KPI for the Company,
supporting our focus on profitability and growth ROCE is aligned
with our strategic focus on capital efficiency and the ongoing drive
for cperational efficiency

The Commitiee retains the ability to adjust or set different performance
measures or targets If events occur {such as a change in strategy, a
matenal acquiston and/or a dvestment of a Group business ora
change in prevaling market conditions) which cause the Commitiee
1o determine that the measures are no longer approprate and that
amendment s required so that they achieve ther onginal purpase

Awards and options may be adjusted in the event of a vanation of share
capital In accordance with the rules of the LTIP and DBP

Policy for the remuneration of employees more generally

The Remuneration Policy applied to the Executive Directors is similar
1o the policy for the wider Group Management Team and senior
functional colleagues in that a sigrificant element of remuneration

15 dependent on Company and individual performance and all are
working towards the same financial metnes under the annual bonus
The key principles of the remuneration philosophy are applied
consistertly across the Group below this leve, taking inte account
senionty and market practice




llustrations of application of remuneration policy

The charts below set ot for each Executve Director an illustration of
the application for 2016 of the remuneration policy set out above The
charts show the spiit of remuneration between fixed pay, annual bonus
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{including any amount deferred under the DBF) and LTIP on the basis
of minimum remuneration, remuneration recevable for performance
i ine with the Cormpany's expectabons and maximum remuneration
(not allowing for any share pnce appreciation)

amount deferred under the DBP)

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED
Inllustrating the paterial reward, the following assumptons have been made
Fixed pay Annual bonus {including any Lmp

Mimimum performance  Fixed elements of remuneration

No annual bonus award

No LTIP vesting

only — base salary {being the salary
as al 26 December 2015), benefits
as disclosed in the single figure

Performance in line with

expectations

50% of salary awarded for
achieving target perfermance

25% ot maximum award vesting
{equrvalent to 31 25% of salary)
for achieving targst perfarmance

table on page 63 for the year ended

Maximum performance 26 December 2015) and pension

100% of salary awarded for
achieving maximum performance

100% of maximum award vasting
(equivalent to 125% of salary) for

achieving maximum performance

Recruitment remuneration

The policy aims to facilitate the appointment of indmduals of sufficient
calbre to lead the business and executa the strategy effectively for the
benefit of shareholders When appointing a new Executive Director, the
Committee seeks to ensure that amangements aren the best interests
ofthe Company and not to pay more than 1s appropriate

The Commitiee will taka Into consideration a number of relevant factors,
which may include the calibre of the indwidual, the candidate’s existing
remuneraton package, and the specific cireumstances of the iIndvdual
including the junsdiction from which the candidate was recruted

When hinng a new Executive Director, the Committee will typically
algn the remuneration package with the above Polcy The Committee
may include other lements of pay which it considers are appropnate,
however, this discretion 1s capped and I1s subject to the pnnciples and
the imits referred to below

— basa salary will be set at a level appropnate to the role and the
expenence of the Executive Director being apponted This may
Include agreement on future increases up to a market rate, in ine
with Increased expenence and/or responsibiites, subject to good
performance, where It Is considered appropriate

- penston and benefits will be provided in line with the above Policy

- the Commuttee wall not oifer non-performanca related incentive

payments

Cther elements may be included in the following crcumstances

- anintenrm appontiment being made to filt an Executve Dhrector role
an a short-term basis

— if exceptional circurmstances require that the Charrmanora
Non-Executive Director takes on an executive functionon a
short-term basis

— ifan Executive Director Is recruited at a ime In the year when it
would be Inappropnate to provide a bonus or long-term incentive
award for that year as there would not be sufficient tme to assess
performance Subject 1o the Imit on vanable remuneration set out
below, the guanturn in respect of the months employed during the
year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that reward 1s
provided on a far and appropnate basis

— fthe Executive Director will be required to relocate in order to take
up the position, 1t 1s the Company’s policy to allow reasonable
relocaton, travel and subsistence paymerts Any such payments
will be at the discretion of the Committee

- the Committee may also alter the performance measures,
performance penod and vesting penod of the annual bonus, DBP
or LTIP, if the Cormmuttee detenmines that the crcumstances of
the recrutment ment such alteration The rationale will be clearly
explained In the following Directors' Remuneratich Report

— the maxarnum level of vanable remuneration which may be granted
{excluding '‘buyout’ awards as referred to below) 1s 350% of salary
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Any share awards referred to in this section will be grarted as far as
possible under the Company's existing share plans if necessary,
and subject to the Ymits referred to above, recruttment awards may
be granted outside of these plans as perrmitted under the Listing
Rules which allow for the grant of awards to faciitate, in unusual
circumstances, the recrutment of an Executive Director

The Committee may make paymeants or awards In respect of hinng an
employee to ‘buyout’ remuneration arrangements forferted on leaving
aprevious employer In doing so the Committee will take account of
relevant factors including any performance conditions attached to

the forfeted arrangements and the time over which they would have
vested The Commitiee will generally seek to structure buyout awards
or payments on a like-for-like basss to the remunerat:on arrangements
forfeted Any such payments or awards are imited to the expected
value of the forfeted awards Where considered appropnate, such
special recrutment awards will be liable to forferture or ‘malus’ and/or
‘clawback’ on earty departure

Where a positicn 15 filked intermally, any ongoing remuneration
obligations or outstanding vanable pay elaments shall be allowed
to continue according to the onginal terms

Fees payable to a newly-appointed Chairman or Non-Executive
Director will be In Ine with the fee policy In place at the time of
appointrent

Service contracts

Executive Directors’ servics contracts are on arolling basis and may
be terminated on 12 months’ notice by the Company or the Executive
Service contracts for new Executive Directors will generally be irmited
10 12 months' natice by the Company

All Non-Executive Directors have initial fixed-term agreements with the
Company of nc more than three years

Details of the Directors’ service contracts and notice periods are set
out below

Name Commencement Notice period
JGu 9 February 2015 12 months

S Trowbridge 9 February 2015 12 maonths

A Peterson 9 February 2015 N/AM

N Sachdev 9 February 2015 N/AN

A Burton 9 February 2015 N/AM

D Robertson 9 February 2015 N/AY

T Sweet-Escott 9 February 2015 N/AR

{1} Contrects expira @ February 2018 subjecttore election a1 the AGM

{2} Under the Relationship Agreement kxponent is ableic appoint a Non Executve Director to
the Board for sa long as 1he Exponent Shareholders are enbiled 10 axercrsa o to control the
exercsa of 10% of more of the votes abée 1o ba cast on &l or substantaly sl matters al ganeral
mesetngs of the Company The fest such appontee s Mr Sweet Escott This contract therefore
expires on 9 February 2018 subject 1o re alection atthe AGM or f sarier a1 the pontthat the
Exponent Shareholders arg entitied to exercise or to conlrel the exercise of less than 10% of 1he
votes abla to be cast
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Payments for loss of office

The pnnciples on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are set out below
Policy

Payment in heu of notice | The Company has discretion to make a payment in lieu of notice Such a payment would include base
salary and compensation for benefits and pension contnbutions for the unexpired penod of notice

Annual bonus This will be at the discretion of the Committea on an individual basis and the decision as to whether

or not to award an annual bonus award in full or In part will be dependent on a number of factors,
Including the circumstances of the iIndividual’s departure and their contribution to the business during
the annual bonus pericd In question Any annual bonus award amounts paid will normally be pro-rated
for ime In service dunng the annual bonus penod and will, subject to performance, be pad at the usual
tme {although the Committee retains discretion to pay the annual bonus award earlier In appropriate
crrcumnstances) Any bonus earned for the year of departure and, if relevant, for the pnor year may be
paid wholly In cash at the discretion of the Committee

DBP The extent to which any urvested award wil vest will be determined in accordance with the rnules of the DBP

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employmeant However, if a participant leaves due
to death, ll-health, njury, disability, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the discretion of the
Committeg, the Committes shall determine whether the award will vast at cessation or at the normal
vesting date In either case, the extent of vesting will be determined by the Committee, taking into
account, unless the Committes determines otherwise, the period of time elapsed from the date of grant
to the date of cessation relative to the deferral period Awards may then be exercised during such pericd
as the Committee determines

Awards {in the form of nil cost options) which have vested but remain unexercised at the date of cessation
may be exercised If a participant leaves due to death, ll-health, Injury, disability, the sale of his employer
or any other reason at the discretion of the Committee Awards may then be exercised {or such penod

as the Committee determines

LTIP The extent to which any unvested award will vest will be determined in accordance with the rules of the LTIP

Unvested awards will normally lapse on cessation of employment Howaever, if a participant leaves due

to death, ill-health, njury, disabiity, the sale of his employer or any other reason at the discretion of the
Committes, the Committes shall determine whether the award will be released at cessation or on the
normnal release date or at some other time {such as following the end of the performance penod) In any
case, the extent of vesting will be determined by the Committee taking into account the extent to which
the perfoermance condition I1s satisfied and, unless the Committee determines ctherwise, the pencd of tirne
elapsed from the date of grant to the date of cessaticn refative to the perfermance pencd Awards may
then be exercised during such pericd as the Committee determines

It a participant leavas for any reason (other than summary dismissal) after an award has vested but betore
it has been released e during a 'holding pened’), his award will ordinanly continue until the nomal
ralease cate whan it will ba released to the extent it vested The Committes retains discretion to release
awards when the participant leaves

Awards {in the form of nil cost options) which have vested and been released but remain unexercised
at the date of cessation may be exercised If a participant leaves due to death, Ili-health, injury, disability,
the sale of his employer or any other reason at the discretion of the Committee Awards may then be
exercised for such period as the Commitiee determines

Change of control The axtent to which unvested awards under the DBP and LTIP will vest will be determined in accordance
with the rules of the relevant plan

Awards under the DBP will vest in fulf in the event of a takeover, merger or other relevant corporata event

Awards under the LTIP will vest early on a takeover, merger or other relevant corporate event The
Committee will determine the leval of vesting taking into account the extent to which the performance
condition 1s satisfied and, unless the Committee determines otherwise, the penod of time elapsed from
the date of grant to the date of the relevart corporate event relative to the performance period The
Committee has discretion under the rules of the LTIP to vest awards on a different basis

Mitigation The Committee's practice 1s that If an Executive Director's employment 1s terminated any compensation
payment will be calculated n accordance with normal legal pnnciples including the application of
mitigauon 1o the extent appropnale to the circumstances of the termination

There 1s a mechanism within the senice contracts to reducs termuination payments by up to 50% where
the Executive Director commences alternative employment dunng the notice period

Other payments Payments may be made either in the event of a loss of office or a changs of control under the Sharesave
Scheme, which is governed by &S rules and the legislation relating to such tax-qualfying plans There ts no
discrationary treatment for laavers or on a change of control undler this scheme

In appropnate circumstances, payments may also be made in respect of accrued holiday, outplacement
and legal fees
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Where a buy-out award s made under the Listing Rules then the leaver
provisions would be determined at the tirme of the award

The Committee reserves the nght to make additional exit payments
where such payments are made in good taith in discharge of an exsting
legal obligation {or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation)
or by way ol settiement or compromise of any claim ansing in
connection with the termination of a Director's office or employment

Where the Committee retains discretion it will be used to provide
flexibility in certain situations, taking Into account the particular
crcumstances of the Director’s departure and performance

There Is ne entitierment to any compensation In the event of Non-
Executive Directors' fixed-term agreements not being renewed or
the agreement terminating earlier

Existing contractual arrangements
The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment
or payment for loss of office outside the policy in this report

- where the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came
into effect,

- where the terms of the payment were agreed at a tme when the
refevant Indwvidual was nct a Director of the Company, and, Inthe
opnion of the Committee, the payment was not In consideration
of the indivdual becoming a Director of the Company, and

- to satisfy contractual arrangements under legacy remuneration
arrangements, iIncluding any arrangements in place pnor to
Admission

For these purposes, ‘payment’ includes the satisfaction of awards
ofvanable remuneration, and in relation 1o an award over shares the
terms of the payment are agreed at the time the award 1s granted

Caonsideration of employment conditions elsewhere in

the Company

The Cormmittee considers the general basic salary increase,
remuneration arrangements and employment condions for the
broader emplayee population when determning rermuneration policy
for the Executive Directors  There s no consuttation with employees
on Director remuneration

Shareholder views

The Committee 1s commutted to an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and welcomes feedback on Executive and Non-Executive Directors'
remuneration The Committee will seek to engage directly with major
shareholders and their representative bodies should any matenal
changes be made to the Policy and has consufted with major
shareholders in relation to the performance metnes proposed for the
2016 annual bonus and LTIP

Shareholder guidelines

In order to further align the Executve Directors’ long-term interests with
thase of shareholders, the Committee iIntroduced share ownership
guidelines with effect from Admission The guidelines provide that

the CEQ and other Executive Directors are required to butld up and
maintain (as relevant) a shareholding in the Company equivalent in
value 1o 200% and 125% of annual salary respectively Any newly
appointed CEO will be required to buld up a shareholding in the
Company equivalent in value to 125% of annual salary over a five-year
penod commencing from the date of ther appointrment and 200% of
annual salary as soon as possible after that Other appointments 1o
the Board wilt be required to buld up a shareholding in the Company
equivalentin value to 125% of annual salary over a five-year penod
commencing from the date of therr appontment
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Single figure table

The following table sets out total remuneration for each Director in respect of the year ending 26 December 2015 As HSS was a newly listed
cormpany during 2015, thera is no disclosure in this report of prior year informaton

Salary Annual Total
and fees Benefits bonus LTIP Pension remuneration
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Executive Directors
Chris Davies! 2015 283 14 - - - 297
John Gil@ 2015 289 20 21 - 29 359
Steve Trowbndge® 2015 214 100 16 - 21 351
Fiona Pernn® 2015 77 7 6 - 8 99
Non-Executive
Alan Peterson 20156 139 - - - - 139
Amanda Burton 2015 49 - - - - 49
Douglas Robertson 2018 49 - - - - 49
Neill Sachdev 2015 59 - - - - 59
Thomas Sweet-Escott® 2015 40 - - - - 40
Total (Executive and
Non-Executive Directors) 1,199 141 43 - 58 1,441

(1) ChhisDauvies resigned as a Drector on 25 Septernber 2015 The figures i the table above reflect hs remuneration eamed from the starl of 2015 unti the date of fis resignabion as a Direclor
INforMaton v relalion 10 amMaunts armed IAcwing that Cale« 51 oul On page 66

2} Joln Gl was appointed as CEQ on 25 Septerniber 2015. His salary therefora reflects [us rofe as both GOO and CEQ durng the year
{3) Steve Trowhrkge s benefits figure mcludes a one-of payment equal to £78 645N refation to the acquisiion of Cornpany shares prior 10 Admission

{4) Fiona Pernn resigned as a Director on 15 May 2015 The figures in tha tabls above reflect her rermuneration earned from the start of 2015 untit the date of her resignation as a Director Information in
ralaticn 10 amounts earnad foliowing that date is set oul on page 66

{5) Thomas Swee! Escatt g fae s paxd drectly 1o Exponen

The figures in the single figure tables above are denved from the following

Salary and fees The amount of salary/fees recenved In the year (Up to the date of resignation as a Director in the case of Directors
who left dunng the year)

Benefits The taxable value of benefits received in the year (up to the date of resignation as a Director in the case of
Directors who left during the year) These are pnncipally medical insurance and company car or car allowance

Annual bonus The annual benus s the ¢ash value of the bonus earned In respect of the year up to the date of resignation as a
Director in the case of Directors who left dunng the year The bonus for the full financial year 1s disclosed below

Pension The pension figure represents the Company's contnbutions to the defined contnbution scheme and any cash
payrnent in ligu of pension contrbutions made in the year {up to the date of resignation as a Director in the case
of Directors who left dunng the year)

Addrtional disclosures in respect of the single figure table

B 1

ngssgf:gnua! base salanes for Executive Directors for the year ended 26 December 2015 are set out below
Base salary at Base salary at
Admission 26 December 2015
£'000 £000

Executive Directors

Chns Davies 383 -
John Gill 275 326
Steve Trowbndge 218 218
Fiona Pernn 208 -

John Gill was appointed as CEQ on 25 September 2015 and tus base salary was increased to £326,000 with immediate effect
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Annual bonus and Deferred Bonus Plan
For the financial year ended 26 December 2015, the Executive Directors were awarded a maximum bonus cpportunity equal to 100% of base
salary 90% of the bonus was assessed aganst the EBITA and 10% was based on strategic measures

The fdllowing tables set out the bonuses eamed by the Executive Directors for 2015 and how this reflects performance for the year
EBITA element

Proportion of

Performance bonus determined Threshold Target Maximum Actual Bonus earned
measure by measure performance performance performance performance (% of salary)
EBITA 90% £35 8m £38 5m £40 4m £20 3m 0%

Strategic element

The strategic elerment of each Executive Director’s annual bonus cpportunity was based on a number of different performance measures, both
quaktative and quantitative, reflecting the Cormpany’s strategic pnonties and the strategic enablers which underpin them The weightings of the
different measures vaned between the Executive Directors and, in the case of John Gill, between his penod of service as COO and his pernod of
senrace as CEQ In the tables below, we have reflected how the performance during the year was assessed by the Committee in determining the
honuses earmed by reference to the strategic enablers The Direciors consider that more granular details of the strategc and perscnal objectives
are commercially sensitive

Strategic Enablers

Ensure safe, Deliver value and Focus on Drive availability and Invest in our
sustainable working quality to our profitabilrty operational efficiency colleagues
environments for customers and growth

colleagues and

customers

John Gill as COO

Strategic
enabler Metric Weighting Achievement
@ Demonstrate a clear commitment to HSS® Mealth 10% Completion of raview of HSE cempliance and
and Safety objectives Improve on 2014 RIDDCR sponsorship of drive for compliance
performance Partialty achieved
@ Complets roll out of 50 new sites 30% Full achievement
@ Delivery of five-year plan for engineening and 30% Developments in our distnbution network, 7 5% of
distnbution including planning for the opening of the pro-rated
National Distribution and Engineening Centras salary In
respect of
Partially achieved COO role
@ Delver a NPS greater than 27 10% Full achievement
@ Put in place management development plans and 20% Redesigned divisional management structures
management structures to support the delivery of to support ptanned growth

operaling plans Partally achieved
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John Gill as CEQ
Strategic
enabler Metnc Weighting Achievement
@ Demonstrate a clear cormmitment to HSS' Heafth 10% Compistion of review of HSE compliance and
and Safety objectives Improve on 2014 RIDDOR sponsorship of drive for compliance
performance Partially achieved
Maintain and develop relationships across the broad 30% Fulh achievermnent
financial commurity
@ Roliout of one local branch per week, development 30% Opened 50 new iocal branches Additional 71% of
of key account relationships key account revenue from key customer pro-rated
contract awarded in December 2015 salary n
Partially achieved respect of
Y © CEO role
Sponsar clear development of the executive team 15% Review and assessment of senior leadership
and potenval for succession capability and commencement cf re-design
of senior team
Partially achieved
Deliver a NPS greater than 27 16% Full achievemnent
Steve Trowhndge
Strategic
enablar Maetric Weighting Achievement
@ Demonstrate a clear commitment to HSS' Health 10% Completion of review of HSE compliance and
and Satety objectives Improve on 2014 RIDDOR sponsorship of drive for compliance
pertormance Parlally achieved
Ensure compliance with debt and equity market 20% Full achigvement
requirements and maintan good relationships with
lenders and investors
@ Review group capital structure and assess/consider 30% Full achievement 7 5% of
oppartunities to optimise cash interest charges salary
@ Oversee planning of the Group’s capital iInvestment 30% Continuing oversight of Group's capital
and continued delivery of EBITA and ROA targets investment plan Re-pnortisation of iInvestment
decisions and changing distnbution centre
requirement
Partially achieved
Dsliver a NPS greater than 27 10% Full achievemnent
Fiona Pemn
Strategic
enabler Metnc Weighting Achievement
@ Demcnstrate a clear commitment to HSS' Health 10% Positioned Health & Safety as a primary focus
and Safety objectives Improve on 2014 RIDDOR of the CR Steering Committee with appropnate
performance governance and reporing
Partially achieved
@ Delivery of e-commerce platiorm 30% Successful launch of transaction mobile-
enabled e-commerce platform
7 5% of
Partially achieved pro-rated
@ Detlver the Report of the Year and CR reports on time 20% Full achievement salary in
and in hne with best practice respect of
Director
Manage corporate communIcations programmes 10% Full achievement role
@ Design a direct marketing programme to support the 10% Designed and commenced implementation
acquisition of local trade accounts of direct marketing programme
Partally achieved
Deliver a NPS greater than 27 20% Fult achievemnant

®
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Long-term incentives

No long-term incentive awards vested in respect of performance in

the year or were granted In the year The first awards to be granted
under the Cormpany’s LTIP will be in respect of the financial year ending
31 December 2016, as referred to on page 67

Payments made to former Directors during the year

Following his resignation as a Director on 25 September 2015, Chns
Davies continued to work for the Company for two months urntil

30 November 2015 and then served one month of garden leave before
leaving the business on 31 December 2015 Following her resignation
as a Director on 15 May 2015, Fiona Perrin remained an employee of
the business throughout the remainder of the year Inaccordance with
the requirements of the applicable regulations, the details of payments
made to Chns Dawvies and Fiona Pemin following ther resignations as
Directors are not included in this report, except that the bonus earned
by Fiona Permin in the pencd to 15 May 2015 1s included inthe single
figure table on page 63

Payments for loss of office made dunng the year

Following his resignation as a Director on 25 Septermber 2015, Chns
Dawvies left the business on 31 December 2015 In 2016 Chns Davies
will recaive a payment in leu of notica of up to £307,608 In respect of
tha balance of his 12 month notice pencd (consisting of up to £287,250
basic salary and up to £20,358 representing the cost of providing a
company car, health insurance, Ife Insurance and permanent health
insurance] The payment in liew of notice wil be paid in instalments

on the normal payroll dates, but each Instaliment will be reduced If

Mr Davies commences another role before 25 September 2016

The Company also made a payment of 06,000 in respect of Mr Davies’
legal fess relating to his resignation as a Director

Directors' share interests

The Committes has adopted a shareholding guideline for Executive
Directors in accordance wath which the Chief Executive Officer 1s
required to buld up and maintan a sharehalding in the Cormpany
equivalent In value to 200% of annual salary and other Executive
Directors are required to bulld up and maintan a shareholding in the
Company equrvalent in value to 125% of annual salary As shown

in the following chart, each Executive Director in office as at

26 December 2015 held shares with a value, basad on the market
value of a share on 26 December 2015 (71 5p), In excess of the
requirement of the guideline

IMAGE REMOVED

The imerests of the Directors and thewr connected persons inthe
Company's ordinary shares as at 9 February 2015 (the date of
Admission) and 26 Decernber 2015 {or, if earfier, the date on which
the Director resigned from the board) were as follows

26 December 9 Fehruary
2015M 2015
Executive Directors
Chns Davies 2,368,238 2,368,238
John Git 1,491,189 1,481,189
Steve Trowbridgs B57,787 B57,787
Fiona Perrin 833,403 833,403
Non-Executive Directors
Alan Peterscn 937217 913,439
Armnanda Burtcn 35714 35,714
Douglas Robertson 9,623 9,523
Nel Sachdev 11,904 11,804

{1) Or taanier the date of resignation from: 1he Board

As at 6 Apnl 2016, the Company has not been adwised of any changes
1o the interests of the Directors and their connected persons as set out
in this table

Thomas Sweet-Escott holds no direct interest in the Company’s
ordinary shares However, he has an indirect interest in the Company's
ordinary shares as aresult of his interest in Exponent

No Director currently holds any interests in any share plans established
by the Company

The disclosures on Directors remuneration set out on pages 63 10 65,
and on page 66 above this paragraph have been audited as required
by the Companies Act 2006

Performance graph and histoncal Chief Executive Officer
remuneration outcomes

The graph below shows the TSR pertormance for the Company's
shares in comparson tc the FTSE Small Cap Index for the period from
Admission to 26 December 2015 The Comparny Is a constituent of this
Index and as such it has been selected as an appropnate comparator
group Forthe purposes of the graph, TSR has been calculated as tha
percentage change dunng the perod in the market pnce of the shares,
assuming that dvmdends are reinvested The graph shows the value,
by 26 December 2015, of £100 nvested in the Group over the pencd
compared with £100 invested in the FTSE Small Cap Index

IMAGE REMOVED




The table below shows detalls of the tota! remuneration, annual bonus
and LTIP vesting (as a percentage of the maximum oppartunity) for

the Chief Execuive Officer for 2015 This table shows the CEQ's
rernuneration for the whole of 2015 and so s net directly comparable
1o the TSR chart above which shows the posrtion only frormn Adrrussion
The chart shows the remuneration for Chns Davies in the penod from
the start of FY15 untk he resigned as a Director on 25 September 2015,
and John Gil's remuneration from that date untit the end of the year

Chns Davies resigned as a Director on 25 September 2015 The figures
in the table below reflect his remuneration earmed from the start of 2015
unti the date of his resignation as a Director

Annual bonus
Total asa%of LTIPasa%
remuneration maximum of maxwnum

CEQ £'000 opportunity  opportunityt!
Chns Davies 297 - N/A
John Gl [0 71% N/A

i) NolLTIP vested m respect of periormance in 2015

CEQ pay increase n relation to all employees

As the Company was a newly listed company during 2015, this report
does not Include a compansen of changes between 2014 and 2016
in the level of CEQ remuneration and of employee remuneration

Spend on pay

The following 1able sets out the overall expenditure on pay (asa
whole across the organisation) and the amour of distnbuttons o
sharehoclders in the form of dvdends and shiare buybacks in respect
of 2015 As the Company was a newly listed comparny during 2015,
this report does not Include the comparabie figures for 2014 and the
percentage change

Year ended

26 December

£000 2015
Dividends 882
Overall expenditure on pay 90,529

Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial
year commencing 27 December 2015

Information on how the Compary intends to implement the

Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the finanmal year commencing

on 27 Decernber 2015 18 set out below

Salary/fees and benefits

In ine with the salary review timetalole for all other employees, the
Exacutive Directors’ base salanes will be reviewed dunng June 2016,
with any changes taking effect from 1 July 2016 Neon-Executive
Directors’ fees will be reviewed dunng the year Any Increase to any
Executive Director's salary or Non-Executive Director’s fee 1s expected
10 be modest and will be in line with the rangs of salary increases
awarded 10 other employees in the Group

Annual bonus

The maximum annua! bonus opportunity for 2016 will remain at

100% of salary, as for 2015 The bonus will be subject to stretching
performance condiions based on EBITA as regards 85% of the overall
opportunity and personal/strategic performance measures as regards
the balance of the cpportunity
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The Committee considers that the EBITA performance targets and the
detalls of the personal/strategic measures should remain confidential to
the Company as they give our competitors aninsighit into our plans and
expectations However

- the EBITA targets (which have been set by reference to the 2016
budget and require outperformance of the budget for the maximum
EBITA elernerit of the bonus to be earned) will be fully disclosed inthe
2016 Directors' Remuneration Report on the same basis as the 2015
EBITA targets are disclosed on page 64, and

- the Committee Intends that the personal and strategic measures
{which tie directly into the Company's strategy and support the
strategic enablers which underpin the achievernent of our strategic
pnonties) and performance against them will be dsclosedona
similar basis to the basis on which the 2015 personal/strategic
measures are disclosed on pages 64 and 65

LTiP

The Committee intends 1o grant its first LTIP awards in 2016 The
usual maximum LTIP award opporiunty for Executive Directors s
125% of salary However, as referenced in the Charman'’s statement,
2016 Awards will be granted at the level of 100% of salary with
performance conditions based on Adjusted EPS targets (as regards
75% of the award) and ROCE (as regards 25% of the award)
Performance will be assessed over athree-year performance penod,
and any awards which vest by reference 1o that performance will be
subject to a further two-year holding penod

Adusted EPS s currently the criical KPI for the Gompany supporting
our focus on profitability and growtih and has, therefore, been chosen
as the pamary LTIP metnc ROCE has been chosen as the secondary
LTiP metnc and s aligned with our strategic focus on capital efficiency
and the ongoing drive for operational efficiency Both Adjusted EPS
and ROCE will be measured on an absolute target basis {for the year
ended 29 December 2018} gving the Committee flexibility to set targets
year-an-year dependent on market conditions and both internal and
axternal forecasts

The proposed targets are as set out below Inthe tables below, we
have shown the performance targets for threshold {25% vesting)

and maximum (100% vesting) The on-target performance level (50%
vesting) Is considered commercially sensitve and will be disclosed
on aretrospective basis

Adjusted EPS element
20183 Adjusted EPS Vesting percentage
11p 25%
15p 100%

ROCE element
2018 ROCE* Vesting percentage
16 5% 25%
18% 100%
For these purposes ROCE shal be cakulated as
Adusted ESITA
verage capdal employed

{excxting cash and short term oebt)
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating

to Directors' remuneration

The Remuneration Committee 1s composed of the Company's
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Amanda Burton (Charman),
Douglas Robertson and Nel Sachdev

The Remuneration Committee meets as often as is deemed necessary,
but in any event at least three tmes a year The Committeg's key
responsibilities include

- reviewing the appropriateness of the Group's Remuneration Policy,

- considering all elements of Indvidual remuneration for the
executive management group, Including basa salary, bonuses
and performance-related pay, discretionary payments, pension
contributions, benefits in kind and share options or therr equivalents,

- formulating performance criteria In relation to performance
related pay,

- reviewing terms and condrtions and ensuring dawback or other
provisions are In place so as not to reward failure,

- administenng company share schemes as required, and

- ensunng compliance with Governance Code and disclosure
requiremnents

Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

Dunng the financial year, the Commuittee recerved independent adwce
from Deloitte LLP in relation to the Committee's consideration of
matters relating to Directors' remuneration Deloitte's fees for this
adwvice dunng the year were £26,375, charged on atme and
disbursements basis or fixed fee depending on the nature of the
project Delofe also provided advice to the Company dunng the
year inrelation to share plans Deloitte 1s a founder member of the
Remuneration Consuttants Group and as such voluntanly operates
under its Code of Conduct in refation to executive remuneration in the
UK, the Remuneration Commuttee 1s satisfied that all advice received
was objective and independent

Approval
This Report was approved by the Beard on 6 April 2016 and signed on
ns behalt by

Amanda Burton
Charman of the Remuneration Commitiee

6 Apri 2016




Other Statutory
Disclosures

The table below detals where certan other information, which forms
part of the Directors’ report, can be found within this Annual Report

Information Location within Annual Report
Dnndends Charman's Statemnent (Page 06}
Directors” powers Page 69

Directors’ indemnities Page 69

Statement on disclosura of

information to the Auditor Corporate Governance (Page 47)

Greenhouse gas emmissions Corporate Responsibility {Page 34)

Political denations and

expenditure Page 69

Firancial Instruments Page 69

Events and developments

impacting the Company Page 69

Branches outside the UK Page 69

Acquisition of own shares Page 69

Equality and diversity Page 69

Employee involvement Page 70

Impact of change of

controltakeover bid Page 70

Directors’ interests Directors’ Remuneration Raport]
{Page 66)

Share capital Notes to the financial statements
(Page 102)

Restnctions on share transfers Page 70

Significant sharehclders Relations with Shareholders,

(Page 47)
Shares with special nghts

with regard to centro! of

the Company Page 70
Shares related to Employee

share schemes Page 70
Voting nghts and restrictions Page 70
Agreemants between

holders of secunties Page 71
Appointrnent and

replacement of Directors Page 71
Amendmaents to the

Company’s Artcles of

Association Page 71

Directors’ powers

At the Annual General Meeting to be held on 15 June 2018,
shareholders will be asked to renew the Directors’ power to allot shares,
grant nghts to subscrbe for or to convert any secunty INto shares or

buy back shares in the Company and to renew the disapplication of
pre-emption nghts
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Directors’ Indemnities

In addtion to the Indemnity provisions in therr articles of association,
the Company and other Group companies have entered into a drect
Indemnity agreemert with each of the Directers and ceriain other
officers or senior employees of the Group These indemnities consttute
qualifying indeminities for the purposes of the Companies Act 2008
and remain in force at the date of approval of this report without any
payrment having been made under them The Company also maintans
drrectors’ and officers” hablity insurance which gives appropnate cover
for legal action brought against its directors

Paiitical denations and expenditure

At the 2015 Annual General Meeting held on 16 June 2015, the
Company and its subsidianes were authonsed in aggregate to

make political donations or incur political expenditure not exceeding
£100,000n tctal The Company and its subsidaries have not made
any political donations or incurred any political expenditure durnng the
year (FY14 rl)

Financial iInstruments

Information on the Group's financial nsk management objectves and
policies and the exposure of the Group ta market nsk, credit nsk,
Iiguidity nsk and cash flow nsk 1s provided in Note 21 of the financial
statements on pages 102 to 104

Events and developments mpacting the Company

The Iikely future developments of the Gompany and Group are
referred to In the Chief Executive Officer’s Rewiew on page 12 inthe
Strategic Report

Branches outside the UK
The Gompany has no branches outside the UK, as defined in section
1046(3) of the Act

Acquisttion of own shares

At the 2015 Annual General Meeting held on 16 June 2015, the
Company was authonsed to make market purchases of up to
15,476,190 or 10% of the current ardinary shares in 1ssue The
Company has made no purchases of its own ordinary shares pursuant
tothis authonty This authonty expires at the close of the 2016 AGM of
the Company on 15 June 2016 A specia resolution will be proposed at
this year’s Annual General Meeting to authonse the Company to make
market purchases of up to 15,476,180 ordinary shares

Equality and diversity

The Group 1s committed to developing all colleagues and encourages
everyona to progress and develop All training is based on each
colleague's iIndvidual development needs and the requirements of the
role Provisions are macie to ensure that all reduced time ¢ollsagues
have equal opportunities 1o undertake development and training

If an employee becomes disablad during employment, the Group
makes every effort to enable them to continue i employment by
making reasonable adjustments in the workplace and prowding
retrairung for alternative work where necessary

The Group 1s committed to ensunng that the abities of all of its
colleagues are recognised and valued at all levels of the organisation
through

— focusing on what peopla can do rather than on what they cannct,

~ challenging stereotypes about people with disabilites, and

— making appropnate adustments in the workplace 1o support
colleagues with disabilities to achieve thewr full career potential

The Group's policy 15 to recrunt and promote based on an indmdual’s
skills, qualifications, expenence and ability to do the job No applcarnt,
whether intemal or external, will be discnminated against n respect of
age, sex, sexual onentaton, disabilty, race, religion, or beliefs, or on any
other criteria unrelated to an indivicdual’s ability to perform in the role
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Other Statutory
Disclosures Continued

The Group will nct include any discnminaiory or subjective critenain
job descriptions or job advertisements  All recrutment will be made
sclety cnthe basis of competence and skill Where an applicant
has a disability (as defined by the Disability Discnmination Act)
consideration wil be given as to whether any adjustrnents can be
made to accommeodate Indwidual requirements

The Group 1s committed to ensunng that the diversity of the
communihes served s reflected at all levels within the workforce
and that an understanding and awareness of diversity is promoted
in all fraining and developmernt matenal

Performance reviews are completed with every colleagus and
focus on measurning job performance and each individual’s
franing requirements

Employee involvernent

The Company uses a cornbination of its Intranet (HSS World),
announcements via company e-mall addrasses to all or select groups
of colleagues and letters to employees’ home addresses together with
frequent, structured conference calls and its intemal newsletter HIYAI
to communicate information to employees it alse has regular meetings
of regional and national management The method of Information
dissemination adopted depends on the information being made
avallable to employees and the associaled confidentiality requirements
HIYAls aninternal publication on recent news, developments, intiatrves
and events in the business which is circulated a minimum of 18times
annually Aweekly email ‘bulletin’ supplements this with operational
and functional informat:on, this bulletin s required to be printed and
displayed on all notice boards where colleagues may not have
Immediate access to emal

Colleagues are consulted formally on issues where therr interests are
affected via consultation processes led by management and are asked
to gve feedback On a rotational bas:s, colleagues are invited to attend
the weekly ‘Start the Week' conference call where all senior leaders

of the business communicate objectives for the week ahead, share
performance and ask for feedback from the colleague representatives
on elements of the business which cancemn them A weekly ‘Bnght
ldeas' feedback mechanism wa HSS Waorld, encourages colieagues
to put therr ideas for Improvement to senior management and receive
feedback Colleagues are also invied to raise Issues via the onling
communications torum "Yammer' and recerve feedback

In our engineenng senaces dvision, colleague engagement 1s
measured via our partner Unipart Colleague engagement in 2015 was
higher than the Unipart benchmark but raised some specific Issues

for improvement which were considered by the Executive team and
actioned where appropriate A wider colleague engagement survey 1s
duse 10 be mplemented post the Implemeaniation of our latest network
development in 2016

The Company developed a colleague ShareSave scheme for
implementation in Q3 2015 as indicated in our PO prospectus After
caretul consideration of the Company’s performance in H1 2015,

as announced to the market in August 2015, the Board decided to
postpone the launch of the scheme until further notice The scheme
remains ready to launch, and the Directors continue to appraise the
approprate ime to do so

The Company's results and performance s regularly communicated
via two mechanisms the update and provision of informaten 1o

senior colleagues on the same day that announcements are made to
invastors at the half year and full year and supplemenits in the company
newsletter HIYAl Althe senior colleague conference calls, there s an
opportunity to ask questions of the executive An announcement 1S aiso
made company-wide from our CEO prowiding the top level results and
factors affecting performance to colleagues wvia emall

Impact of change of controltakeover bid

There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors or
employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment
{whether throtugh resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise) that
occurs because of a change of controltakeover bid

Anumber of the Group's funding agreements contain change of control |
provisions These are summansed in the table below

Funding agreement

Summary of change of
control provision

Senior Secured Notes Following a change of control the

Group would be required to offer to !
repurchase all outstanding Notes at a
purchase price In cash egqual to 101%
of the pnnecipal amount redeemed on
the date of purchase plus accrued
and unpald interest, if any, to the date
of purchase

Following a change of control all
outstanding amounts, together with
accrued Interest would become
immediately due and payable

Certain of the Group's finance leases
have canditions where a change of
control could lead to early redemption

Revoiving Credit Facility

Finance leases {from vanous
finance providers)

Restrictions on share transfers

a) Certificated shares

The Board may, In its absolute discretion, refuse to register the transfer
of a certificated share which is not a fulty paid share, provided that

tha refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the Company from
1aking place on an open and proper basis The Board may also refuse
toregister the transfer of a certficated share unless the Instrument of
transfer s (i} lodged, duly stamped (it stampable), at the office or at
another place apponted by the Board accompanied by the certificate
for the share to which it relates and such other evidence as the Board
may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make the
transfer, {1} 1s In respect of one class of share only, and (i) 1s in favour of
not more than four transferees

b) Uncertificated shares

Subject to the prowisions of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations,
the Board may permit the holding of shares in any class of sharesin
uncertficated form and the transfer of tile to shares in that class by
means of a relevant system and may determine that any class of shares
shall cease to be a participating secunty

Shares with special nghts with regard to control of the Company
There ara no shares in 1ssue wrth special nghts with regard 1o control
of the Company

Shares related to Employee share schemes
No shares have been issued n relation to Employee share schemes

Voting nghts and restnctions

Subiect to the nghts or restrictions set out below or detaled in the
Notica of AGM, on a show of hands every member who 1s present in
person shall have one wote and on a poll every member present in
person or by prexy shall have one vote for every share ot which be s
the holder

No member shall be entitied to vota at any general meeting in respect

of ashare unless all moneys presantly payable by him in respect of that
share have been paid




If at ary tme the Board is satisfied that any mermber, or any other
person appeanng to beinterested in shares held by suchmember,
has been duly served with a notice under section 793 of the Act and
1s in defautt for the prescnbed penod in supplying to the Comparny the
information thereby required, or, in purported compliance with such a
notice, has made a staterment which is false or inadequate n a matenal
respect, then the Board may, inits absclute discreticn at any tme
thereafter by nohce to such member direct that, in respect of the
shares in relation to which the default occurred, the member shall not
be entitled to attend or vote ether personally or by proxy at a general
meeting or at a separate meeting of the holders of that class of shares
oronapoll

The Notice of AGM specifies deadines for exercising voting nghts and
appointing a proxy or praxies to vote in relation to resolutions to be
passed at the Annual General Meetng All proxy votes are counted
and the numbers for, aganst or withheld in relation to each resolution
are announced at the Annual General Meeting and published on the
Company's website after the mesting

On 16 May 2014, the FCA announced the commencement of new rules
which provide protections for the minonty shareholders of a premium
Iisted company in which there is a ‘controfling shareholder’ (defined by
the FCA as ‘any person whom exercises or controls, on their own or
together with any person with whom they are acting in concert, 30%
or more of the votes able to be cast on all or substantally all matters

at general meetings of the company’) Under these new rules, the
election or re-glection by the shareholders of an Independent Non-
Executrve Director must be approved by an ordinary resolution of the
sharsholders and separately approved by those shareholders who
are not controlling shareholders {the independent shareholders)

As aresult, by virtue of Exponent's 50 4% shareholding in the
Company, any votes by Exponent on any resolutons relating to the
election or re-election of Independent Non-Executive Director(s) will
not be counted for the purposes of approving those resolutions

Agreements between holders of secunties

The Company Is not aware of any agreements between holders of
securiies that may result In restnctions on the transfer of securtties
or onvoting nghts

Appointment and replacement of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the number of
Directors shall be not less than two but shall not be subject to any
maxirmurn in number Directors may be appointed by ordinary
resolution of shareholders ar by the Board

Under the Relatonship Agreement, Exponent s able to appaint a
Non-Executive Director to the Board for so long as the Exponent
shareholders are entitled to exercise or to control the exarcise of

10% or mare of the votes able to be cast on all or substantally all
matters at general meehngs of the Company The first such appontes
1sMr Sweet-Escott Inaddrion, under the Relationship Agreement
Exponent is permitted o appont an observer fo attend Board meetings

At every Annual General Meeting all Directors at the date of notice of
Annual General Meeting shall retire frorn office and resolutions for the
re-appointment of those Directors who wish to be re-appointed shall
be put to the meeting

All appointments are subject to the Company's Articles of Association
and the annual re-election by shareholders

The Comparny may rernove any Director frorm office, and appoint
another persen in place of a Director reroved from office, both by
ordinary resolution
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A person ceases to be a Director as scon as

a) he/she ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Act
oris prohibited from being a director by law,

b) he/she Is subject to a bankruptey order or compounds with his/her
creditors generally;

¢) he/she becomes physically or mentally ncapable of acingas a
Director and may remain so for more than three months,

d} he/she resigns or retires,

) he/she s absent for mare than six consecutive months without
perrrission of the Board from meetings of the Board held dunng that
penod and the Board resolves that his/her office ba vacated, or

) he/she recerves notice signed by not less than three quarters of the
other Directors stating that that person should cease to be a Director

Amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association
The Compary's Articles of Association may only be amended by the
passing of a special resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Patrick Hartrey
Company Secretary

6 Aprl 2016

Disclosures required by Listing Rule 9 8

Listng Rule 8 8 requires that certan nformation is disclosed withun the
Arrual Repert The table below sets out the required information and
1ts location within this document, where applicable

Listing Rule Information Location
LR 98 4(R)4) Long-termincentive Remuneration
schemes Committeg Report,
pages 52 to 68

LR 98 4(R)(14) Agreement with controling

shareholders Page 71 (see below)

No further LR 8 8 4 disclosures are required

As required by LRS 2 2AR (2)a) the Company has entered into a
Relatonship Agreement with Expenent (see page 42 for further detalls
on this agreement) The Board of Directors confirm that

- the Company has complied with the iIndependence provisions
ncluded n this Relationship Agreement,

- sofar as the Company 1s aware, Exponent and its associates have
complied with the iIndependence provisions included within the
Relationship Agreement, and

- so far as the Company I1s aware, Exponent has complied with the
procurement obligation included withtn the Relatonship Agreement

This Statement in respect of LRS 2 2AR (24a}was approved by the
Board of Directors on 6 Apnk 2016 and 1s signed on its behalf by

J B.Gill
Director

5 Apnl 201
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Directors’ Responsibility

Statement

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
financial statements N accordance with applicabie law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year Under that taw the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU and Article 4 of the AS Regulation and have elected to
prepare the Company financial statements on the same basis Under
cornpany law the Directors must not approve the financial staterments
unless they are satsfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of
affars of the Group and Company and therr profit or loss for that penod

In prepanng the financial staternents, the Directors are required to
- select sutable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistentty,

- make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disciosed and explained in the
Group and Company financial statements respectively; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it
18 Inappropnate to presume that the Group or Parent Comparty waill
continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactons and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position

of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the preverttion and detection of fraud
and other rregulartties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial Information included on the Company’s
website Legslaton in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in
other unsdictions

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Each of the Directors, whose names and functons are detalled on
pages 40 and 41, confirms that o the best of his or her knowledge

- the financial staterments, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and far view of the assets, habiities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included N the consolidation taken as a whole, and

- the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and
perforrnance of the business and the positon of the Company and
the undertalangs included in the consolhdation taken as a whole,
together with a descnphion of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties
that they face

We consider that the Annual Report and financial statements, taken
as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and provides the
inforrmation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
posttion and performance, business model and strategy

This Responsibility Statement was approved by the Board of Directors
on 6 Apnl 2016 and 15 signed on s behalf by

JB.Gill
Directar

6 Apnl 2016

Approval of the Drectors’ Report
The Directors Report on pages 38 to 72 was approved by the Beard of
Directors on 6 Apnl 2016 and I1s signed on its behalf by

JB.Gill
Director

6 Apnl 2016
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Independent Auditor’s report to the
Members of HSS Hire Group plc

For the year ended 26 December 2015

Opmion on financial statements
Inour opinion

- the financial statements give a true and far iew of the state of the
Group's and the parent Company's affars as at 26 December 2015
and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been propery prepared in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Unioh,

- the parent Company financial statements have been property
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Comparnies Act 2006, and

- thefinancial statements have been prepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial staternents of HSS Hire Group Pic for the year ended

26 December 2015 compnse the Consolidated income statement,
Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, Consolidated and
parent Company statements of financial position, Consolidated and
parent Company statements of changes n equity, Consolidated and
parent Company cash flow statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been apphed in ther preparation
15 applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

as regards the parent company financial staterments as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Cempanies Act 2006

Respective responsibiities of Directors and auditors
As explaned more fully in the statement of Directors' responsibiities set
out on page 72, the Directors are responsble for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and

farr view Our responsibiity s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance wath applicable law and International
Standards on Audming (UK and lreland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Rnancial Reporting Council's (FRC's) Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report 1Is made solely to the Company’s members, as abody, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to siate to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose Tothe fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body for
our audit wark, for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed

Our assessment of nsks of matenal misstatement

In arrving at our audit opinion above on the group financial statements
the following nsks have had the greatest impact on our audit strategy
and scope.

Risk Area Our response

Existence and valuation of hire stock

assets, through asset purchases, hires,
disposals and transfers around the branch

Hire stock represents over 1 1m assets which  Our audit work in respect of this area included the identification and testing of the operating
have a high frequency of moverment in iIndmdual  efiectiveness of key controls in respect of the existence and value of ture stock, including
the authonsation of addiions, the use of unique asset identification numbers, and the
reconciliation of the fixed asset registers to the accounting records

netwark Judgement 1s required in ensuning that
depreciaticn charges are accurately calculated,
having regard to ecenormic useful ives and
residual values, together wath the rencvation
work undertaken on specific classes of assets

Wa attended a numicer of the hire stock asset counts as a test of control, and performed test
counts ourselves In order to ensure the accuracy of the counting perfcrmed, and therefore the
existence of assets We also tested that the records from the counts had been used to update
both the fixed asset register and the accounting ledgers

We selected a sample of assets acquired in the year and agreed the amounts recorded on the
fixed asset registers to nvoices

Using data analytical and reperformance techniques we recalculated the depreciation in the
fixed asset registers for the current year, and reconciled this to the charge included in the
accounting ledgers, We cntically challenged for a sample of asset classes the useful economic
lves and residual values applied by management by reference to data avalable to the businass
and externally

We evaluated the capitalisation of the rencvation work undertaken and tested for a sample of
the assets that ther useful Ives had been extended by reference to thewr continuing hire

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets

Managerment periorms an annual impamment
review of goodwill, which also covers the
carrying value of other intangible and property
plant and equipment

There is a nsk that the judgements used in the
impairment review for each Cash Generating
unit {CGU)}, which include areas such as
forecast cash flows, discount rates, and
growth rates are inappropnate and that an
impairment charge may be required

Our audit procedures included detailed testing of the Directors’ impairment testing model

for each CGU performed in the year, For each of the key iInputs to the imparment model we
cntically assessed the reasonableness of management’s assumptions by reference 1o internal
and external data, Board approved budgets, histoncal trends, and reviewed the sensitmty
analysis performed I addition we periormed our own addittonal sensitivity analysis in
respect of the key assumplions which included assessing by how much each assumption
would need to change for an impairment to anse We utiised our own valuation specialists,
parucularly around the appropnateness of the discount rates used by the Directors comparing
this aganst the cost of capital for the Group and other comparable companies in the industry

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect of therr imparment testing,
the inputs used, and the sensitivity of the outcomes of the assessment to changes In
key assumptions
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Independent Auditor’s report to the
Members of HSS Hire Group plc Continued

Risk Area

Revenue recognition

There 1s a nsk that revenue s incorrectly
calculated or recorded in the wrong penod

Revenue 1s accrued in the financial statements
for hire equipment out on hire over the year
end Thero s a nsk that accrued revenue may
be incormrectly calculated

There 1s alsc a nsk that rebates payable to
customers may be omitted or incorrectly
calculated

We reviewed and tested the key controls aver revenue recagnition We checked a sample of
transactions to ensure the revenue recognition critena used are in accordance with the stated
accounting policy and in ine with IFRS

We obtained the calculations of the accrued revenue at the year end and the underdying data,
and using data analytics we recalculated the accrued reverue For a sample of tems we
checked that there was a subsequent invoice to a third party

We have tested the calculation of rebates payable for a sample of customers by reference
to sales data and the undertying agreements, compared rebates by customer against
those payable In previous years and investigated the reasons for significant vanances, and
considered the rebate arrangements in place with major new cusiomers won in the year

Accounting for acquisitions

There s a nsk that the far value of the
identifiable Intangible assets and goodwill
on acquisiions In the year 1s incorrectly
calculated as these calculations involve
management estimation and jJudgement

We have conducted a review of the acquisition agreements, tested valuation and accounting
for consideratron payable, assessed whether any consideration may represent post-acguision
remuneration, traced payments to bank statements, and assessed the identification and farr
value of the assets and habidities the group acquired, including far value adustments We

have reviewed the third party report produced by experts for the group for the valuation of
ntangibles acquired, and involved our own expents In assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation assumptions used by the 3rd party and management, including the discount, tax
and royalty rates used

We have reviewed the acquisition accounting and disclosures made in the financial
statements

Onerous lease provisions

related provisions relating to properties that
the Group no longer utilises in the business
{*dark stores’) The completeness, existence

The Group has a significant number of property

Our audit work involved checking a sample of the movements In provisions aganst prior years
and obtainng and venfying explanations {or matenal movements We also obtained details

of properties sublet or dispased of m the year and confirned that any existing provisions had
been appropriately released For any newly created dark stores we reviewed and considered

and accuracy of the provisions invelve
management jJudgement and estimates in place

with management the basis of the provisions made, including a review of the lease terms

In addition as in all our audits we have addressed the nsk of
management ovemde of intermal controls ncluding evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a nsk of
matenal misstatement due to fraud

The Audit Commitiee’s considerabon of these judgements and nsks 1s
set out onpages 48 and 49

Qur application of materialty and an overview of the

scope of our audrt

We apply the concept of mateniality both in planning and performing
our audit, and i evaluating the effect of misstaternents We consider
matenality to be the magritude by which misstaternents, including
omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable
users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements

We determined matenality for the Group as a whole to be £1,000,000
determined with reference to a benchmark of the Group profit before
amortisation of Intangibles recognised on acqusitions, interest and
tax, normmalsed to exclude the exceptional items disclosed nnote 5
Matenality therefore represents 5% of that figure

We agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we would report 1o the
Commtize all indrdual audit differences in excess of £50,000 We also
agree to report differences below these thresholds that, in our view,
warranted reporting on gqualitative grounds,

We talored the scope of our audit to ensure we performed enough
work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whiole, taking Into account the gecgraphic siructure of the Group,
the accounting processes and controls, and the iIndustry in which
the Group operates

The Group's accounting process 1S structured around a Group finance
function at ts head office In Mitcham, which also acts as a shared
service finance centre for all of its UK companies The finance funchons
of companies and businesses acquired In the year were transtioned to
the Group finance functon by the year end The Group alsc maintains
local finance teams for its Ireland operation and for parts of one of its
UK operations

The Group's operating companies vary significandly in size, and we
identified 15 reporting units, seven of which, N our view required an
audit of thar complete financial information due to therr size or nsk
characlenstics These seven units compnse 84% of Group turnover
and 94% of Group gross assets

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit we determined
that all work on the seven units could be performed by us, the Group
audit team Our work on the other units compnsed analytical
procedures and certain tests of detal supported by the work on the
ntemational component performed by the local BDO network office
as local component auditors, operating under instructions from the
Group engagement team This gave us the evdence we needed for
our opinion on the Group financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements is prowded
on the FRC's website at www fre org uk/auditscopeukprivate




Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the

Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

— the part of the Directors' remnuneration report tG be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

- theinformation gven in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
or the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
1s consistent with the financial statements

Statement regarding the Directors’ assessment of the
principal nsks that would threaten the solvency or

hquidity of the company
We have ncthing matenal to add or to draw attention toin relation to

— the Directars’ confirmation in the Annual Report that they have
carned out arobust assessment of the principal nsks facing the
entity, ncluding those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or iquidity,

- the disclosures in the Annual Report that descnbe those nsks and
explain how they are being managed or mitigated,

~ the Directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether
they considered it appropnats 1o adopt the going concermn basis of
accounting in preparing them and their identrfication of any matenat
uncertaintes to the entity's ability to continue to do so over a pencd
of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements, and

— the Directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the entity, over what penod they have
done so and why they consider that perod to be appropriate, and
ther staterment as to whether they have a reasonabls expectation
that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its
labiites as they fall due over the penod of therr assessment,
ncluding any matenal disclosures drawng attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions

Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if,
N our opinien, Information in the Annual Report 1s

- matenally nconsistent with the information in the audited financial
staterments, or

— apparently matenally ncorrect based on, or matenally nconsistent
with, our knowledge of the company acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or

- 15 otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified

any Inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired dunng the

audit and the Directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report
15 far, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Report
appropnately discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Commiftee which we consider should have been disclosed
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Under the Companies Act 2006 we arte required to report toyou If,
IN Our opInIen

— adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for cur audi have nct been recesved frorm branches not
visited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ rermuneration
report to be audred are not In agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

— wehave not receved all the information and explanatons we reguire
for our audit

Under the Lising Rules we are reguired to review

- the Directors’ statements, set out on page 46, In relation to going
concern and in relation to longer-term wiability; and

- the part of the corporate governance statement relating to the
company's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified far our review

We have nothing to report Inrespect of these matters

Edorc

Kieran Storan
{senor statutory auditor}

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor

London
United Kingdom

6 Apnl 2016

BDOLLP s alimited liabilty partnership registered in England and
Wales {wth registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated
Income Statement

Far the year ended 26 December 2015

Year ended Yaar ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
Note £000s £000s
Ravenue 2 312,333 284,559
Cost of sales {120,884} {103,029)
Gross profit 191,449 181,530
Distnbution costs 141,315) (37,155)
Admmistrative expenses (144,161) {121,898)
Cther operating Income 3 869 1,100
Operating profit 6,842 23,577
Adjusted EBITDAM 2 71,047 71,146
Less Exceptional iterns {non-finance) 4 {8,522) (3,739)
Laess Depreciation and amortisation®™ {55,683) (43,830)
Operating profit 6,842 23,577
Finance income 5 24 17
Finance expense 5 {20,706) (30,973)
Movernent in dernvative financral instruments 4 - {1,154)
Loss before tax {13,840) (8,533)
Adiusted profit before tax 5,808 6,681
Less Exceptional tems (non-finance} 4 (8,522) (3,739)
Less Exceptional tems (finance} 4 (6,145) (7,775}
Less Arnortisation 6 (4,981) (3,900)
Loss before tax {13,840) 8,533)
Income tax (expense)/credit 9 (405) 3,014
Loss for the financial year {14,245) (5.519)
Loss attributable to
Owners of the Company {14,245) 5,519)
(Loss)/profit per share
Basic and diluted loss per share 10 (9 86) (B 55)
Ad)usted basic and diluted earnings per share™ 10 320 837

1) Adusied EBITDA s defined as pperating profit before depreciation amorisation and exceplhonal tems For this purpose deprecation and amortisation ncludes customer losses hye stock wiite offs
and hre stock asset dsposals

{2 Adiusted eammygs per share & defined as profit Defore fax with amortation and excephonal costs added back less tax at the prevaiing rate of corporation tax dvded by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares

The notes on pages 81 to 106 form part of these financial statements
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C lidated Stat t
of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 26 December 2015
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2074
£000s £O00s
Loss for the financtal penod (14,245) (5.519)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences anising on consolidation of foreign operations (475) (510}
QOther comprehensive loss for the penod, net of tax (475) {510)
Total comprehensive loss for the period {14,720) (6,029)
Attnbutable to owners of the Company (14,720) (6,029)

The notes on pages 81 to 106 form part of these financial staterments
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

At 26 December 2015
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
Note £000s £000s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 179,936 170,379
Property, plant and equipment 12 183,205 147,213
Deferred tax assets 19 1,900 2,462
365,041 320,054
Current assets
Inventones 13 9,095 6,823
Trade and cther receivables 14 97,769 84,934
Cash 15 1,812 5,858
108,676 97,615
Total assets 473,117 417,669
LIABILIFIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 (89,106) (102,770)
Borrowings 17 (47,535} {19,500)
Prowisicns 18 {3,822) (3.879)
Current 1ax liabilities (520) (561)
{140,983) {126,710
Non-current habihities
Trade and other payables 16 (21,583) {7,033
Borrowings 17 (132,189) {275,048)
Prowistons 18 (10,851) (11,013
Deferred tax kabilities 19 (9,842) 9.372)
(174,465) (302,464}
Total habilities {315,448) {429,174)
Net assets/{liabilities) 158,269 (11,505)
EQUITY
Share capital 20 1,548 645
Share premum - -
Merger reserve 85,376 {544)
Retained earnings/(deficit) 71,345 {11,606)
Total equity/(deficit) attributable to owners of the Group 158,269 (11,508)

The notes on pages 81 to 106 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors on 6 April 2016 and were signed on its behalf by

S N Trowbndge
Director

6 Apnl 2016
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 26 Becember 2015
Share Share Merger Accumulated
capital premium reserve deficit Total equity
Note £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 27 December 2014 645 - (544) (11 606) (11,5058)
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss for the penod - - - {14,245) {14,245)
Foreign currency translation differences
ansing on consolidation of foreign aperations - - - {475) (475)
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (14,720) (14,720}
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
Preference shares 1ssued 20 50 - - - 50
Preference shares redeemed 20 (50} - - - (50}
Acguisition of loan notes via share 1ssue
0 subsidiary 411 - 85,920 - 86,331
New share 1ssue for cash 20, 27 492 102,629 - - 103,121
Share 1ssue costs 20, 23 - (4,076) - - (4,076)
Capuial reduction - (98,553) - 98,553 L=
Dividends pad - - - (882) {882)
At 26 December 2015 1,548 - 85,376 71,345 158,269
Share Share Merger  Accumulated
capital premium reserve deficit Total equity
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 28 December 2013 645 - (544) (5.581) (5,480)
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss for the penod - - - {5,519) {5,519)
Foreign currency transiation differences ansing
on consolidation of fareign operations - - - {510) E10)
Total comprehensive loss for the penod - - - {6,029) {6,029}
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Share based payment - - - 4 4
At 27 December 2014 645 - {544} (11,606) (11.505)

The notes on pages 81 o 106 form part of these financial staterments
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Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

For the year ended 26 Decernber 2015

Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
Note £000s £000s
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax {13,840) {8,533)
Adjustrments for
— Amortisation 4,981 3,900
- Depreciation 39,379 31,768
— Accelerated depreciation relating to hire stock customner losses, hire stock wnte-offs
and other asset disposals 11,217 7,992
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 106 170
- Loss on financial instruments at far value through profit or loss - 1,184
- Finance income (24) (17)
— Finance expense 20,706 30,973
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of acquisiions and exchange differences
on consolidation)
- Inventones (2,180) (948)
- Trade and other recevables {13,334) (16,356)
- Trade and other payables 5,831 6,287
— Provisions {3,587) {802}
Net cash flows from operating activities before changes in hire equipment 49,255 55,588
Purchase of hire equipment (56,642) (39,226}
Cash {utiised)/generated by operations {7,387} 16,362
Net interast pard {18,392) (18,059)
Income tax received/{paid) 1,143 {245)
Net cash utiised in operating activities {24,636) {1,942)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisiton of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 23 {11,010) {6,796}
Acquisition of subsidianes, deferred consideration paid 23 (700) -
Purchases of non hire property, plant, equipment and software {20,278) (14,586}
Net cash used in investing activities (31,988) (21,392)
Cash flows from financing actwrties
Proceeds from the 1ssue of ordinary share capital 103,121 -
Share 1s5ue costs (4,076} -
Proceeds from bomrowings (third parties) 57,000 216,500
Repayments of borrowings {94,500) (186,018)
Capital element of finance lease payments {8,620) (4,181}
Dividends paid (882) -
Net cash received from financing activities 51,043 26,321
Net decrease m cash (5,581) 2,987
Cash at the start of the penod 5,856 2,871
Cash at the end of the period 217 5,858

The notes on pages 81 to 106 form part of these financial staterments
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies
a) Reporiing enbity
The Company 1s Incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom

These consolidated financial staternents compnse the Gompany and
its subsidianes {the 'Group’)

The Group s primanly involved in providing tool and equipment hire
and related services In the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland

HSS Hire Group Limited was incorporated on 7 January 2015 as
a private company imited by shares in the United Kingdom and
re-registered as a public Imited company on 19 January 2015
The Company listed its shares on the Londen Stock Exchange
on 9 February 2015

The Group and Gompany financial staternents were approved by
the Board of Directors on 6 Apnl 2016

b) Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements of HSS Hire Group Plc have been
prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Unicon FRS) and the
Companiss Act 2006

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006 information
about the Company’s employee numbers and costs have not been
presented

The Directors have taken advantage of the option within section 390
of the Companies Act 2006 to prepare ther financial statements up to
a date seven days either side of the Company’s accounting reference
date of 31 December 2015, and these accounts therefore cover

the penad from 28 December 2014 10 26 December 2015 (2014

29 December 2013 to 27 December 2014)

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the
Company’s Income staternent and statement of cormprehensve
income and related notes have not been presented

¢) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pounds Stering (£), which
18 the Group's functional and presentational currency All amounis have
been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise Indicated

d) Basts of preparation

These are the first set of consoldated financial statements of H3S Hire
Group Ple, which s the new ultimate holding company of Hampshire
Topco Limited, following the reconstruction of the Group to facilitate the
Inmal Puibhc Offening

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
mergar method of accounting because the transaction under which
HSS Hire Group Pic became the holding company of Hampshire Topco
Limited was effectively a group reconstruction with no changes inthe
utimate ownership of the group and all the shareholdings in Hampshire
Topco Limited were exchanged via a share for share transter HSS Hire
Group plc did not actively trade at the time  The Group reconstruction
took place on 4 February 2015

The financial staterments have been presented as a continuation of the
Hampshire Topco Limited business The result of the application s 1o
present the financial statements as if HSS Hire Group plc has always
owned the Group, and the comparatives have been prepared on

this basis

Under merger accountng the shares issued on merger were recorded
in the consohdated financial balance sheet at the nominal value of

the shares issued plus the far value of any additional consideration
The difference between the nominal value of the shares Issued and
the nominal value of the shares acquired 1if any s taken to amerger
reserve inthe Group accounts The assets and labiltes of the
subsidiaries are consolidated at book value Inthe Group accounts
and the consclidated reserves of the Group are adjusted to reflect the
statutory share capital, share premium and merger reserve of HSS Hire
Group plc asif it had always existed, adjusted for movements in the
underiying Hampshire Topco Limited share capital and reserves untd
the share for share exchange

These financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost
hasis with the exception of derivative financial instruments which are
measured at far value on each reporting date

The principal steps of the Group recrganisation were as follows

On incorporation the share capital of HSS Hire Group Umited was
£50,001 dwmded Into one ordinary share of £1 00 each and 50,000
redeemable preference shares of £100each

HSS Hire Group plc replaced Hampshire Topco Limited as the hotding
company of the Group, immediately following determination of the
QOffer Price on 3 February 2015, through a share-for-share exchange

As part of the recrganisation, and immediately prior to the share-for-
share exchange the external loan note holders in the Hampshire Topco
Group transferred all of their interests in the notes to Hampshire Topco
Limited in consideration for the issue of ordinary shares in Hampshire
Topco bmited An aggregate loan note balance of approxmately
286,000,000 including £795,500 of accrued interest was converted
into ordinary shares  Such shares n Hampshire Topco Limited were
subsequently exchanged for shares In HSS Hire Group plc as part of
the reorganisation

In adidiion, at the same date, the 50,000 preference shares were
redeemed

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented In these financial statements

e) New accounting standards and accounting standards not

yet effective

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations 1ssued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) became effective during the year ended 26 December 2015
The accounting policies adopted in the presentation of the Group
financial staterments reflect the adoption of the following amendments
to standards and nterpretations as of 26 December 2015

Annual improvernents lo IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013
Cycle (effective T January 2015)

The Group has applied the improvements to the IFRSs included in the
Annual iImproverments to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle
for the first teme 1N the current year These have not had any matenal
impact on the financial statements

Ore of the annual iImprovements requires entities to disclose
Judgements made by management in applying the aggregation cniena
set out In paragraph 12 of iFRS 8 Operating Segments The Group
has aggregated operating segrments into two categones as disclosed
in Note 2 The amendment had no impact to the reported figures
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

1.Accounting policies (continued)

e) New accounting standards and accounting standards not
yet effective {continued)

Standards effective in future periods

Certan new standards, amendments and interpretations to exasting
standards have been published that are relevant to the Group's
aciivties and are mandatory for the Group's accounting penods
beginning afier 1 January 2016 or later and which the Group has
decided not to adopt early

— Ctarficatton of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 8 wil become
effective for accounting penods starting on or after 1 January 2016)

- Annual lmprovements to IFRSs (2014-2016 Cycle) (published
Novernber 2015 — effective date not yet determined}

Fairvalue of acquired assets
When the Group acquires an entity the fair value of the acquired
tangible and ntangible assets needs to be estimated by management

g) Going concern

Note 21 includes the Group’s objectives, polices and processes for
capital management and for financial nsk management including
rmarket nsk, credit nsk and iguidity ngk.

The Directors have also considered the adequacy of the Group's debt
faciities wath specific regard to the following factors

- there s no requirement to redeem any of the Senior Secured Notes
unt! 1 August 2019, and

- the terms and financial covenants relating 16 the revolving credit
faciity secured by the Group, as detaled innote 17 and 21

~ Disclosure Inthative Amendments to IAS 1 {will become
effective for accounting penods starting on or after 1 January 2016)

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers fwill become
effective for accounting penods starting on or afier 1 January 2018
following IASB's decision to delay by 12 months)

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {will become effective for
accounting penods starting onor after 1 January 2018).

- IFRS 16 Leases (will become sffective for accounting penods
starting on or atter 1 January 2019)

The mpact of these standards 1s currently being assessed

f) Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

In prepanng these financial staterments, management has made
judgerments, estimates and assumptions that affect the appkcation of
the Group's accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
labiities, ncome, expenses and other disclosures The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on hustoncal expenence and
various other factors that are helieved o be reasonable under the
crcumstances The estrmates and undertying assumptions are
reviewed on ancngoing basis

Changes In accounting estimates may be necessary if there are
changes in the circumstances on which the eastimate was based, or
as aresult of new information or further nformation Such changes
are recognised in the penod in which the estumate 1s revised

Key assumptions about the future and key sources of estmation
uncertainty that have a nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying value of assets and kabilihes over the next year are set out
below

Imparment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant

and equiprment

These assets are reviewed annually or more frequently if thera s an
indication of impairment to ensure that they are not camed above ther
estmated recoverable amounts To assess if any impaimment exists,
estimates are made of the future cash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset and is eventual disposal Actual outcomes could
vary from such estimates of discounted future cash flows

Onerous lease provision

When an onerous lease has been identified the costs of exiting the
lsase and leaving the leased property are estimated by management
and provided for The actual costs of exiting the lease could vary from
the estimates

Useful economic life of assets

The Group's policy for apphing useful econormic lives and residual
values of assets has been determined through appliving historical
expenence and taking into consideration the nature of assets and
therr ntended use,

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, and senior debt and interest
repayments fallng due as detaled in note 17, show that the Group 1s
axpected to be able to operate wathin the level of its current facilites for
the foreseeable future

After reviewing the above, taking into account current and future
developments and pnncipal nsks and uncertanties, and making
appropnate enguines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence
for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing these financial statements

h) Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes are all entities over which the Company has controt The
Company controls an entity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts to,
vanable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those retums through 1is power over the entity Subsidianes
are fulty consolidated from the date on which conirol s transferred

Unless merger accounting has been adopted in specific
circurnstances, the Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary i1s the far value of the assets transferred,
the llabdies ncurred to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
Interests 1ssued by the Group The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or lability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent habiities assumed n a business combination are
measured initially at ther far values at the acquisition date Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred

tf the business combinaton s achieved In stages, the acquisition date
camrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree Is re-measured to far value at the acquisition date, any gains
or losses ansing from such re-measurement are recognised In the profit
orloss

Any contingent consideraticn 1s measured at far value at the acquisition
date If the contingent consideration is classified as equity then itis not
remeasured and setlement s accounted for within equity Otherwise,
subsequent changes inthe farr value of contingent consideration are
recognised Inprofit or loss

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group comparies are eliminated on
consolidation




1.Accounting policies (continued)

1) Segment reporting

|IFRS 8 Operating segments requires operating segments to be
reported In a manner consistent wath the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker The chief operating decision maker,
who 1s respensible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has bheen dentified as the management
team, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and
Chief Financial Cfficer

For management purposes, the Group 1s organised into segments
based on services provided, and information is prowded to the
management team on these segments for the purposes of resource
aflocation and segment performance management and monitonng

The management team considers there to be tworeportable
segments

- HSS Coare - the provision of iodl and equipment hire and related
services

- HSS Specialist —the provision of generator, climate control,
powered access and cleaning hire equipment and the prowvision
of cleaning maintenance services, under specialist brands

All trading activity and operations are ih the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland

j) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sterling, the Group’s
functional currency, using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where tems are re-measured Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resutting from the settlernent of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary asseis and habilites denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the ncome staterment Foreign currency translation gans
and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the Income statement within finance income ar finance
expense All other foreign currency franslaticn gains and losses are
presented in the Income statement within administrative expenses

The assets and liabiities of foreign operations, including goodwill and
fair value adjustments ansing on consolidation, are translated 1o the
Group's presentational currency, Sterling, at foreign currency exchange
rates rufing at the reporting date

The revenues and expenses of ioreign operations are translated at an
average rate for the penod, which approximates the foresgn currency
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions  Exchange
differences ansing from the translation of foreign operations are
reported in other comprehensive Income

k) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buldings compnse leasehold and freehold retall outlets,
workshops and offices, and are stated at cost, less depreciation or
provision for imparrent where appropnate Land s not depreciated
and depreciation on other assets 1s calculated using the straght-line
method to allocate thewr cost o revalued amounts 1o ther residual
values over ther estimated useful Ives, as follows.

- Leasehold properties with Over unexpired

less than fifty years unexpired penod of lease
- Freehold buldings and

long leasehold properties Over fifty years
= Plant & machinery Twototenyears
— Matenals and eguipment

held for hwre Twoto ten years
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Matenals and equipment held for hire purposes are stated at cost, less
depreciation or provision for imparmnent where appropnate Matenals
and equpment are wntten off over therr useful economic ife to the
asset's residual value which 1s estimated at between ten percent of
costand nil Profits or losses ansing when custormers are rwvorced for
loss of equipment held for hire purposes are calculated by reference
to average written down values

Gans and losses on disposals of matenals and equipment held for hire
are calculated as the difference between the proceeds receved and
the carmying amount of the asset and are recogrised in profit or loss

[} Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acguisition of subsidianes and represents the
difference between the far value of the consideration transferred and
the farr value of the acquired assets, labities and contingent habilities

impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impanment testing, goadwill acquired in a business
combinatron is allocated to each of the cash generating units {CGUs),
or groups of CGUs that 1s expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combinaton A CGU s the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely Independent of the
cash flows of other assets or CGUs

Goodwill mparment reviews are undertaken annually The carmang
value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which i1s
the higher of value In use and the farr value less costs of disposal
Any mpairment 1s recogrised immediately as an expense and s
not subseguently reversed

intangible assets acquired on acquisition

When an acquisition 1s completed intangible assets are separately
identified from goodwill and measured at {far value Brands are valued
using the relief from royalty method Customer relationships are valued
using the excess of eamings method

The HSS brand was first established in the late 1950's, and therefore
given its longevity the Directors congider the HSS brand to have an
indefinite Ife and # 15 not therefore amortised, but Instead subjected to
annual impairment testing using the relief from royalty methodology to
calculate the far value of the brand

All other brands and customer relationships are amortised over their
useful economic ife The Directors have assessed the brands of ABird,
UK Platforms, TecServ and Apex and estimated that they have useful
economic ives of 20 years The Directors have estmated the customer
relatonship ntangible assets recognised on the acquisiion of Hero
Acquistions Limited, TecServ Cleaning Equipment Seraces Lirmited
and Apex Generators bimited as having useful economic ives of

10 years

Dunng the year the Group acqured All Seasons Hire Umited (hote 22)
The Directors have assessed the brand and the customer relationship
intangble assets recogrised on acquisition to have useful econonmic
Ives of 10and 12 years respectvely
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

1. Accounting pclicies {continued)

I} Intangible assets (continuedy)

Software development costs

Costs assoclated with mantaining computer software programmes
are recogrised as an expense as incured Development cosis that are
directly attnbutable to the design and testing of dentifiable and untque
software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following cntena are met

— 1t1s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will
be avalable for use,

— management intends io complete the software product and use or
selit,

— there s an ability to use or sel the scftware product,

— 1t can bhe demonstrated how the software product will generate
probable future economic benefits,

— adequate techrical, financial and other rescurces to complete the
development and tc use or sell the software product are avallable,
and

- the expenditure attnbutable to the software product dunng its
development can be reliably measured

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over ther estimated useful Ives, which does not exceed
four years

QOther intangible assets

Other ntangible assets that are acquired by the Group that have finite
useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses Other intangible assets are
amortised over therr useful economic life, and the amortisation charge
15 Included within administrative expenses

Impairment of intangible assets (excluding goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite iives)

Imparrment reviews are undertaken whenever events or changes in
crrcumstances ndicate ther carrying value may not be recoverable

If the farr value of an intangible asset 1s estimated to be less than iis
carrying amount, the carrying amount 1s reduced to s recoverable
amount Where an imparrment loss subsequentty reverses, the camying
amount 1s increased to the revised estmiate, but restneted so that the
increased amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no imparment loss been recogrised in prior
years Anyimpairment losses of reversals are recognised mmediately
In the Income statement

m) Denvative financtal instruments

Histoncally the Group has used a denvative financial nstrument to
manage Its exposure 1o interest rate nsk. Denvatrves are initially
recogrised at farr value on the date a denvative contract 1s entered

into and are subsequently re-measured at therr far value at each
reporting date The resuling gain or loss 1s recogrised in proiit or loss
immediately Denvatives are camed as financial assets when the far
value 1s posittve and as financial labilites when the farr value 1s negative

A dervative 1s presented as a non-current asset or non-current liability
f the remaining matunity of the instrument 1s more than one year and

15 not expected to be realised or settied within one year Where this

15 not the case, denvatves are presented as current assets or

cumrent liabilties

n} Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net
realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable vanable selling expenses Provision 1s made
for those Inventory tems where the net realisable value 1s estimated
to be lower than cost Net realisable vahue is based on both histoncal
experence and assumptions regarding estmated future sales value

o) Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are recogrnised initially at far value, which
15 deemed to be the transaction price Subsequently, trade and other
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any provision for imparment

Imparrment provisians are recogrnised when there s objective
evidence that the Group will be unable to collect all of the amounts
due under the terms recevable, the amount of such provision being
the dfference between the net camying amount and the present
value of the future expected cash flows associated with the Impaired
receivables On confirmation that the frade receivable will not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset 1s written off against
the associated provision

p) Cash

In the staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cashin hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highty
lquid nvestrents with matunties of three months or less and bank
overdrafts In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current labilties

q) Share capital

Ordinary shares

Financial tinstruments used by the Group are classified as equity onty
1o the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial asset
or afinancialiability The Group s ordinary shares and preference
shares are classified as equity nstruments  Incrermental costs
directly attributable to the Issue of ordinary shares are recognised

as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Shara premium
‘The amount subscribed for share capital in excess of norminal value,
less any costs directly attnbutable to theissue of new shares

Retamned earnings/accumulated deficit
Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income staternent

Dividends

Dwdends on ordinary share capital are recogrised as a labidity inthe
Group's financial statements in the penod in which they are declared by
the Comparny In the case of intenm dvdends, these are considered to
be declared when they are paid and in the case of final dvdends these
are declared when authonsed by the shareholders

Merger reserve

The merger reserve 15 the amount ansing on the difference between the
norminal value of the shares issued on the merger and the carmyng value
of the interest in subsidiary

r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers
Trade payables are recognised intally at far value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost Trade payables are classified as current
llabibties f payment 1s due within one year or fess, otherwise they are
presented as non-current labiliies




1.Accounting policies {continued)

s} Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised intally at far vajue, net of transaction costs
incurred Borrowings are subsequently camed at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds (net of transacton costs) and the
redemption value i1s recognised in the ncome statement over the
pencd of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that his probable that some
or all of the facility will be draran down Inihis case, the fee s deferred
until the draw-down occurs To the extent there 1s no ewidence that it 1s
probabte that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the {eeis
capialised as a pre-payment for hquidity services and amortised over
the penod of the tacility to which it refates

1t} Cost of sales, distnbution costs and administrative expenses
Cast of sales includes direct costs associated wath the Group's
principal business of equipment hire Such costs include hire

stock rehwre, cost of reselling plant and equipment, maintenance,
depreciation, amortisation and asset write off and disposals
Distribution expenses compnse vehicle costs and transport wages
Admurustrative expenses compnse pnncipally staff and property costs
and costs of acquistions

u) Eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) and Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are non-IFRS and non-Generally
Accepted Accounting Policy (GAAP) performance measures used by
rmanagement 1o assess the operating performance of the Group
EBIMDAs defined as operating profit before depreciation, amortisation
and hire stock disposals and wimte offs Exceptional items are excluded
from EBITDA to calculate Adjusted EBITDA. The Directors pnmanly
use the Adjusted EBITDA measure when making decisions about

the Group's activities  As these are non-GAAP measures, Adjusted
EBITDA and Adjusted operatng profit measures used by cther entities
may ot be caleulated in the same way and are hence not directly
comparable

v) Finance income and expense
Finance income compnses interest recevable on cash balances

Finance expense compnses interest payable on borrowings, interest
payable on finance leases, amortisation and wnte off of debt issuance
costs and the unwinding of the discount on non-current provisions

Interest 1s recogrised in profil or loss as it accrues, using the effective
interest rate Interest payable on borrowings includes a charge in
respect of atributable transaction costs which are recognised In
profit or loss over the period of the borrovangs on an effective interest
hasis The interest expense component ci finance lease payments

15 recognised in the income statement using the lease’s Implicrt
interest rate

w) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the pencd compnses current and deferred tax

Tax s recogrised in the ncome staternent, except to the extent that
relates 10 iterns recogrised n other comprehensive incorme or directly
nequity In this case, the 1ax s also recogrised in other comprehensive
income or directly In equity, respectively

The current Income tax charge s calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial positon
date. Management penodically evaluates positions taker in tax retumns
with respect to situations In which applicable tax regulation s subject to
interpretation It establishes provisions where approprate on the basis
of ameunts expected to be pad to the tax authonties
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Deferred incorne tax is recogruised on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and habilites and therr carmyng
amounis in the staternent of financial position However, deferred tax
labilites are not recognised if they anse from the intial recognition of
goodwili Deferred Income tax 1s not accounted for if it anses from
initial recognition of an asset or lability In a transaction other than

a busness combination that at the tme of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profitor loss Deferred ncorme tax

1s determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacied by the staternent of financial position daie and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assetis
realised cr the deferred income tax habidity 1s settied

Deferred ncome tax assets are recognised only to the extent that itis
probable that future taxable proft will be avalable aganst which the
termporary differences can be utlised

Deferred income tax habiiies are provided on taxahle temporary
differences ansing from investments in subsidianes, except for deferred
Income tax kabilites where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
dfference s controlled by the Group and 1itis probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future

Deferred Income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences ansing from investments in subsichanes only 1o the extent
that it 1s probable the temporary difference will reverse In the future and
there Is sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilsed Defered ncome tax assets and hablities
are offset when there s a legally enforceabla nght to offset current tax
assets aganst current tax liabilihes and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabiities relate to Income taxes levied by the same
taxation authorty on exther the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

x) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related senvice s
provded Aliability i1s recognised for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this

amaount as a resut of past service provided by the employee and the
cbligation can be estimated reliably

Pension obhigations

The Group operates employee optional stakeholder retirement and
death benefit schemes Both employee and employers are required
to make contnbutions with the employers’ contributions for each
employee determined by the level of contnbution made by the
employee and the employee’s length of service wathin the Group or
subsidiary comparty The employer's contnbutions are charged to
profit and loss in the year in which the contnbutions are due

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by
the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The
Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the {ollowing
dates {a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and {b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructunng
that 1s wathin the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, conimgent habiliies and
contingant assets (AS 37) and Involves the payment of termination
benefits In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefts are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer Benefits faling
due more than one year after the end of the reporting penod are
discounted to ther present value
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1.Accounting policies {continued)

y} Provisions

Provisions for cnerous leases, restructuring costs and legal clams are
recognised when

— the Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation as a resutt
of past events,

- 1itis probable that an outflow of resourcas will be required to settle
the obligation, and

- the amount has been reliably estimated

Provisions for dilapidation are recognised in full when the related
facities are installed A corresponding amount equivalent to the
prowvision Is also recognised as part of the cost of the related property
The amount recognised is the estimated cost of dilapidations,
discounted to its net present value, and 1S reassessed each year In
accordance with local conditions and requirements Changes in the
estimated timing of diapidations or diapidations cost estimates are
dealt with prospectively by recording an adjustment to the prowision,
and a corresponding adustment to property, plant and equipment
The unwingding of the discount on the dilapidations provision s included
as afinance expense

Restructunng provisions compnse lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments Prowvisions are not recogrused for
future operating losses Prowsions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation

2z} Revenue recognition

The Group's actmties consist of supphang hire and equipment services
within the UK and the Republic of Ireland Revenue 1s measured at the
far value of the consideration recaived or recevable, and represents
amounts recevable for goods and services supplied, including
compiensation for damaged or lost hire stock, stated net of discounts,
rebates, retumns and value added taxes

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured when it 1s probable that future economic benefits
wall fiow to the entity Revenue 15 recognised as follows

- Hrreactmiies Over the period of hire on a straight
line basis
~ Damaged/lost hire
stock compensation When the loss or damage 1s identrfied
— Tramng and When a nght to consideration anses
support services on the delivery of the training course

Revenue ansing from the sale of ex-hire fleet assets, fuel and
consumables s recognised in the Income statement when the
significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been fransferred
to the buyer

aa) Leases

Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantiafly
all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset have transferred to
the Group and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the balance
sheet and are depreciated over the shorter of useful life and lease term
with any imparment being recognised in accumulated depreciation
Leased assets are recorded at an amount equal 1o the lower of its far
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of finance leases The capital elements of future obligations
under leases and hire purchase contracts are included in liabilites in
the staterment of financial postion and analysed between current and
non-current amounts The interest elements of the obikgations are
charged 1o the Income statement over the penods of the leases and
hire: purchase contracts so as to produce a constant penodic rate of
Interest on the remaining balance of the iability

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership are classified as operating leases Operating lease rentals
are charged to the Incorne statement on a straight-hne basis over the
lease term

Lease incentives are recorded as a liabiily and then recognised over
the lease term on straight ine basis in the income statement asa
reduction of rental expense

bb) Fair value measurement

Anumber of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require
the determination of far value, for both financial and non-financial
assets and labiities Set out below s an analysis of the valuation
method of the Group’s financial Instruments

The different levels in the fair value bierarchy have been defined
as follows

— Level 1 quoted {unadjusted) pnces in active markets for identical
assets or lahilites

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prces included within level 1
that are observable, for the asset or lability, either directly
{ie aspnces)or ndrectly (i e derved from prices)

~ Level 3 inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Farr values have been determined for measurement purposes based
on the following methods

Derwvative instruments (level 2)

The far values of interest rate swaps are calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on the terms and matunty of
each contract and using mariket interest rates as applicable for a similar
nstrument at the measurement date Far values reflect the credit nsk
of theinstrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit
nsk of the Group entity and counterparty where appropriate

The tar value of nterest rate swap contracts are calculated by
management based on external valuations received from the Group's
bankers and 1s based on anticipated future interest yields

cc) Exceptional items

Exceptional termns are disclosed separately in the incorne staterment
whera it 15 necessary 1o do so to provide further understanding of the
financial performance of the Group Exceptional tems are items of
income or expense that have been shown separately due to the
significance of ther nature or amount and include IPO costs (see note
1dd} below) acquisiion costs, restructunng costs, accelerated debt
1ssuance costs and far value movements on denvatve financial
instruments Restructunng costs incurred in 2015 relate 1o a cost
reduction program and the set up of our National Distnbution Centre
as discussed in our financial review and note 4

dd) Listing costs

As disclosed in note 1{d), HSS Hire Group plc was admitted to the
premium Iisting segment of the Official List of the Financial Conduct
Authonty on 9 February 2015 As pant of the IPQ, the Group incurred
certain costs These costs have been allocated between those relating
to the issue of new shares, those related to the 1ssue of existirg shases
and those costs related to other activiies associated with the IPO
Costs that relate to the Issue of new shares have been set aganst
HSS Hire Group plc's share premium account in accordance with
1AS32 (Financial Instruments Presentation) All other IPO related costs
are charged to profit or loss

ee) Credit note provision

The Group makes provision for credit notes raised after the end of the
reporting penod that relate to customer invoices raised hefore the end
of the penod, net of any mpairment charges relating to the customer
nvoIces
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2. Segmentreporting
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As explaned in Note 1), the management team considers the reportable segments to be HSS Core and HSS Specialist All segment revenue,
operating profit, assets and kabilbies are attnbutable to the prncipal activity of the Group being the provision of tool and equipment hire and related
services In, and to customers in, the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland  The Group has no single externial customers that prowvide more

than 109 of Group tumover
Year ended 26 December 2015
HSS
HSS Core Specilalist Total
£000s £000s £000s
Total revenue from external customers 261,716 50,617 312,333
Adjusted EBITDA 45,635 25,412 71,047
Depreciation and amortisation (42,001) (13,682) {55,683)
Exceptional iterns (note 4) (8,245) 277 (8,522)
Segment operating {loss)/profit (4,611) 11,453 6,842
Finance income 24
Adjusted finance expense (14,561)
Exceptional finance expense (note 4) (6,145)
Profit before tax {13,840)
Income tax expense (405)
Loss after tax {14,245)
Total assets 377,235 96,482 473,717
Total habilities (238,647) (76,801) (315,448)
Additions to non-current assets in the year {excluding derivative financial instruments)
Intangible assets 5,466 9,072 14,538
Property, plant and equipment
- additions 56,028 28,011 84,039
- acquired on acquistions - 2,910 2,910
Total 61,494 39,993 101,487
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2. Segment reporting (continued)

Year ended 27 December 2014

HSS Core  HSS Specialist Total
£000s £000s £000s
Total revenue from external customers 245 578 38,981 284,659
Adjusted EBITDA 51,245 19,901 71,146
Depreciation and amortisation {32,463) {11,367) (43,830)
Exceptional items (note 4) (3.017) (722) (3,739)
Segment operating profit 15,765 7812 23,577
Finance income 17
Finance expensse {30,973)
Mavernent in denvative financial instruments {1,154}
Loss before tax {8,533}
income tax expense 3.014
Loss after tax 5,519)
Total assets 332,682 84,987 417,669
Total habilities 391,202 37,882 429,174
Additions to non-current assets in the year (excluding denvative financial instruments)
Intangible assets 2,950 5,129 8,079
Property, plant and equipment
- additions 52,418 31,174 83 592
- acquired on acquisitions 351 3,679 3,930
Total 55,719 39,882 95,601
3. Other operating Income
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000s £000s
Property rental Income 869 1,100
869 1,100
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4. Exceptional tems
ltems of Income or expense have been shown as excephonal ether because of their size or nature or because they are non-recumng  An analysis
of the amount presented as exceptional items in the consolidated income statement 1s given below

Year ended Year endied
26 December 27 December

2015 2014

F000s £000s
Restructuring, IPO and Acquisition costs
Included in adminisirative expenses 8,522 3,739
Exceptional items {non-finance) 8,522 3,739
Refinancing costs
Included n finance expense 6,145 6,621
Fair value movement on derivative financial instruments
Included in finance expense - 1,154
Exceptional tems {finance) 6,145 7,775
Total exceptional items 14,667 11,514

Restructunng, IPO costs and Acquisition costs

During the year the Group incurred costs of £5 3m (2014 £11m) in relation 1o the restructunng of the business and its operations Of the ©5 3m
incurred in 2015, £2 Omrelated to onerous leases on non-trading stores, £1 8m related to set-up costs of the NDEC as we accelerated iis
development and £1 Smirelated to the cost reduction plan, principally redundancies IPO costs incurred in the year and not available {o offset
against share premium account {see note 1(dd) totalled £2 9m (2014 £2 4m}

Dunng the year the Group has incurred £0 3m (2014 £0 2m) relating to acquisitions Principally these costs have related to legal and professional
fees associated with the acquisitons  In accordance with IFRS these have been expensed as ncurred

The tax effect of these items in the year ended 26 December 2015 was to reduce the tax charge by £1 8m (2014 £07m}

Refinancing costs
On 12 February 2015 the Group, made an early redemption of £64 Om of ds B 75% semior secured notes as described in note 27 This gave nse to
a bond redempiion prermium of £4 3m and the aceeleration of the wnie off of debt 1ssue costs of €1 8m

In the year ended 27 December 2014 the Group incurred costs associated wath restructunng ts debst These costs include £6 6min relation to the
acceleration of the wnte-off of previous debt issuance costs, net of a receipt of £0 5m for the early termination of a swap agreement

The tax effect of these iterms was to reduce the tax charge by £1 2m (2014 £1 3m)

Fair value movement on denvative inancial instruments

The Group took out an interest rate swap in 2012 to fix UBOR interest at 0 353% in respect of £120m of the senior debt which was due to
expire on 28 November 20168 The movements in the far value of the interest rate swap have been taken to profit and loss and presented as
exceptional tems

The nterest rate swap was cancelled in the year ended 27 December 2014 as part of the 2014 debt restructunng, hence there1s no similar charge
in the year ended 26 December 2015
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5. Finance iIncome and expense

Year ended Year ended

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £000s

Interest recerved on cash deposts. (24) 7

Finance income (24) (a7
Bank loans and averdrafts 1,315 1,627
Investor loan notes 945 8,253
Senior secured notes 9,711 12,021
Finance leases 1,410 g70
Interest unwind on discounted provisions 55 220
Debt ssue costs 2,950 7,882
Bond redemption prermium 4,320 -
Fimance expense 20,706 30,973
Net finance expense 20,682 30,956

The bond redemption premium charged in to profit and loss in 2015 relates to the earty partial redemption of the senior secured note using
part of the funds raised from the IPO Debt 1ssue costs in 2015 include £1 8m of accelerated wnite-off of previous debt issuance costs due to

the partial redemption

The debt issue costs charged to profit and loss in 2014 arose as a result of the bond issue and refinancing undertaken, and includes £6 6m

of accelerated write-Off of previous debtissuance costs and net of a receipt of EQ Smfor the earty termination of a swap agreement

6. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting)
Year ended Year ended
26 Dacember 27 December
2015 2014
£'000s £'000s
Amortisation of iIntangible assets 4,981 3,800
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,379 31,768
Accelerated depreciation relating to hire stock customer losses, hire
stock wite-offs and other asset disposals 11,323 8,162
Operating lease rentals
- land and bulldings 16,762 16,407
— motor vehicles 8,530 7,147
Sublease rental ncome (869) {1,100)
Foreign currency translation gains 7 (14)
80,113 66,270
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£'000s £'000s
Auditors’ remuneration
— audht of Group and Company financial stalements BO 50
- audit of subsidiary financial statements 231 196
— other audit related assurance services - 365
- corporate finance services 72 61
383 672
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7. Employees
The average number of people employed by the Group (including Directors) dunng the year was as follows
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
Number Number
Distnbution 614 615
Hire stock and inventory maintenance 460 401
Sales and adrministration 2,270 1,880
3,344 2,896
The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees were as follows
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£'000s £'000s
Wages and salanes 81,447 69,131
Social security costs 7,486 6,713
Pension costs 1,596 1,538
Share-based payments - 4
90,529 77,386

IAS 24 Related party transactions (IAS 24) requires the Group to disclose all fransactions and outstanding balances with the Group's key
management personnel 1AS 24 defines key management personnel as those persons having authonty and responsitility for planning,
drecting and controling the actties of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity

The key management personnel of the Group compnise the Directors along with serior managers from central support services and divisional

and regional operations

The aggregate remuneration costs of key management personnel were as follows
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Wages and salanes 1,489 2,853
Employer's national insurance contnbutions and similar taxes 234 336
Compensation for loss of office 470 -
Other pension costs ral 114
2,264 3,103

At 26 December 2015 there were no amounts due to key management personne! (27 December 2014 £nil)
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

8. Directors’ remuneration
The remuneraton costs of the Company's Directors were.,

Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Aggregate emoluments 1,383 1,280
Pension costs 58 48
1,441 1,328
The remunerabion of the highest paid Director was
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£°000 £'000
Aggregate emaluments 330 549
Pension costs 29 10
359 559
9. Income tax expense
(a) Analysis of (credityexpense in the year
Year ended Year ended
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£'0008 £'000s
Current tax charge/{credit]
UK corporation tax on the loss for the year 183 121
Adjustments in respect of pror years {141) (275)
Total current tax charge/{credit) 42 {154)
Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Deferred tax charge/{credd) for the year 363 {2,86Q)
Total deferred tax charge/{credit) 363 (2,860)
Income tax charge/{credit) 405 (3,014)

{b) Factars affecting the tax expense in the year
The tax assessed on the loss for the year differs from the standard UK corporation rate of tax The differences are explamned below

Year ended Year ended

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£'000s £ 000s

(Loss)/profit before tax (13,840) {8,5633)

Profit before tax multiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) {2,803) (1,835)
Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,349 1,748

Adjustments n respect of prior years {141) (275)

Difference in foreign tax rate 188 120

Movements in unprovided deferred tax 1,812 (2,772)

Income tax charge/(credtt) 405 {3,014)
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9. Income tax expense (continued)

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The siandard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 21% to 20% wath effect from 1 Apnl 2015 Accordingly, the Group’s profits for the year
ended 26 December 2015 were 1axed at an effective rate of 20 25%

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 23% to 21% wath effect from 1 Apnl 2014 Accordingly, the Group's prefits for the year
ended 27 December 2014 were 1axed at an effectrve rate of 21 5%

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset relating to temporary tirming differences on plant and equipment, intangible assets and
prowisians of £11 4m (2014 £7 9m} and relating 1o losses £3m (2014 £5m)

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it s not sufficiently certain when taxable profits that can be utiised
to absorb the reversal of the temporary difference will be made in the fuiure

10. Eamings per share

Year ended Year ended

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

Loss attributable to owners {£000) {14,245) (5,519)
Basic and diluted profit/{loss) per share {pence) (8 86) (8 55)
Adjusted basic and diluted profit/(loss} per share (pence) 320 837
Basic and diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 144,534,441 64,546,960

Basic and diluted eamings per share has been calculated by dwvding the result atinbutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in 1ssue for that penod Adjusted earmings per share has been calculated after adjusting the result attnbutable to the equity helders
for exceptional items and the amortisation charge The followsng 1s a reconciiation between the basic and diuted eamings per share and the
adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share

Year ended Year ended

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

Basic and diluted profit/{loss) per share (pence} {9 86) (8 55)
Add back

Tax charge per share 0.28 (4 67)

Exceptional tems per share™ 10.15 17 84

Arnortisation per share® 3.45 604

Charge
Tax at prevaling rate (0.81) (2 29}
Ad|usted basic and diluted profit per share {pence) 320 B 37

{1) Exceptonal iterns per share & calcutated as total hnanca and non finance exceptonal iterns dvded by the wexghted average number o shares in ssue through tha penod
2) Amortrsation per share 1s calculated as the amorksation charge dewded by the waighted average number of shares n issue through the penod
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Notes to the Consoldated
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11. Intangible assets

Customer
Goadwill relatonships Brands Software Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 27 Decernber 2014 122,385 25,700 23,510 10,032 181,627
Additions - - - 5,082 5,082
Acquired on acquesiion 7,480 1,344 632 - 9,456
Disposals - - - {115) (115)
At 26 December 2015 129,865 27,044 24,142 14,999 186,050
Amortisation
At 27 December 2014 - 5,409 112 5,727 11,248
Charge for the penod - 2,605 122 2,254 4,981
Disposals - - - {115) {115)
At 26 December 2015 - 8,014 234 7,866 16,114
Net book value
At 26 December 2015 129,865 18,030 23,908 7,133 179,936
Customer
Goodwill relationships Brands Software Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost
At 28 Decernber 2013 118,446 24,800 23,220 7.084 173,550
Additions - - - 2,950 2,950
Acquired on acguisition 3,039 900 290 - 5,129
Disposals - - - (2) (2)
At 27 December 2014 122,385 25,700 23,510 10,032 181,627
Amortisation
At 28 December 2013 - 2,861 45 4,432 7,338
Charge for the perod - 2,548 67 1,285 3,800
Disposals - - - 10 10
At 27 December 2014 - 5,409 i12 5727 11,248

Net book value
At 27 December 2014 122,385 20,291 23,398 4,305 170,379
Cn the acquisiion of All Seasons Hire Limited on 8 May 2015 the Group acquired £1 3m of customer lists and £0 6m of brand intangible

All goodwill ansing on business combinations has been allocated to the Cash Generating Units {CGUS) that are expected to beneftt from those
business combinations The Group tests goodwill and indefinite life brands annually for impasrment
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11. Intangible assets {continued)
Analysis of goodwill and indefinite life brands by cash generating units

Indefinite Ife

Goodwill Brands Total
£000s £600s £000s

Allocated to
HSS Core 112,677 21,800 134,577
Powered access 4,114 - 4,114
Climate control 7,021 - 7,021
Power generation 6,053 - 6,053
At 26 December 2015 129,865 21,900 151,765

Indefirute life

Gaoodwill Brands Total
£000s £000s £000s

Allocated to
HSS Core 112,218 21,900 134,118
Powered access 4,114 - 4,114
Power generation 6,053 - 6,053
At 27 December 2014 122,385 21,900 144,285

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of a CGU using a value-in-use model by projecting pre-tax cash flows for the next five years
together with a terminal value using a long-term growth rate The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGUs tested
for mparment are forecast revenue and EBITDA

The five-year plans used in the imparrnent modelds are based onmanagement's past expenence and future expectations of performance

The key assumptions used for all matenat CGUs are a pre tax discount rate of 10 3% (2014 11 4%) a short to medum-term growth rate of between
5% and 12% (2014 between 5% and 17%), and along-term growth rate of 2 5% (2014 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used 1s denved from a weighted average cos! of capital (WACC) calculation for the Group and benchmarked aganst
similar organisations operating within the sector The long-term growth rate used does not exceed the average for the sector

The total recoverable amount iIn respect of goodwill and brands, as assessed by management using the ebove assumptions, Is greater that the
carmying amount and therefore no impairment charge has been booked in the year for any CGU

Managemeni consider that it 1s not reasonably possible for the assurmptions to change so significantly as to elminate the excess

Other intangible assets
No impairment tests were considered to be required at 26 Dacember 2015 and the carmying value of other Irtangible assets 1s considered to
be appropnats
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

12. Property, plant and equipment

Matenals &
Land & Plant & Equipment
Buldings Machinery held for hire Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 27 December 2014 49,985 51,122 222,577 323,684
Foreign exchange differences (4) (68) {708) (780)
Additions 13,694 5,325 65,020 84,039
Acquired on acquissiion 32 179 2,689 2,910
Disposals {394) (682) {33,350} (34,426)
At 26 December 2015 63,313 55,876 256,238 375,427
Accumulated depreciation
Al 27 Decernber 2014 31,533 41,136 103,802 176,471
Fareign exchange differences - (48) @477} (525)
Charge for the pencd 4,119 3,505 31,755 39,379
Disposals (394) 577) {22,132) {23,103)
At 26 December 2015 35,258 44,016 112,948 192,222
Net book value
At 26 December 2015 28,055 11,860 143,290 183,205
Materals &
Land & Plant & Equipment
Buildings Machinary held for hire Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 28 December 2013 43,836 46,237 169,514 259,587
Foreign exchange differences {5) (68) {724) (797)
Additions 6,595 5,083 71,934 83,592
Acquired on acquisition Q 100 3,821 3,930
Disposals 450) {210) (21,968) (22,628}
At 27 December 2014 49,985 51,122 222,577 323,684
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 December 2013 28,411 38,594 92,705 159,710
Foreign exchange differences - (49) (492) 541)
Charge for the period 3,497 2,706 25,565 31,768
Disposals (375) (115) {13,976) (14,466)
At 27 December 2014 31,533 41,136 103,802 176,471
Net book value
At 27 December 2014 18,452 9,986 118,775 147,213
Al 28 December 2013 15,425 7,643 76,809 99,877

The net book value of matenals and equipment held for hire includes an amount of £38 8m (27 December 2014 £13 9m)in respect of assets held
under finance leases The depreciation charge for assets held under finance leases in the year ended 26 December 2015 was £7 3m 2014 £4 0m)
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13. Inventones

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £000s

Inveniones 5,716 5821
Inventory spares 3,719 2,459
Total inventories 9,435 8,280
Prowision for impairment (340) (1,457}
Inventories 9,095 6,823
26 December 27 December

2015 2014

Provision for impairment of inventories £000s £000s
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,457 1,180
Utlisation of provisions (1,117) -
Imparment provisions recognised dunng the year - 277
Balance at the end of the year 340 1,457

The cost of nventones recogrsed as an expense and included in cost of sales s £26 4m (2014 £25 3m)

14. Trade and otherreceivables

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £'000s

Gross trade recevables 84,763 71,176
Less proviston for imparment {3,816) (3,514)
Net trade receivables 80,947 67,662
Cther debtars 387 27
Prepayments and accrued income 16,327 15419
Corporaticn tax 108 1,826
Total trade and other receivables 97,769 84,934

The provision for impairment of trade recenvables 1s estimated based upon past default expenence and the Directors’ assessment of the current
economic environment, and includes prowisions for credit notes raised after year-end for custormer invoices Issued belore year end (see note 1(es)
The creation and release of bad debt recevables provision 1s charged/{credited) to administrative expenses in the income statement, and the credit

note prowvsion s charged/crediied) to revenue
The following table details the movements In the provision for impairment of trade recevables

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £000s

Balance at the beginning of the year (3,514) (2,610}
Movement in provision (302) (904)
Balance at the end of the year (3,816) {3,514)

The ageing profile of debtors that are overdue but not imparred s

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

Days overdue £000s £'000s
11to 30 days 7,020 3,581
31 to 60 days 3,925 2,855
61 to 90 days 1,796 1,232
Over 80 days 4,203 1,602
16,944 9,080

These amounts have not been impaired as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

15, Cash
26 December 27 Decembwer
2015 2014
£000s £000s
Cash (statement of financial position) 1,812 5,858
Bank overdrafis (1,535) -
Cash and cash equivalents 277 5,858

The Group's banking arrangernents are subject 1o amaster netting arrangement wath therr pnincipal bankers The net balance of a portfolio of
accounts, some of which may be in overdraft and sorme may be In credit, represents the balance held

16. Trade and other payables
26 December 27 December

2015 2014
£000s £'000s
Current

Chligations under finance leases 11,050 5,356
Trade payables 48,554 62,040
Cther taxes and social secunty costs 10,284 6,630
Cther creditors 1,730 2,068
Accrued interest on borowings 3,755 9,602
Accruals and deferred income 13,733 17,074
89,106 102,770
26 December 27 Decernber
2015 2014
£000s £'000s

Non-current
Ohligations under finance lease 21,583 7,033
21,583 7,033

The maturity profie of the Group's finance leases Is as follows

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £'000s

Less than one year 11,050 5,356
Two to five years 14,303 7,033
Over five years 7,280 -
32,633 12,389

The following table gives a reconciliation of the mimimum lease payrments to the carrying value of the finance lease llabiities
26 December 27 December

205 2014

£000s £'000s

Less than one year 12,430 6,237
Two to five years 15,314 7.783
Qwver five years 7,533 -
35,277 14,020

Less future interest payments (2,644) {1,631)

Carmying value of lease labikties 32,633 12,389
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17. Borrowings
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000s £7000s
Current
Revolving credit facility 46,000 19,500
Bank overdraft 1,535 -
47,535 19,500
Non-current
Senior secured note 132,189 193,944
Loan notes - 81,102
132,189 275,046
The nominal value of the Group's loans at each reporting date s as follows
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000s £'000s
Secured senior note 136,000 200 000
Loan notes - B1,395
136,000 281,395
The secured senior note 1s a B 75% fixed rate bond matunng in 2019, and is listed on the Luxembourg stock exchange
The Group's Super Senior RCF and Senior Secured Notes are both secured on a shared basis by a first rankinglien over certain assets

(compnsing subsiantially all matenal assets of the Group) The Super Seruor RCF shares its secunty with the Senior Secured Notes but shall get

prionty over any enforcement proceeds via 2 payment waterfall

The loan notes were 10% fixed rate unsecured payment In kind {PIK) notes matunng in 2032 As part of the IPQO, they were converted nto ordinary

shares at a pnce of £2 10 per ordinary share Accrued interest at the date of conversion was settled through the issue of PIK notes that were also
converted into ordinary shares at a pnce of £2 10 per ardinary share.
The interest rates on the Group's vanable interest loans are as tollows
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
% above % above
LIBOR LIBOR
Revolving credit factlity 200% 2 50%
The interest rates on the Group's fixed interest loans are as follows
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
Fixed rate Fixed rate
Secured senior note 675% 675%
Loan notes - 10 00%
Weighted average interest rate on borrowings 555% 7 19%
The Group’s borrowings have the followang matunty profile
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000s £000s
Less than one year 9,180 13,500
Two to five years 163,540 254,000
QOver five years - 486,563
172,720 754,063
Less nterest cash flows
Senior secured note (36,720) {67.500)
Loan notes - (405,168)
Total pnncipal cash flows 136,000 281,395

The Group has undrawn committed borrowing faciities of £35 Om at 26 December 2015 {27 December 2014 £37 7my}
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

18. Provisions

Non-trading

stores Dilzpdations Other Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s
At 27 December 2014 7.017 7,854 2 14,892
Additions 3N 3,336 - 3,647
Utitsed dunng the penod {2,101} (669) - {2,770)
Unwind of provision {80) 112 - 32
Released (610) (497) {21} (1,128)
At 26 December 2015 4,537 10,136 - 14,673
Of which
Current 1,228 2,594 - 3,822
Non current 3,309 7,542 - 10,851

4,537 10,136 - 14,673
At 28 December 2013 9,308 5,610 21 14,939
Additions 224 2,148 - 2,372
Utiised dunng the penod (2,639) - - (2,639)
Unwind of provision 124 96 - 220
At 27 December 2014 7,017 7,854 21 14,892
Of which
Current 1,828 2,031 21 3,879
Non-current 5,189 5,823 - 11,013

7,017 7.854 21 14,892

Prowsions for non-trading stores relate to property provisions for the current value of contraciual labilities the Group has in respect of leasehold
premises These liabilhes are for future rent and rates payments on premises the Group no longer operationally uses, and are expected to anse

over penods of up to eight years The comparative balance sheet has been amended to reflect the current element of the prowisions, previously
treated as non-current labdlities

The dilapidations provisions represent dilapidation costs in respect of the Group's leasehold properties, and wil therefore anse over the lease Iives
of the Group's propsrties
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19. Deferred tax
Deferred tax s provided in full on taxable temporary differences under the llability method using applcable tax rates Deterred tax assets and
liabiities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the balances net
Denvatve  Property, plant Acquired
financial  and equipment intangble
Tax losses nstruments  and other items assets Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 27 December 2014 2,400 - (625) (8,685) 6,910
{Charge)/credit 10 the Income statement (500) - {4089) 546 3863)
Ansing on acquisition - - {231) (438) (669}
At 26 December 2015 1,900 - (1,265) (8,577) (7,942)
Deferred tax assets 1,900 - - - 1,900
Deferred tax habilities - - {1,265) {8,577) (9,842)
At 26 December 2015 1,800 - (1,265) 8,577) (7,942)
At 28 December 2013 - {248) {150} 9,023) (9,421)
(Charge)/credit to the ncome statement 2,400 248 {475) 687 2,880
Ansing on acquisition - - - (349) {349)
At 27 December 2014 2,400 - (625) (8,685} {6,810)
Deferred tax assets 2,400 - 62 - 2,462
Deferred tax labtities - - {687) (8,689) {9,372}
At 27 December 2014 2,400 - {625) (8,685) (6,910

At 26 December 2015 £9 2m {27 December 2014 £8 5m) of the deferred tax hability 1$ expected 1o crystallise after more than one year
As at 26 December 2015 the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset relating 1o trading losses of £0 8m (27 December 2014 £10m)

The Group alsc has an unrecognised deferred tax asset refating to temporary differences on plant and equipment, Intangible assets and provisons

of £12 3m (27 December 2014 £101m)

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recogrused on the basis that 1t 1s not sufficiently certain when taxable profits that can be utihsed
to absorb the reversal of the temporary difference will occur in the future
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

20. Share capital
Number and nominal value of ordinary shares
Share capital Share
Ordinary Preference Ordinary Preference premium
Number Number £000s £000s £000s
At 28 December 2013 and 27 December 2014 64,546,960 - 645 - -
Issue of 50,000 redeemable preference shares of £1 each - 50,000 - 50 -
Issue of 41,110,184 ordinary shares of 1p each in exchange
for loan notes in subsidiary 41,110,184 - 411 - -
Issue of 49,104,760 ordinary shares of 1p each 49,104,760 - 492 - 102,629
Share 1ssue costs - - - - {4,076)
Redemption of 50,000 redeemable preference shares
of £1 each - (50,000) - {50 -
Capital reduction - - - - {98,553)
At 26 December 2015 154,761,904 - 1,548 - -

The above movements reflect the transactions that arose following incorporation of HSS Hire Group Limited (subsequently renamed HSS Hire
Group plc) inadvance of the IPO of 9 February 2015 Inmially the share capital was £50,001 dvided into 1 ordinary share of £1 00 each and 50,000
redeemable preference shares of £1 00 each

HSS Hire Group plc replaced Hampshire Tapco Limited as the holding comparty of the Group, through a share-for-share exchange This took
place immediately following determination of the IPO Offer Price on 3 February 2015 and resulted in the 1ssue of the onginal 64,546,960 ordinary
shares of 1 pence each shown above

As part of the reconstruction that tock place immediatety prior to the share-for-share exchange, the external lcan note helders in the Hampshire
Topco Group transferred alf of thewr interests in the notes to Hampshire Topeo Limited in consideration for the issue of new ordinary shares in
Hampshire Topco Limited An aggregate loan note balance of approximately £86,000,000 including £795,500 of accrued interest was converted
into 41,110 184 ordinary shares of 1 pence each These shares were subsequently exchanged for shares in HSS Hire Group ple ona 1 for 1 basis
as part of the reconstruction

In addition, the £50,000 of preference shares were redeemed in full on 4 February 2015
The IPO invotved the issue of 48,104,760 ordinary shares of 1 pence each at theissue pnce of £2 10 each on ¢ February 2015

On 3 July 2015 the Company, by way of a Special resolution, cancelled its share premiurn account as confirmed by an Order of the High Court
of Justice, chancery dvsion, on 15 July 2015

21. Financial nstruments

Financial nsk management

The Group holds and uses financial Instrurments to finance its operations and to manage its Interest rate and iquidity nsks The Group primarnty
finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borowings

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (interest rate nsk and forexgn exchange nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk

Risk management i1s carned out under policies approved by the Board of Directors Financial nsk management 1s camed out by the Chief Financial
Officer under a policy approved by the Board The Board approves witten pnnciples for overall nsk management, as well as written policies
covenng specific areas, such as interest rate nsk, credit nsk and iquidity nsk and recerves regular reports on such matters The Group does not
engagse in trading or speculative actvities using dervative financial instruments
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21. Financial instruments (continued)

Market nsk

Market risk is the nsk that may change prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates They will affect the Group's Income or the value of
its holdings of financial nstruments

Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nsk is the nsk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in interest rates On 9 February 2015 the Group, its uttimate parent
company and its previous ulimate parent company executed a number of Board approved loans which allowed the Group to discharge existing
loan notes as well as to effect an early redemption of £64m of its 6 75% senior secured notes as summansed in Note 17

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are now pnncipally the Senior Secured notes In addition the Group enters into finance leases in respect of hre
stock assets and these carry a fixed rate of interest set at lease nception

The Group is only exposed to Interest rate nsk on is vanable Interest borrowings, such as the revohang credit facility, the Group's overdraft and
ather short-term borrowings Given the most recent inflaton report from the Bank of England (February 2016) which indicates that the market-
imphed path for the UK Bank Rate is now lower than reported in the November 2015 report, and 1s not currently expect to reach 1 1% untl Q1 2019,
the directors do not consider this to be a signficant nsk to the Group  The Directors wall continue to monitor developments in market interest rates
on aregular basis

Foremgn exchange nsk

Foreign exchange nsk s the nsk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change In forergn currency exchange rate The Group is exposed to
foreign currency exchange rate nsk on the cash flows and carrng values of its Republic of Ireland subsidianes Grven the relative small size of the
Republic of reland operatons compared to the Group the directors do not consider this to be a signidficant nsk to the Group

Credit nsk
Credit nskis the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counter party to a financial Instrument fail to meet its contractual cbiigations, and
anses principally from the Group’s recevables from customers

The Directors conaider the Group's credit nsk from cash, cash equivalents and deposiis to be low as the Group only enters transactions wath banks
or financial mstitutions with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has policies in place to manage potential credit nsk from trade recevables Customer credit terms are determined using indegendent
ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes in customer arcurnstances or trading conditions i no independent rating 1s
available an internal assessment 1S made of the credit quality of the customer, taking into account ther financial position and past trading history
of the Group The Directors do not expect any sigrificant losses of receivables that have not been prowded for as shown innote 14

Liquidity nsk
Liquidity nsk s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group finance department regularly
monitars forecasts of the Groups quidity requirements 1o ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while mantaning sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing faciities (note 17) at all ttimes so that bomowing limits or covenants on borrowing faciliies are
not breached

The financial covenant in place on the Group's revolving credit facility at 26 December 2015 15 a mirumum EBITDA of £35m on aroling
12 month basis

Capital management
The Group relies on capital for organic and acquisitive growth, the purchase of rental equipment to replace equipment that has reached the end
ofits useful economic lfe and to secure and establish new rental locations and branches

The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debit (total borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve
an acceptable retumn on gross capital

The Group manages its capial structure using a number of measures and takng into account is future strategic plans  Such measures include
ensuring the Group mantans sufficient iguidity and comphance with a bank covenant In addition to the cash that the Group has generated from
its operaticns, over recent years it has renegeohated its debt structure including the 1Issue of a fixed interest rate bond, fixed term loan notes and
secured shorter-term bank borrowing through a revolving credit facility

The principal bank covenant 1s to maintan a roling EBITDA of £35m For the year ended 26 December 2015 EBITDA was £62 5m (2014 £67 4m)
and adjusted EBITDA was £71 0m (2014 £711m)
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

21. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value

Allfinancial assets at the balance sheet date which compnse trade and ather recevables, cash and cash equivalents are classified as loans
and recevables

Allfinancial habiities which compnse trade and other payables, obligations under finance leases and borrowings are classified as financial habilties
at amortised cost.

The following table shows the far value of fmancial assets and financial habilites within the Group, ncluding therr level in the far value hierarchy
It does not iInclude fair value information for financiatl assets or financial iabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value

26 December 27 December

2015 2014
£000s £'000s

Financial labilities
Seniar secured nolte 135,568 206,178
135,568 206,178

The Senior secured notes are classified as Level 1in the far value hierarchy, as they are histed on the Luxembourg stock exchange and have been
valued at therr market value at the year end

22, Commitments and contingencies
The Group’s commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below:

26 December 27 December

2015 2014
£000s £000s

Land and bulldings
Within one year 15,910 15,552
Between two and five years 47,953 47,986
After five years 30,799 31,066
94,662 94,604

Other

Within gne year 7,607 6,082
Between two and five years 13,021 8,612
20,628 14,694
115,290 109,298

The Group's future minimum sub-lease rental Income expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases 1s as follows
26 December 27 December

2015 2014
£000s £000s

Sub-lease rental Income
Within one year 862 58
Between two and five years 1,704 1.414
After five years 376 1,21

2,942 2,683
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23. Business combinations

Acquisitions in the year

0On 8 May 2015, the Group acguired the entire share capital of All Seasons Hire Limited through its subsidiary HSS Hire Serwce Group Limited

All Season Hire Limited 15 one of the leading heating, ventilation and arcondiioning {HVAC') hire comparnies in the UK. The pnmary reason for the
acquisttion was to acquire a specialist HYAC hire business The main factor leading to the recognition of goodwill was the expected operational
efficiencies through economies of scale

The details of the far value of identifiable assets and habilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwll are as follows

Far value
acquired
£000s
Intangible assets 1,976
Matenals & equipment held for hire 2,699
Property, plant and equipment 21
Trade and other recewables 1,219
Cash at bank and m hand 317
Credttors and provisions (2.645)
Met assets acquired 3777
Goodwill 7.021
Total consideration 10,798
Satisfied by
Cash 10,798

There were far value adjustments to trade and other recesvable of £0 2m in respect of credit note and bad debt provistons and £0 1m to creditors
and prowisions relanng to other creditors The fair value exercise 1s not yet complete

Acquisiton related costs of £0 25m have been charged to administrative expenses in the ncome staterment for the year ended 26 December 2015

Since the acqusiion date, All Seasons Hire Limited has contnbuted £3 6 1o Group revenues and £0 5m to Group profit if the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2015 the contnbution to Group revenue would have been €5 6m and the contnbution to Group profit would have
been£10m

In addition a further immateral acquisiion was made in the year ended 26 December 2015 for £0 5m and gave nse to goodwaill of £0 4m

Acquisitions in pnor pertods

Apex Generators Limited

On 31 March 2014 the Group acquired the entire share capital of Apex Generators Lirnited through its subsidiary ABird Supenor Limited Apex
Generators Limited specialises in the hire of generators and associated equipment

The fair value of the consideration paid for the share capital was £5 99m and the far value of the assets acquired was £2 79m resulting in goodwill
of £3 20m

The acquisition was setiled in cash The total consideraton of £2 9mincluded deferred instalments of £0 7m each paid in 2015 and 2016

24. Related party transactions
Ultimate parent entity
By virtue of iis majonty shareholding the Group's immediate and ulttimate parent entity 1s Exponent Pnvate Equity LLP

Dunng the year entiies managed by Exponent Prvate Equity LLP charged the Group fees of Enil 2014 £150,000) and £nil was outstanding at
26 December 2015 (2014 £nil)

The Group held outstanding loan netes together with accrued interest of £nik owed to Exponent Pavate Equity LLP at 26 December 2015
(2014 £85,386,186)

Key management personnel
Related party transactions with key management personnel are disclosed inNote 7

On 30 March 2015 aloan was made by Hampshire Topco Limited to Steve Trowbndge to enable hum to pay the income tax and empioyee
natonal insurance connbutions ansing on any difference between the unrestncted market value of the B shares n Hampshire Topco Limited
acquired by him in 2074 and the subscnption pnce actually paid The loan was wntten off by Hampshire Topco Limited following the admission
of HSS Hire Group Ple to the London Stock Exchange and the Group has settled the tax and national insurance amounits ansing The beneft
amounted to £78,645

22UBLIOLO] NO ssausng ang

sanipqisuodsely JNQ

OUBWIGACE)

UOREULIO] [RIDUBUY

UONRBULIOU| JOYI()

I




106 HSS Hire Group plc
Annuat Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Continued

25. Dividends
26 December 27 December
2015 2014
£000s £000s
Intenm dividend of 0 57p (2014 nil} per ordinary share pad durnng the year 882 -
882 -

The Directors are proposing a final dvidend of 0 57p per ordinary share, totaling £0 9m This divdend has not been accrued in the consolidated
staterment of financial position

26. Note supporting statement of cash flows

Significant non cash transactions in the year in respect of financing activities comprised of £29 8m of assets acquired under new finance leases
{2014 £7 2m), and unpaid interest rolled up nto the loan notes principal of Cril 2014 £9 3m).

27. Capital reconstruction

As explained in note 1{d), in February 2015 HSS Hire Group plc undertock an IPO resulting in £103m of gross proceeds beingraised As part of the
PO process, the Company passed special resclutions giving effect to the capital recrganisation cutlined in the consolidated staternent of changes
n equity

On 8 February 2015 the Group, its ultimate parent company and its previous ulimate parent company executed a number of board approved

loans which dllowed the Group to discharge existing loans as well as to effect an early redemption of £84m of its 6 75% senior secured notes as
surnmansed in Note 17

28. Adjusted EBITA
Adjusted EBITA s calculated as follows

26 December 27 December

2015 2014

£000s £000s

Adjusted EBITDA 71,047 71,146
[Less Deprecaten T T T T T sn 702 (39,930
Adjusted EBITA 20,345 31,216
Less Amortisation (4,981) {3,800)
Less Exceptional iterns (non-finance) 8,522) {3.739)

Operating profit 6,842 23,577
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26 December

2015
Nota £000s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments 86,368
Other recewvables 3 91,085
177,453
Current assets
Other recevables 3 8,957
Cash 1
8,958
Total assets 186,411
LIABILITIES
Current habilies
Other payables 4 {55)
{55)
Total habilthes (55)
Net assets 186,356
EQUITY
Share capital 8 1,548
Share premium 5 -
Merger reserve 85,312
Retained surplus 6 99,496
Total surplus attributable to owners of the Company 186,356

The notes on pages 110 to 112 form part of these financial staterments

The financiat statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 Apnl 2016 and were signed on its behalf by

SN Trowbridge
Director

6 Apnl 2016
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Company Statement
of Changes in Equity

Share Share  Preference Merger Retaned Total

capital premium shares reserve earnings equity

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 7 January 2015 - - - - - -
Issue of 50,000 redeemable praference shares of £1 each - - 50 - - 50
Shares 1ssued for acquisition of subsidiary by a share-for-
share exchange 1,057 - - 85,312 - 86,369
Shares issued in the penod for cash 491 102,629 - - - 103,120
Share 1ssue costs {4,076) - - - - {4,076)
Redemption of 50,000 redeemable preterence shares
of €1 each - - (50 - - (50)
Capital reduction - (98,553) - - 98,553 -
Dmdend - - - - (882) (882)
Profit for the penod - - - - 1,825 1,825
At 26 December 2015 1,548 - - 85,312 99,496 186,356

The notes on pages 110 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Period from
7 January
2015to
26 December
£'000s
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before Income tax 3,031
Adjusiments for
- Finance income {8,299)
- Finance expense 276
(5,092}
Changes in working capital
- Trade and other receivables 5,036
- Trade and other payables 55
5,091
Net cash flows from operating activities (1)
Cash flows from investing actwities
Amounts toaned to Group companies {100,339)
Net cash used in investing activities (100,339)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 101,223
Dridends pasd (882)
Net cash used in financing activites 100,341
Net increase in cash 1
Cash at the start of the year -
Cash at the end of the year 1

The notes on pages 110 to 112 form part of these financial statements

ssoLISng INg

BIUBLLIONA NG

IUBLLBACD  SBNIqIsuodsed AnQ

UOREULOL) (I

UOIBULION) JBLIO




110 HSS Hire Group pic
Arnual Report 2015

Company Notes to the
Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies
HSS Hire Group ple {the Company') 1s 2 company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The Company's registered office 1s
25 Willow Lane, Mitcham, Surrey, CR4 4TS

a) Reporting entity
HSS Hire Group Limnited was incorperated on 7 January 2015 as a private company imited by shares i the United Kingdom and re-registered
as a public kmited company on 19 January 2015 The Company listed its shares on the London Stock Exchange on 9 February 2015

The Company’s pnncipal actmty 1s to act as ulimate holding company for a group of companies whose principal activities are the supply and hire
of equipment and associated services

b) Statement of complance
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Infemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (IFRS) and the Companies Act 2006

The Directors have taken advantage of the option within section 390 of the Companies Act 2006 to prepare their financial statements up to a date
seven days either side of the Company's accounting reference date of 31 December 2015, and these accounts therefore cover the pernod from
28 Decemibver 2014 to 26 December 2015 (2014 29 December 2013 1o 27 December 2014)

As permitted by Secton 4083} of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s income statement and statement of comprehensive income and
related notes have not been presented

The Company complies with the accounting policies defined in Note 1 to the Group consolidated statements on pages 81 to 86 except as
noted below

c) Merger reserve

The merger reserve s the amount ansing on the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued on acquisition of the subsidiary
company and the Company value of the interest In subsidiary The merger reserve anses where more than 90% of the shares in a subsicdiary are
acquired and the consideration includes the issue of new shares by the Company. and therefore the Company adopts merger relief under the
Companies Act 2006

d) Investments
Investments in subsidianes are Included in the statement of financial position at cost less amounts wntten-off, representing impawrment in value
Imparment charges are recorded if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

As the iInvestment In subsidianes arose from a reorgarisation of the Group structure that satisfies the cntena set cut InLAS 27 ‘Separate Financial
Staternents’, the cost of interest has been measured as the carmyng amount of its share of the equity items shown in the separate financial
statements of the onginal parent at the data of recrganisation
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2. Investments

At 26 December 2015 the Company's subsidianes, including those held indirectly through direct subsidianes, are
Country of Ordinary
Company Holding Incarporation Prnncipal actmty shares held
Hampshire Topco Limited Direct United Kingdom Intermediate holding company 100%
Hampshire Midco Linuted Indrrect United Kingdom Iintermediate holding company 100%
Hampshire Bidco Limited Indirect United Kingdom Intermediate holding compary 100%
Hero Acquisitions Lirmted Indirect United Kingdom intermediate holding company 100%
HSS Hire Service Holdings Lirmuted Indirect United Kingdom Intermediate holding company 100%
HSS Hire Service Finance Limited Indirect United Kingdom Intermediate holding company 100%
Bannagroe Limited Indirect Republic of lretand Intermediate holding company 100%
ABird Supenor Limited Indirect Urited Kingdom Intermediate holding company 100%
HSS Hire Service Group Limited Indirect United Kingdom Hire and equipment sernces 100%
Al Hire & Sales Limited Indirect United Kingdom Hire and equipment services 100%
Laois Hire Services Limited Indirect Republic of Ireland Hire and equipment services 100%
ABird Limited Indirect United Kingdom Hire and equipment services 100%
Apex Generators Limited Indiract United Kingdom Hire and equipment services 100%
UK Platforms Lirmited Indirect United Kingdom Hire and equipment senvices 100%
HSS Financing plc Indiract United Kingdom Hire and equipment services 100%
HSS Training Limited Indirect United Kingdom Traning sences 100%
1s1 Collection Services Limited Indirect United Kingdom Administration of group debtors 100%
TecServ Cleaning Equipment Services Limited Indirect United Kingdom Cleaning equipment senices 100%
All Seasons Hire Limited Indrrect United Kingdom Hire and equipment services 100%
Access Rentals (UK} Limited Indirect United Kingdom Dormant 100%
Hire Shops Limited Indirect United Kingdom Dorrmant 100%
Reintec Lirited Indirect United Kingdom Dormant 100%
The Cnginal Tool Hire Company Lirmited Indiract United Kingdom Dormant 100%

Al subsidianes were acquired dunng the penad as part of the Group reconstruction set out in note 1(d) to the consolidated financial statements
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Company Notes to the
Financial Statements Continued

3. Otherreceivables
26 December
2016
Non-current £000s.
Amounts due from Group undertakings 91,085
91,085
26 December
2015
Current E£000s
Amounts due from Group undertakings 8,946
Prepayments 1M1
8,957

Non-current amounts due from Group undertakings fall due in 2022 and carry a fixed interest rate of 10% Currenit amounts due from Group
undertakings carry an interest rate of 3 75% above LIBOR

4, Other payables. amounts falling due within one year
26 December

2015

£000s

Accruals and deferred income 35
Other creditors 20
55

5. Share capital
The detalls of the Company’s share capital are set out Innote 20 to the consolidated financeal statements

6. Profit and loss account
As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the year

The auditors remuneraton for audit and other serices is disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements

7 Related party transactions
The Company's related party transactions are set out innote 24 to the consolidated financial statements

8. Financial mstruments
Detalls of the Group's financial Instruments policies are set outin note 21 to the consoltdated financial statements

No far value information is presented for financial assets and financial labilties of the Company as the carrying amount of assets and habikties
15 considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value and there are no financial assets or kabiiies camed at farr value




Shareholder
InNformation

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held at 1 30pmon

15 June 2016 at Haberdashers' Hall, 18 West Smithfield, London

EC1A 8HQ Detals of the Resolutions proposed and being voted on are
providad in the Notice of AGM prowvided to shareholders and avalable
for download at the Group webhsite, www hsshiregroup com

Boiler room fraud

Many companies have become aware that their shareholders have
received unsolicited phone calls or correspondence conceming
mvestrnent matters Share scams are often run from ‘boiler rooms’
where fraudsters cold-call investors offenng them worthless, overpnced
or even non-existent shares.

These operations are commonly known as boiler room fraud’ The
brokers’ (callers) can be very persistent and extremely persuasive
They often have websites to support therr actvites, ther advice and the
companies they purport to represent A 2006 survey by the Rinancial
Services Authonty (FSA) reporied that the average amount lost by an
investor s around £20,000 Itis not just novice investors that have been
duped in this way, mary of the wetirms have been successfully nvesting
for several years

Shareholders are cautioned io be very wary of any unsolicited adwvice,
offers to buy shares at a discount, sell your shares at a premium or
offers of free cormpany reports

It you are offered unsolicited investment advice, discounted shares, a
premium price for shares you own, or free company or research
reports, you should take these steps before handing over any money

- record the name of the person and orgamisation contacting you,

- check the FCA Regster at wwwiica org uk/register to ensure they
are property authonsed,

- use the detalls on the FCA Register to contact the firm,

- call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 8768 if there are no
contact detals on the Register or you are told they are out of date,

- if you receive telephone calls, emaills, letters purporting to be from
HSS Hire Group plc or from companies endorsed by HSS Hire
Group plc and you are unsure If they are legitimate, please contact
our shareholder helphne for clanfication (0371 384 2030 or
+44 (0121 415 7047 (overseas)), and

- ithe caller persists, hang up

Please note that should you use an unauthonsed firm to buy cr sell
shares or other investments, you will not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation Scheme
{FSCS) if things gowrong

If you are approachad about & share scam you should tell
the FCA using the online share fraud reporting form at
www fca org uk/consumers/scams, where you can find
out about the latest investment scams You can also call
the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money o share fraudsters you should contact
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040

Further information on this or simitar actmvty can be found at
www cityoilondon police uk/aitypolice within the Economic
Cnme section
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Forward-looking statements

This document contains certan forward-looking statements
concerming the Group's business, financial condrtion, results of
operations and certain of the Group's plans, objectives, assurmphaons,
projections, expectations or bebiefs with respect to these items
Forward-tooking staternents are sormetimes, but not abways, identifiec
by their use of a datein the future or such words as ‘anticipates’, ‘ams',
‘due’, ‘could’, ‘may’, ‘will', ‘should’, ‘expects’, ‘believes’, ‘Intends’, ‘plans’,
‘potential’, ‘targets’, ‘goal’ or 'estimates’

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertantes and other factors, which may cause the Group's actual
financial conditon, performance and results to differ matenally from the
plans, goals, objectives and expectations set out in the forward-tooking
statements inciuded in this document Accordingly, readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance or forward-loclang statements

By ther nature, forward-looking statements relate 1o events and
depend cn circumstances that will occur 1n the future and are inherently
unpredictable Such forward-locking statements should, therefore, be
considered in hght of vanous iImportant factors that could cause actuat
results and developments to differ matenally from those expressed or
imphed by these forward-looking statements These factors nclude,
among other things changes in the economies and markets in which
the Group operates, changes in the regulatory regime wathin which the
Group operates, changes ininterest and to a lesser extent exchange
rates, the impact of competitor pncing behavwiour, the occurrence of
major operational problems, the loss of major customers, contingent
Iabilties, and the impact of legal or other proceedings against, or which
otherwise affect, the Group

No assurance can be given that the forward-locking statements in this
document wall be reabised, aciual events or results may differ matenally
as aresult of nsks and uncertainties facing the Group Subject to
compliance with apphcable law and regulation, the Company does not
intend to update the forward-locking statements in this document to
reflect events or circumstances atter the date of this document, and
does not undertake any obligation to do so

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting 1 30pm, 15 June 2016

Ex-dmdend date tor final dwdend 2 June 2016
Record date for final dividend* 3 June 2016
Final dvdend paid 4 July 2016

Shareholders on the register at this date wil recene the dadend
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Company
Information

Reqistered Office
HSS Hire Group plc
25 Willow Lane
Mitcham

Surrey, CR4 4TS

Emal investors@hss com
Website www hsshiregroup com

Regrstered number England and Wales, No 9378067

Company Secretary
Patrick Hartrey

Ftnancial Advisers and Stockbrokers
J P Morgan Cazenove

25 Bank Street

Canary Whart

Londen, 14 5JP

Nurris Secunties Limited

The London Stack Exchange Building
10 Patemoster Square

London, ECaM 71T

Legal Advisers

Freshiields Bruckhaus Dennger LLP
65 Fleet Street

London, EC4Y 1HS

independent Auditors
BDOLLP

55 Baker St

London

WAL 7EV)

Bankers

Barclays Bank plc
One Churchill Place
London, E14 SHP

HSBC Bank pic
8 Canada Square
London, E14 5HQ

Financial Public Relations
Crhigate Dewe Rogerson Ltd
3 London Wall Buldings
London wWall

London, EC2M 58Y

Trade Public Relations
Founded Partners Limited
185 Park Street

London, SE1 8DY

Registrars

Equeni Limited

Aspect House

Spencer House

Lancing

West Sussex, BN296DA

Insurance Brokers
Marsh Limited

1 Tower Place West,
Tower Place
London

EC3R 5BU
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Definitions and

Glossary

The followang defirtions apply throughout this documertt unless the context requires otherwise

‘ABird’ or ‘ABurd Power Solutions’

ABird Supencr Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Abird Limited

Act

the Companies Act 2008, as amended

‘Activ’ Shield Bar’

a safety feature developed In conunchtion with manufacturer Haulotte on the Group's platform
access fleet

‘Adjusted EBITA’

EBITA adjusted to add back exceptional items

‘Adjusted EBITDA'

EBITDA adjusted to add back exceptional items

‘Adjusted EPS’

measure of adjusted profitability per share Widely recognised measure of shareholder value
(profit) being generated by a business excluding non-recurnng or exceptional items and
amortisation and after charging the prevailing rate of corporation 1ax

‘Admission’

the admission of the Shares to the premium listing segment of the Official List and 1o trading
on the London Stock Exchange's man market for isted secunties

‘All Seasons Hire’

All Seascns Hire Limited

'Apex'

Apex Generators Limited

‘Articles’

the Articles of Association of the Company to be adopted upon Admission

'Average revenue
per account customer’

calculated by dividing the total revenue from account customers only In a year by the simple
average of the opening and clesing number of trading accounts

'bn’ a billon or bilions when used with a number or numbers and a currency unit e g £5 7bn denotes
£5 7 bilkon pounds stering
‘B2B' business-to-business

‘Garbon emissions i our
built environment’

calculated as the total CO, emissions from fuel combustion {a scope 1 emission) and purchased
electricity {(scope 2 emissions) of the Group 1 kg CC, dwided by the total m? of the Group's
freehold and leasehold portiolo Calculated for the pencd 1 Apnl to 31 March in each year in
accordance with the reporting timeframe required {or annual CRC submissions

‘Code’

see Governance Code'

‘Company’

HS88 Hire Group plc

'‘CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme’
or ‘CRC’

a mandatory carbon emissions reducton scheme in the United Kingdom that applies to large
nen-energy-intensiva organisations in the public and prvate sectors

‘EBITA’ earmings before interest, tax and amortisation

'EBITDA earnings before interest, tax, depreciabion and amertisation

‘EU’ European Union

‘Exponent’ the investment funds managed by Exponent Private Equity LLP or, when otherwise indicated
or where the context otherwise requires, Exponent Pnvate Equity LLP in its own nght

‘Exponent Shareholders' Exponent Private Equity Partners GP I, LP. Exponent Havana Co-Investment Partners GP

Limsted and Exponent Private Equity Founder Partner GP I Limited

‘Governance Gode'

the UK Corporate Governance Cods 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council, as amended
from time to time

‘Group’

together, HSS Hire Group plc and the companies which are direct or indirect subsidianes of
HSS Hire Group plc

‘Hampshire Topco Limited’

our parent company as at 27 December 2014 and up untl 21 January 2015 when HSS Hire
Group plc became tha new holding company of Hampshire Topco Limited and s subsidianes
through a share-for-share exchange Havana Topco Lirnited was renamed Hampshire Topco
Limited on 23 May 2014

‘HSS Hire Group plic’

HSS Hire Group plc, our new parent company incorporated on 7 January 2015 as a private
company hrruted by shares in the United Kingdom and re-registered as a public limited company
on 12 January 2015 The ordinary share capital of HSS Hire Group plc was admitted to the
prerium histing segment of the Official List of the UK Listing Authonty and to trading on London
Stock Exchange’s mam market for lisied secunties under the ticker 'HSS' on 9 February 2015

'HSS’

used 1o refer 1o the group of companies within the HSS Hre Group

'IFRS'

International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Urion

‘mitial public offering’ or 'IPQ’

the initial public offenng and admussion of the ordinary share capital of HSS Hire Group plc to the
prermium ksting segment of the Official List of the UK Listing Authonty and to trading on London
Stock Exchange's main market for histed secunties under the ticker HSS' on 9 February 2015
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Definitions and
Glossary Continued
‘Ireland’ the Republic of Ireland
'hve account’ a customer that has transacted with the Group w1 the prior 12 months

‘LTM Utihsation’

for our Core businesses utiisation 1§ calculaled as average units hred dvided by average units
owned Irr a reporting month, then averaged over the relevant 52-week penod {referred to as the
last 12 months or ‘LTM")

for our Specialst businesses utilsation represents the average utilisation rate of the specialst
businesses included in the reporting penrod, calculated using the same method as for core
utiisation at each business level This calculaton does not include data tor All Seasons Hire
as full LTM utdisation data s not yet avalabls

‘m’ a millton or mdlions when used witha number and a currency unit e g £70m denotes £70 million
pounds sterking

‘MEWP' Mobile Elevating Work Platform

‘MTS' Mobile Traffic Solutions

‘Net debt’ the total Indebtedness of the Group Including Senior Secured Notes {excluding debt issue costs),
investor loan notes (2014 only), finance leases, drawings on the Revolving Credit Facility, any
accrued interest on these tems and any overdraft net of any cash in the Group

'Notes’ the £200m 6 75% Servor Secured Notes due 2019 1ssued by HSS Financing ple in February
2014, which after a partial redemption in February 2015 were reduced to a balance of £136m

‘NPS* a measure of willingness of customers to recommend a Company's products or senices
1o others

‘Official List’ tha Cfficial List of the FCA

‘return on assets’ or 'ROA’

calcutated as Adjusted EBITA divided by the total of average total assets {excluding intangble
assets) subtracted by average current liabilities

‘Return on Capital Employed’
or 'ROCE’

catculated as Adjusted EBITA dmded by the total of average total assets (excluding intangible
assets and cash) less average current liatilities {excluding current debt items)

‘Revolving Credit Facility’

the £80 Om revolving credit facility made available pursuant 1o the Revohang Credit
Facility Agreement

‘Revolving Credit Facility Agreement’

the revolving credit tacility agreement governing the £80 Om super senior revolving credit tacility
dated 30 January 2014

‘RIDDOR(s)’ RIDCCR stands for the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
1995 Within our KPls we report our RIDDOR rate, which is calculated as the number of
RICCOR incidents x 100,000, dvided by the number of hours worked

'TecServ' TecServ Cleaning Equipment Services Limited formerty Premiere FCM Limited)

'RMI' used to refer to services provided in the repar, mantan and improve markets, typically to the
built environment

‘SHEQ’ safety heafth, emaronment and qualty

“Trading Account’

a customer account which has been active In the last 12 months

‘Training days per colleague’

calculated as the total training days completed by Group employees within the year, dvided by
the average number of colleagues in the Group

uK the United Kingdom of Great Bntain and Northern Ireland
‘UK Platforms’ UK Platforms Limited and its subsidiary, Access Rentals (UK) Limited
‘Unipart Group' Unipart Group Limited
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